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CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED is listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and is one of the constituent
stocks of Hang Seng Index. The Group focuses on the
consumer businesses in China, including retail, beer, food
and beverage. Our retail business consists of multi-format
chain stores that features well-known brands such as “#f
EX Vanguard”, “% Suguo”, “BrZ4M8 Fun2’, “Ole’”, “blt” ,
“Vango”, “Voi_lal”, “f1%4 Chinese Arts & Crafts”, “ZE % CR
Care”, “5&& Vivo” and “AFFMNYE Pacific Coffee”, etc. As the
largest brewer in China by sales volume, the Group boasts “=
7E Snow”, China’s best-selling single beer brand. The Group is
also the largest supplier of Chinese foodstuffs in Hong Kong and
has established a vertically integrated high quality food supply
chain that encompasses research and development, production
and processing, as well as wholesaling, retail, logistics and
international trading. The group is actively expanding the China
market leveraging “H 2 Ng Fung” brand’s reputation in food
quality. Our flagship purified water brand, “/42 C’estbon”, has
a leading market position in Guangdong Province.
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Turnover of retail division over

the last three years

BMEE BT HKS million

2011 I 70,088
2010 A 55,140

2009 N 36,455
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Retail division HK$ million HKS million %

70,088

1,736

3,953

Capital expenditure
and new acquisitions
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The Group signed an
agreement to form a joint
venture with Kirin Holdings
Company, Limited for the
manufacture and distribution

of non-alcoholic beverage
products in China. The joint
venture, in which the Group
owns a 60% equity interest,
was formed in August 2011 and
then named China Resources
Kirin Beverages (Greater China)
Company Ltd.

DABIEBITEEMEE -

The Group’s food division laid
the foundation stone for its
new frozen food and ice-cream
operation in Yangzhou.
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The Group ranked 981st on
Forbes’ Global 2000 list.
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Pacific Coffee opened its new
coffee shop in Shanghai, its
first coffee shop in China after it
has joined the Group. The new
coffee shop also symbolizes its
efforts in accelerating expansion
in China’s coffee market.
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“#R 2 Suguo” was recognized
as a well-known trademark

in China by the State
Administration for Industry and
Commerce of the PRC.
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The Group’s “A 05k
Pacific Coffee” chain was
named “U Favorite Coffee
Shop” in the “U Favorite Food
Awards 2010-2011” held by

U Magazine in Hong Kong,
marking the third consecutive
year in which the chain has won
in the same category.
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The Group acquired from the
parent company the entire
equity interest in a retail drug
store chain. The drug store
chain has a 152-store retail
network in 14 cities in Jiangsu
Province, Guangdong Province,
Shandong Province and Hubei
Province.

R mEEREEM(20115FH
BI5005 LB E mEHETTE)H -
IR R 463.681ETH)
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With a brand value of
RMB46.368 billion, Snow beer
ranked 29th on the World
Brand Laboratory’s list of
“China’s 500 Most Valuable
Brands” in 2011, one spot
higher than last year.
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The Group ranked 39th on
Fortune China’s Fortune China
500 list.
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The Group’s food division

was appointed as the official
supplier of pork during the FINA
World Championships 2011.
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The Group acquired a 100%
stake in Jiangxi Hongkelong
Department Store Investment
Company Limited, a retail
chain with 21 hypermarkets,

to expand its retail business in
Jiangxi Province and to gain an
advantageous market position
in the region.
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China Resources Snow
Breweries Limited (“CR Snow”),
a subsidiary of the Group,
acquired the remaining 55%
equity stake in Hangzhou Xihu
Beer Asahi Co., Ltd. and the
remaining 25% equity stake

in Zhejiang Xihu Beer Asahi
Co. Ltd. Both companies
have become wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CR Snow.

B A EKel vivoPFIEERZ ER
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The Group opened its first

el vivo shop in Xian, marking
an important milestone for its
expansion in China.
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The “300 Project” (*=A T

E"’) of the Group’s “Z= &

% CR Vanguard” supermarket
chain won the “Outstanding
CSR Award for SOEs in
2011”, presented by the State-
owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of
the State Council. Launched in
2010, the target of the project is
to set up 100 food safety model
shops, 100 environmental
friendly and energy saving
model shops, and 100 direct
trading bases between farmers
and supermarkets in 3 years.
As at the end of 2011, we have
established 68 environmental
friendly and energy saving
model shops, 72 food safety
model shops, and 80 direct
trading bases between farmers
and supermarkets.
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The Group’s “/6& C’estbon”
brand of purified water received
the “Bev-Model Influential
Brand” award, presented by
the China Beverage Industry
Association.
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The Group’s food division laid
the foundation stone for its pig
breeding farm in Huaiyang. The
pig breeding farm will enhance
the stable supply of live pigs to
Hong Kong.

REB MR EBA R RIS
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The R&D center of the Group’s
beverage division opened in
Shenzhen High-Tech Industrial
Park. It has enhanced the
Group’s R&D capabilities for
new products.

DEC+~ H
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The Group’s beer sales volume
reached 10,235,000 kiloliters,
exceeding 10,000,000 kilolitres
for the first time and marking a
new milestone for the Group.
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The Group’s “Ar#4 Chinese
Arts and Crafts” participated in
the annual “Mystery Shoppers
Program” organized by the
Hong Kong Retail Management
Association in Hong Kong. It
was named the leader in the
department store category for
the seventh consecutive year.
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BE_Z—F+"-A=+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2011
-2—%F —2-FF —ZThEF
2011 2010 2009
B¥EHET BEEET BEEET
HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million

e Turnover
— KB ¥ — continuing operations 110,164 86,728 64,131
—BRIHER ¥R — discontinued operations? - 410 7,498
110,164 87,138 71,629
AN BIRR R AL 5 A Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
—HERES 7T — continuing operations 2,832 2,673 2,785
— BRI 2 ERE — discontinued operations? - 3,001 128
2,832 5,674 2,918
FIERZEF2 (B T) Basic earnings per share? (HK$)
—EERE ¥R - continuing operations $1.18 $1.12 $1.17
— DRI 7 — discontinued operations! - $1.25 $0.05
$1.18 $2.37 $1.22
BRI E (B¥IT) Dividend per share (HK$)
— R HA — interim $0.15 $0.14 $0.14
—RH —final $0.32 $0.38 $0.35
$0.47 $0.52 $0.49

BEE (BEEEER)

Turnover (continuing operations)
W BT HKS million

5011 I 110,164
2010 [ 86,728
2009 [ 64,131

0 20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000 100,000 120,000

AN AR G s
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company

FEREE BT HKS million

2011 I 36,354
2010 [ 30,819
2009 N 05,847

0 5000 10,000 15,000 20,000 25,000 30,000 35000 40,000

BEREARN (FHEKLEER)
Basic earnings per share (continuing operations)

BT HKS
2011 I 1.8

2010 I 112
2009 117

0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0 12

GREEFE  REE
Net assets per share: book value

BT HKS

2011 B 1515
2010 I 12.85
2009 e 10.79

0 4 8 12 16
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As at As at As at 31

31 December 31 December December

2011 2010 2009

B¥EET BEEET BEEET

HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million

RARIBER G R Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company 36,354 30,819 25,847

FEIRHIAR R AE RS Non-controlling interests 12,628 10,470 9,597

AR Total equity 48,982 41,289 35,444

ONSK =] Consolidated net borrowings - - 3,340

Net Cash Net Cash
B &L & Gearing ratio® EHS RIS 9.4%
BN % Current ratio 0.96 0.98 0.90
BREEFE - Net assets per share:

— BREECEET) — book value (HK$) $15.15 $12.85 $10.79
B Notes:

1. AEER T ZF-AHEEREEMHERLHEE 1. The Group disposed of its brand-fashion distribution business interest in

W2 s JERUA S B0 BT F s F ©

2. BE-F——%-

=t— ElJtirlex%ﬁéﬂ
B0 36T A RE1.217T  HE

Tﬁ&***ﬂiﬂ' A2

AEE1A8T
—E-EER-TE

February 2010 with a net gain of approximately HK$3 billion.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2011, 2010
and 2009 are HK$1.18, HK$2.36 and HK$1.21, respectively. Diluted
earnings per share of the discontinued operations for the year ended 31

NFE+ZA=T—BIFEZELILEEEBK 2R
BB RS B BB 257 BB H0.057T ©

BELRERA BT RS EREALLD) -

December 2010 and 2009 are HK$1.25 and HK$0.05, respectively.

3. Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total
equity.
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ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EBITDA'

BHE-Z—F+=ZA=1+—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

BEREBEER

Turnover by segment

=& eyl B G
Retail Beer Food Beverage
3% 2%
10% I 10% I
N 3% N 3%
24% ~ 25% ~
2011 2010
—B——F —E-ZF #mnCED)
2011 2010 Increased/
BYEET BEEET (Decreased)
FBEB SR Turnover by segment HK$ million HK$ million %
B Core Businesses
=5 Retail 70,088 55,140 27.1%
b Beer 26,689 21,535 23.9%
B Food 10,706 8,306 28.9%
R Beverage 3,112 2,080 49.6%
110,595 87,061 27.0%
HEEBR 2R S Elimination of inter-segment transactions (431) (333) 29.4%
RO Z B Total from core businesses 110,164 86,728 27.0%
Rib#% Other Businesses
WA R EAM RS Investments and Others - _ _
BRI 7 575 Discontinued operations
— ORI 10 EE R A B - Brand-fashion Distribution - 410 (100.0%)
Hih M~ #5E Total from other businesses - 410 (100.0%)
Mz Total 110,164 87,138 26.4%
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BIHEB 2 ARTFE - BH - TERBHABT

EBITDA by Segment
=& i Rin R HhZER
Retail Beer Food Beverage Other Business
8% 5% 27%
/_ 47% /_ 35%
2%
42% 8%\
28% \
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZTF  #MnCRD)
2011 2010 Increased/
BIEEK ZKRTFE ~ HE - BEHER BYEEET (Decreased)
MEREBHEIEZR EBITDA' by segment HKS$ million HKS$ million %
BiEH Core Businesses
=5 Retail 3,953 3,873 21%
L] Beer 3,497 3,141 11.3%
B Food 662 882 (24.9%)
T Beverage 243 229 6.1%
8,355 8,125 2.8%
NEHAEE R Corporate overheads (111) (116) (4.3%)
ROER 2B Total from core businesses 8,244 8,009 2.9%
Rb#% Other Businesses
B MEMER Investments and Others (1) (418) (100.0%)
BRI 7 575 Discontinued operations
— GR R R 18 E AR A 8 — Brand-fashion Distribution - 3,412 (100.0%)
Hih#EK - @5 Total from other businesses (1) 2,994 (100.0%)
Pk Total 8,243 11,003 (25.1%)
PS5 Notes:
1. EBITDA BARFFIE ~ $i18 - & RBHEFIEF) - 1. EBITDA represents earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation and
amortization.

11
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PR PR R M o i 2=
ANALSIS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDEKRS

HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

TE 37 B R HAh ¥
Retail Beer Food Beverage Other Business
[o)
o % o
59% 33%
s s
27% ~
3% ¥
7% 12%
2011 2010
—EB——fF —E-BF  #iCED)
2011 2010 Increased/
BEEKZKRE Profit attributable to shareholders BEHET BYEHEET (Decreased)
FEAE =R by segment HKS million HK$ million %
B FEE Core Businesses
=€ Retail 1,736 1,930 (10.1%)
NER 7 Beer 785 685 14.6%
B Food 278 418 (83.5%)
o Beverage 126 155 (18.7%)
2,925 3,188 (8.2%)
NEBEHNEFERER Net corporate interest and expenses (93) 97) (4.1%)
TS 2 B Total from core businesses 2,832 3,091 (8.4%)
HE % Other Businesses
WA R HAMET Investments and Others - (418) (100.0%)
[RESIS St Discontinued operations
— MR M E R A B - Brand-fashion Distribution - 3,001 (100.0%)
Hib3E 2 58 Total from other businesses - 2,583 (100.0%)
Pk Total 2,832 5,674 (50.1%)
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BEERNREESARHETEFRRVEE BREFEC RREEER
Profit attributable to shareholders excluding the effect of asset revaluation and
major disposal of non-core assets/investments by segment
=5 i B R eSS
Retail Beer Food Beverage Other Business
13% o% 8% 19
% 0 41%
A% 16% ~ e
40% ~
34% ~
2011 2010
BRIEEBINBREEER Profit attributable to shareholders —E——F —E-FE  #in0H2)
RHEEXEFROLEE, excluding the effect of asset 2011 2010 Increased/
REFEY revaluation and major disposal BETHET BEEHET (Decreased)
MR RPER = FI of non-core assets/investments by segment  HK$ million HK$ million %
B FEE Core Businesses
T Retail 808 830 2.7%)
i Beer 785 685 14.6%
B2 Food? 263 321 (18.1%)
) Beverage 126 155 (18.7%)
1,982 1,091 (0.5%)
NEVHEEFEFE B A Net corporate interest and expenses (93) 97) (4.1%)
BOERZ B Total from core businesses 1,889 1,894 (0.3%)
H % Other Businesses
B REAMER Investments and Others? - 1 (100.0%)
DR AR 7 ERE Discontinued operations
— R hEE R MR AT BH — Brand-fashion Distribution* - 22 (100.0%)
Hii g 85 Total from other businesses - 23 (100.0%)
FoEC) Total 1,889 1,917 (1.5%)
PS5 Notes:

1.

TEEBNEETREREMD R FHERBOEE
9.28FBIL(—E—EFBE1ET) -

2. REBEBNEETBELEATLBB0ASEILCT
— T4 BI0.97 R S IR DR B TS
RENYEFEERS -

3. BRERHMEBR -_Z-—ZFNEETEERAAE
Bt \EENEREEREBROBB419ET -

4. AEER-Z-TF - AHEERIER HEMREHE
T2 fas - EEKBEB0ETTF A

5. W-ZT—THE+— ARREMRIINEDENRTRRN

FHEBHN - BAEER T ——F+=-A=+—
BIEFENZENRBE4.68(ETT

1.

Net valuation surplus on investment properties of approximately HK$928
million (2010: HK$1,100 million) has been excluded from the results of
Retail division.

Net gain on disposal of non-core investments and valuation surplus
on investment properties with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$15 million (2010: HK$97 million) have been excluded from the results
of the Food division.

Valuation deficit on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$419 million has been excluded from the 2010 results
of Investment and Others division.

The Group disposed of its brand-fashion distribution business interest in
February 2010 with a net gain of approximately HK$3 billion.

The attributable impact of urban maintenance and construction tax and
education surcharges applicable on foreign-invested enterprises effective
from December 2010 was approximately HK$468 million for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

13
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2011 FEERMEBRBRBHEE(PRERE)Z
DMEEERENTE REERBR)
DNEREERUEE (REEBR)
BEREEBEAE

REREERE

REREET

CERMBETHER

2010F P AREMEFBRMBTE 2 [ ZATER
EvN:d

CERMRHRDIRCERZIB M

01 FREHBFEERE
CERMNEEE R HE

0 EFEHECESE(FEHE)

011 FEHELEERRR(FE)

Corporate Governance Asia Magazine

Asian Excellence Recognition Awards 2011 (China):
Asia’s Best CEO (Investor Relations)

Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)

Best Investor Relations Professional

Best Investor Relations

Best Environmental Responsibility

Yazhou Zhoukan Magazine
“The Largest Capitalization Company Award” in
Mainland Enterprises Listed in Hong Kong Ranking 2010

Capital Magazine and Capital Weekly Magazine
Corporate Social Responsibility Awards 2011

Corporate Governance Asia Magazine

Asian Corporate Director Recognition Awards
2011 (China)

Asia’s Best Companies for Corporate Governance
2011 (China)

CERHME

%/\FéEZKEP BRI 2 [ E AR B G L H
Bt

MerComm, Inc.

BIFRFIRREE 2 -

RMOHEE - MIkILEEAER - RE(EHRE)
s R AR - sRAE(ELRRE)
SRTE-ERQERGER - BRE(ERE)
BETE-EQERBER - EREE(RERET)

BMEE LR
DARABARTECEAEZ PETELEIFS

Capital Magazine
“Outstanding Consumer Goods Enterprise Award” in
the 6th Capital Outstanding China Enterprise Awards

MerComm, Inc.

International Annual Report Competition Awards:

Food Distributors, Processors & Wholesalers: Bronze
(Traditional Format)

Manufacturing & Distributing: Bronze (Traditional Format)
Multi-Industry — Products & Services: Honors
(Traditional Format)

Multi-Industry — Products & Services: Honors

(Interior Design)

Retail Asia Publishing
“China’s top retailer bronze award” in Retail Asia Pacific
Top 500 Awards

MerComm, Inc.
2010 4F %} 45 J¢ [ Galaxy Award | 2 & —# &
RDDZHE‘J§E7§

(RB#H)

FREIE e SN IR 2 RIEE EE G
(MBS
EERKEEBR)Z
REREERR
REREEMEAR
REEBOEERE S
REAMRENEREE A
REEEENREEEREE S
RERFRERZRAFHEE-H

MerComm, Inc.

Annual Report 2010 received “Silver Award” in Galaxy
Awards Competition in the category of Retail —
Grocery/Food

Ta Kung Pao Newspaper
“Best Management Team Award” in Golden Bauhinia Award

Asiamoney Magazine

Corporate Governance Poll (Hong Kong):

Best for Investor Relations

Best Investor Relations Officer

Ranked 2nd in Best Overall for Corporate Governance
Ranked 2nd in Best for Disclosure and Transparency
Ranked 2nd in Best for Responsibilities of Management
and the Board of Directors

Ranked 2nd in Best for Shareholders’ Rights and
Equitable Treatment

CEEMB TS
2IRFEF 10002 RAEEDFEXNLE

Yazhou Zhoukan Magazine
“Outstanding Performance Award” in Global Chinese
Business 1000

(BB
0MEFEE BB L

Economic Digest Magazine
2011 Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award
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CHATRMAN'S STATEMENT
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BRARAIERIFERAROER - WRT
HEEW - BUFEINHEEBEER TS - &
SAKERREEMNE - BRIBERKATEK
RHEEMEEZBR -

HE_T——F+-A=+—HILEE  K&&E
B4R 4 & L) AH¥110,164,000,0007T
BEFEREBAEING.4% - XATIREELEE
i H A& 5 2,832,000,0007T © B 2= 4F R B R 4
501% c EHHREEEHREARETE M
B AEBEE-_T——F+-A=+—
BIEFEAZLESELENARRRRENEE
BarEmFEEF R 0.3% - HRBERR
ZE-TFRMAREINE D EBUCHER
BEMMERE  MEBIRALRE  ARK
EEMRFTEBRTZERE - UBKARE N
o HEAEERLCBEFERZELE -

Despite facing a volatile economic environment, the Group
continued to grow steadily in 2011 thanks in large part to the
continuous expansion of our core businesses through new
acquisitions and organic growth, a strengthened market-leading
position, and a focused consumer business platform. These have
positioned us better to forge ahead with our goal of becoming the
largest consumer goods company in China.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s consolidated
turnover amounted to approximately HK$110,164 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 26.4%. Consolidated
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders amounted to
HK$2,832 million, representing a decrease of 50.1% year-on-
year. Excluding the after-tax effect of asset revaluation and major
disposals, the Group’s underlying consolidated profit attributable
to the Company’s shareholders contributed by the core
businesses for the year ended 31 December 2011 would have
decreased by 0.3%. The imposition of the Urban Maintenance
and Construction Tax and Education Surcharges on foreign
enterprises since the end of 2010, higher labour costs and the
accelerated expansion of our retail network into new regions
have raised cost pressures, thereby affecting the Group’s results
during the year under review.
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R DM
Turnover by geographical region
(from continuing operations)

‘B 7 tbPercentage (%)

1.2%

2011 . 5.0%

I 90.8%

1.5%
2010 [ 8.5%

1.9%
o009 M 10.7%

e 8r.4%

90.0%

TR 5% Al R [ 3 6
Profit before tax by geographical region
(from continuing operations)

‘B 7 kb Percentage (%)

0.7%
201 o — 30 6%
"

59.7%

1.3%
2010 | 32.5%

2.1%
I 42.3%
2009 P 55.6%

66.2%
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9=
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EENEROBFERFE

ARFER —_ZE——FA/F -+—H(EH—)
E-ET-——FRA-T+HBE(EHR)(HEEMRK
PRENEEREROCBEELFE - A
FTERHEBR _EZ——FRR - +HAHET
HREBEFASTRE EREZBRRZ 5% -
FTERMNBEXHERABBZBRE  BR=Z
——FRA+N\RB(EHRE) NFUE =128
REARAB 2RO BEELEESEZEGRA
Al N ABBEFERABER-_TN\HEE
ERLZ+NE WEELTFE -
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Hit
Other

Dividends

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.32 per share for
2011 (2010: HK$0.38 per share) payable on or around 15 June
2012 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on 31 May 2012. Together with the
interim dividend of HK$0.15 per share, the total dividend for 2011
will amount to HK$0.47 per share (2010: HK$0.52 per share).

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 21 May 2012 to Friday, 25 May 2012, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to determine the identity
of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting to be held on 25 May 2012, all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Standard
Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18 May
2012 for registration.
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Subject to the approval of shareholders at the meeting, the
proposed final dividend will be payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company after
the close of business at 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 31 May 2012
and the register of members of the Company will be closed on
Thursday, 31 May 2012, during which no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all share transfer documents, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates lodged with the Company’s Share
Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 30 May 2012 for registration.

In 2011, our strategy of focusing on the development of our core
consumer businesses continued to pay off as we have further
consolidated the leading positions of each of our core businesses
of retall, beer, food and beverage in China. For instance, our
multi-format retail chain has been a leading retail chain group
in China, with its turnover reaching HK$70,088 million in 2011.
“ETE Snow” is the world’s best-selling single beer brand and
had sales volume of approximately 9,172,000 kiloliters in 2011.
The Group’s food division is also the largest supplier of Chinese
foodstuffs in Hong Kong and one of the leading integrated food
suppliers in China. Meanwhile, led by our flagship “t4E C’estbon”
purified water brand, the total sales volume of the Group’s
beverage division was approximately 2,642,000 kiloliters in 2011,
solidifying its leading position in Guangdong and enhancing its
penetration in other provinces.

Leveraging our extensive retail network of around 4,000 stores
in China, we strive to strengthen the market position of our
retail division by committing to a strategy of national expansion
that emphasizes strong regional leadership and synergistic
opportunities with our multi-format business platform. In 2011,
we continued to expand our footprint in various markets by
establishing new supermarkets and specialty stores. We also
improved our competitive edge by enriching our product mix,
boosting sales of our mid to high-end products and improving
our customers’ shopping experience.
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Moreover, the Group signed an agreement to acquire a 100%
interest in Jiangxi Hongkelong Department Store Investment
Company Limited in July 2011. The acquisition will enable the
Group to expand its retail business into Jiangxi Province and gain
an advantageous market position in the region. Meanwhile, the
Group has completed the acquisition from the parent company
the entire equity interest in a retail drug store chain in the third
quarter of 2011. The 152-store retail network will create synergies
with the Group’s healthcare retail chains and will enhance its
pharmaceutical product mix. These two acquisitions will further
enhance our network and competitiveness in China’s retail
market, and propel the expansion of our retail business.

Despite the increasingly intense competition in China’s beer
industry, our beer division continued to be a leader in the China
market as the result of the establishment of new breweries, our
concerted efforts in brand building and successful acquisitions.
Several investments were made during the year, including the
equity stake acquisitions of Hangzhou Xihu Beer Asahi Co., Ltd.
(the remaining 55%) and Zhejiang Xihu Beer Asahi Co., Ltd. (the
remaining 25%). By the end of 2011, we had a market share of
over 20% in China’s beer market and an annual sales volume
of approximately 10,235,000 kiloliters, further strengthening
our position as China’s largest brewer in terms of volume.
Remarkable achievements were also seen in various aspects,
such as increased average selling price and operating profit,
thanks to our strategies of widening product mix and boosting
premium product sales.

During the year under review, our food division has further
strengthened its “F12 Ng Fung” brand, which features premium
food quality and safety, by stepping up its efforts in brand
promotion and marketing. To maintain our competitive edge
during the year under review, we continued to enhance our
integrated quality supply chain, optimize our product mix and add
value to our products. The Group’s assorted foodstuff operation
also expanded its market share in China by making inroads into a
number of provinces.

With our strategy of focusing resources on developing selected
target markets to form the backbone of our future nationwide
distribution network, our beverage division recorded sustained
growth momentum in overall sales volume and established a
stronger market position in 2011. In addition, we are confident
that our joint venture with Kirin Holdings Company, Limited,
bringing together the Group’s extensive distribution capabilities
in China and Kirin Holdings Company, Limited’s outstanding
product development capabilities, will help make the division a
powerful contender in China’s non-alcoholic beverage market.
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Looking towards 2012, we expect the operating environment
in China to remain challenging, with consumer sentiment still
affected by volatility in the global economy, primarily the unfolding
sovereign debt crisis in Europe. Nevertheless, backed by a rising
disposable income per capita as a result of steady economic
growth and the Central Government’s initiatives to promote
consumer spending in its “12th Five-Year Plan”, we believe that
the consumer market in China will continue to demonstrate
relatively stronger resilience to short term market fluctuations and
remain optimistic about the development of the country’s retail
market in the long run.

The Group has successfully built its market leadership in its core
businesses through strategic expansion of market share and
delivering steady business growth in the past 10 years. This
track record has proven the strength of our strategy of national
expansion that emphasizes strong regional leadership and
synergistic opportunities with our core businesses. In the coming
year, we will continue to reinforce our market leading position in
China by taking advantage of our strong presence both nationally
and in regional markets, as well as our extensive distribution
network, reputable brands and diversified product portfolio. We
will also seek out investment opportunities in a prudent manner
so as to further expand our business, and maintain a tight grip
on expenses as we enhance the economies of scale of our
operations.

Building on the strong consumer business platform that we
have created over the years and our proven strategy of market
expansion, we are well positioned to create increasing value for
our shareholders.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank our valued shareholders, customers and business
associates for their trust and unwavering support. | would also
like to thank our management and staff for their dedication and
wholehearted commitment.

Qiao Shibo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2012
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The Group endeavors to uphold high standards of corporate
governance and to maintain effective communications with the
investor community. We believe that shareholder value can be
enhanced by clearly communicating the Group’s corporate
strategies, operating performance and the latest developments
through regular contact with investors. To this end, the Group
strives to provide the investor community timely and accurate
corporate information through various channels, including one-
on-one meetings, plant visits, luncheons and conferences
arranged by financial institutions. In 2011, the Group organized
approximately 350 meetings with over 1,600 fund managers and
analysts.

The Group conducted global roadshows in 2011 at which our
senior management met with institutional investors in Europe,
Australia, South Korea and other Asian countries, updating them
on the Group’s latest business developments. To help analysts
and fund managers better understand our businesses, we
organized an extra corporate day in February 2011 in addition
to our annual Corporate Day in October 2011. In these two
events, more than 150 investors and analysts visited the Group’s
operations in Chengdu, Chongging, Dongguan and Shenzhen in
total.

Our efforts in our commitment to a high level of transparency
earned us a widespread recognition from international business
and financial magazines and related organizations. In 2011,
the Group received a number of awards in the “Corporate
Governance Poll 2011” which was organized by Asiamoney,
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including “Best for Investor Relations” and “Best Investor
Relations Officer”, in addition to ranking the second in the “Best
Overall for Corporate Governance”, “Best for Disclosure and
Transparency”, “Best for Responsibilities of Management and
the Board of Directors” and “Best for Shareholders’ Rights and
Equitable Treatment”. The Group was also granted numerous
awards relating to investor relations and corporate governance
from Corporate Governance Asia. Furthermore, the Group’s 2010
annual report won four awards at the “International Annual Report
Competition Awards” and the Silver Award in Galaxy Awards
Competition 2011 in the category of Retail - Grocery/Food, both
held by MerComm, Inc.

Share Performance

In 2011, the global stock market was overshadowed by the
concerns about Europe’s debt crisis, inflation, as well as
monetary tightening in Asia. Under such circumstances, our
share price declined by 16.3% to HK$26.65 in 2011. However,
our performance fared better than that of Hang Seng Index,
which saw a 20.0% drop in 2011. During the year, our daily
closing price hit a 12-month high of HK$35.20 on 1 August 2011.
In line with the decline in the share price, the Company’s market
capitalization dropped by 16.3% to HK$63,946 million.

Year-end closing price and market capitalization of the Company for 2007-2011
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Earnings and dividend per share of the Company for 2007-2011

B ERAF
Earnings per share
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Interim and final dividend per share
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Special dividend per share

AARHZTTLE_T——FHNEAREEREH IR X
Basic cash dividend payout ratio of the Company for 2007-2011
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Dividend Payout Ratio

The Group has always been dedicated to creating and
maximizing corporate value in order to reward our shareholders
for their long-term support. In 2011, the dividend payout ratio
was 39.8%. We strive to pay respectable dividends that balance
the cash generated from the earnings with an appropriate level of
cash needed to fuel future growth.
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Notes:

(1) FHEERR BB E T 2 AR EDRT] - RIBRERAE 2 — TTNFRBLLE[42.2% -
RIROEBZ BRREEEFFEZ T —TFRELERI0.3% ©
Calculation is based on profit attributable to shareholders from the continuing operations.
The dividend payout ratio in 2009 on the same basis would be 42.2%. The dividend payout
ratio in 2010 based on profit attributable to shareholders from core businesses would be
40.3%.

(2) IR TBER_ZTLFREFHRERIBRABRB.6T -
The chart has excluded the distribution of special dividends of HK$0.6 per share in cash in
2007.

(3) FTEENRREEEFIREE B QML HEBH L EWas -
Calculation is based on profit attributable to shareholders less the disposal gain of the
petroleum distribution business in Hong Kong.
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Total Shareholder Return

Facing a slump in the global stock market in 2011, the
Company’s shares achieved a total return of 32.8%, as
measured by share price appreciation and reinvested dividend,
for shareholders over the past five years, outperforming both
the Hang Seng Index and the Hang Seng Commerce & Industry
Index. In 2011, the Company’s total return to shareholders
declined by 14.8%.

Total shareholder return of the Company relative to market indices for 2007-2011
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The Group’s retail division recorded turnover of HK$70,088 million
and attributable profit of HK$1,736 million in 2011, representing
an increase of 27.1% and a decrease of 10.1% year-on-year,
respectively. Excluding the after-tax revaluation surplus, the
attributable profit of the division in 2011 would have decreased by
2.7%.

The Group’s retail division mainly consists of supermarkets, “F
# Chinese Arts & Crafts” stores, “Z=j= CR Care” stores, “%
& Vivo” health and beauty stores and “Pacific Coffee” shops. As
at the end of 2011, the Group operated around 4,000 stores in
China, of which approximately 78% were self-operated while the
rest were franchised.

During the year under review, the home purchase restrictions
imposed by the central government had dragged down property
prices and transaction volumes in some of the major cities in
China. At the same time, the lackluster performance of the stock
markets in China triggered a contraction of wealth nationwide.
Despite the recent decline in the consumer price index in China,
inflation remains high as food prices continue to rise. As a result,
consumer sentiment has been affected. Benefiting from the
rising prices of consumer goods during the year under review,
same store sales of our retail division increased by 10.9% year-
on-year. The Group’s retail division strives to provide the best
products to its customers and will continue to enrich its product
mix so as to meet the customer demand such as consumption
habits and preferences in all localities. The division is also in the
process of renovating its stores and upgrading store layout with
the aim of enhancing the shopping experience of customers while
implementing marketing and promotional campaigns to boost
customer flow at the same time.

During the year under review, the increases in minimum wage
levels in different regions have exerted pressure on the labor-
intensive retail industry. In addition, the Urban Maintenance
and Construction Tax and Education Surcharges imposed on
foreign enterprises have pushed up the operating costs of the
Group’s retail division and influenced its short-term operating
profit. In response to these developments, the division has
carried out various measures to control costs such as leveraging
its economies of scale, modifying operational flow, enhancing
operational efficiency, as well as minimizing energy consumption
and inventory wastage.

To further enhance the market share in China’s retail industry,
the Group’s supermarkets and specialty stores have established
their new stores in various new markets such as Hunan and
Chongging, adopting a strong regional multi-format business
model that will form a solid foundation for future business growth.
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However, as new stores require time to adapt to the consumption
habits of local customers while facing fierce competition from
local retail operators, certain new stores have yet to generate
profit in their initial stages of operation. The Group’s retail
division will engage in a wide range of initiatives to accelerate
improvements in operational performance in the new markets.
These initiatives include building networks in the new regions,
reviewing product mix and operational strategy, optimizing supply
chain management, emphasizing the recruitment and training
of talent, upholding exemplary standards of management and
operational efficiency and fostering the synergies of different
business formats.

Besides, the Group’s retail division entered into an agreement
in July 2011 to acquire a 100% interest in Jiangxi Hongkelong
Department Store Investment Company Limited (“Hongkelong
Department Store”) at a consideration of RMB3,690 million.
Hongkelong Department Store is a competitive retail chain
operator in Jiangxi Province. Through the acquisition, the Group
immediately expands its retail business into Jiangxi Province and
gains an advantageous market position in the region, thereby
further enhancing its network and competitiveness in China’s
retail market.

China’s “12th Five-Year Plan” places great strategic importance
on boosting domestic consumption and transforming the
structure of China’s economic growth, a shift that represents a
long-term impetus to China’s retail industry. Furthermore, rising
personal incomes and the increased threshold for personal
income tax have boosted consumer spending, which have in turn
stimulated sales of daily consumer goods such as fresh food and
other food products.

Looking ahead, the Group’s retail division is committed to its
strategy of national expansion with an emphasis on strong
regional leadership and creating synergies with its multi-format
business platform. In addition to stepping up its efforts in
developing the mature markets to consolidate its leading market
position, the division will also accelerate its expansion into third-
to-fourth tier cities, as well as into counties, towns and villages.
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Geographical turnover breakdown of supermarket operation
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s retail network as at 31 December 2011
© =k Jilin @ I Zhejiang ® BFE  Shaanxi
® #= Liaoning @® E® Guangdong D FE  Ningxia
©® itm= Beijing & ## Hong Kong A4 KE7  Inner Mongolia
O X3z Tianjin ® ®FY Macau @ H&  Gansu
© T4t Hebei @ E#A Guangxi @ &\  Qinghai
® LE Shandong ® @ Hunan
@ I% Jiangsu ® ;#4t Hubei
© L& Shanghai @ ZE Chongqing IR
O Z# Anhui ® 5T% Henan Total number of stores:

*H 10K AN & F 3Tz Of which, 10 stores are located in Singapore and Malaysia
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The Group’s beer division recorded turnover of HK$26,689 million
and attributable profit of HK$785 million in 2011, representing
year-on-year increases of 23.9% and 14.6%, respectively.

During the year, the Group’s beer division continued to strengthen
its sales network, enhance its services at points of sale, and
adopt sales strategies tailored to specific market segments so
as to boost sales. However, during the third quarter of the year
under review, a traditional peak season for beer sales, an unusual
number of rainy and cloudy days and higher-than-normal levels
of rainfall recorded in the Yangtze River Delta region, of which
being one of the leading markets, has affected the Group’s
overall growth of beer sales. In 2011, the Group’s beer sales
volume increased by 10% to approximately 10,235,000 kiloliters.
This has marked a milestone for the division as its sales volume
has reached over 10,000,000 kiloliters for the first time. In 2011,
sales volume of the Group’s national “E7E Snow” brand was
approximately 9,172,000 kiloliters, approximately 90% of the total
sales volume. The Group’s beer division has a market share of
over 20% as at the end of 2011 and our “F1E Snow” brand beer
has been the best-selling single beer brand in China in terms of
sales volume for seven consecutive years®.

* According to the research statistics of China Alcoholic Drinks Industry
Association
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Further industry consolidation intensified market competition of
beer industry in China. The rising costs of primary and secondary
raw materials, together with higher labor costs and the Urban
Maintenance and Construction Tax and Education Surcharges
imposed on foreign enterprises, have driven up operating costs.
By leveraging its economies of scale, the Group’s beer division
further enhanced its procurement, production and energy
efficiency to relieve cost pressures. In addition, the division made
a concerted effort to enhance product mix and to lift sales of
premium beer products, which in turn raise average selling prices
and stabilize profitability.

To further consolidate its leading position in China’s beer market,
the Group’s beer division continued to enhance its production
capacity by building and acquiring new breweries as well as
reconfiguring and expanding its existing breweries. The division’s
newly acquired breweries in Liaoning, Jiangsu, Henan, Shanghai
and Guizhou commenced operation during the year under review.
As at the end of 2011, the Group operated around 80 breweries
in China with an aggregate annual production capacity of more
than 15,300,000 kiloliters.

Looking ahead, the Group’s beer division will continue to promote
the “FE1E Snow” brand with “The Great Expedition” (“BEXJE")
marketing series with the aim of enhancing its brand reputation
and customer loyalty to the brand. The beer division will foster
cooperation with suppliers and enhance its sales network
to strengthen its leading position in the market. At the same
time, the division will continue to seek and evaluate investment
opportunities in a prudent manner while pursuing organic growth
in order to achieve greater market share and to consolidate its
leading market position.
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Geographical distribution of the Group's breweries as at 31 December 2011
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The food division reported turnover of HK$10,706 million and
attributable profit of HK$278 million in 2011, representing an
increase of 28.9% and a decrease of 33.5% year-on-year,
respectively. Excluding the net revaluation surplus and after-
tax profits from the reduction of certain equity interests in its
strategic investments, the division’s attributable profit would have
decreased by 18.1% year-on-year in 2011.

During the year under review, the rising price of pig feeds and
the market supply of live pigs resulted in higher costs of live
pigs. With higher costs of procuring live pigs, raw materials and
labor, as well as lower consumer demand for pork arising from
higher pork prices, the business environment for China’s meat
industry has become challenging, thereby affected the division’s
operating profit. In order to maintain its competitive edge, the
division enhanced the integrated quality supply system for
livestock raising, slaughtering, meat processing, cold storage and
trading to points of sale, while at the same time continued the
enhancement in product mix and value-added products.

Benefiting from the synergy with its livestock raising business in
China, the division’s livestock distribution operation in Hong Kong
maintained its leadership in market share. However, the rising
cost pressure of mainland imported live pigs was not able to be
absorbed in a short period of time and has affected the operating
profit for the year under review.
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Through active promotion and marketing of the “H% Ng Fung”
brand, the Group’s assorted foodstuff operation recorded a
satisfactory growth in its operating results during the year under
review. By setting up sales branches in Wanan, Hefei and
Shanghai, the division’s frozen food and ice-cream operation
made further inroads into Zhejiang nearby markets of Jiangsu and
Anhui. The operation also enhanced the market share and brand
reputation in Jiangsu by launching various marketing and brand
promotion activities, which in turn increased both sales volume
and profitability.

The operating profit of the marine fishing and aquatic products
processing operation was affected by the rising diesel price during
the year under review. Leveraging its trading platform for aquatic
products in Hangzhou and Shanghai, the division expanded its
deep-sea aquatic product business in China under the “FH% Ng
Fung” brand, boosting its brand reputation in this market.

Looking ahead, China remains a key market for the growth of
the Group’s food division. Upon completion of the organization
restructuring and team building according to its strategic plan in
the year under review, the division will swiftly focus on enhancing
its operational efficiency, speed up its development strategy and
seek to strengthen and expand its business in China through
acquisitions.
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Geographical distribution of the Group's food supply bases as at 31 December 2011
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The beverage division reported turnover of HK$3,112 million
and attributable profit of HK$126 million in 2011, representing
an increase of 49.6% and a decrease of 18.7% year-on-year,
respectively. The decrease in attributable profit was mainly
resulted from the diluted earnings contribution as a result of the
formation of a joint venture with Kirin Holdings Company, Limited
(“Kirin Holdings”) in mid-August 2011. On the other hand, the
formation of the joint venture resulted in a net cash consideration
received by the Group of approximately HK$3.2 billion.

With its flagship “148 C’estbon” brand of purified water, the
Group’s beverage division recorded total sales volume of
approximately 2,642,000 kiloliters in 2011, representing an
increase of 34.5% year-on-year. During the year under review, the
division’s strategy of focusing resources on developing selected
target markets paid off. Our beverage network now covers all of
Sichuan, while Hunan has become our second largest market
after Guangdong. Moreover, the division’s “AN#kIL Jialinshan”
mineral water operation modified and consolidated its distribution
channel and introduced lightweight packaging. Sustained sales
volume growth delivered gross profit growth, which in turn
alleviated most of the pressure from rising packaging and other
operating costs. In a move designed to further enhance the brand
awareness of the “/&& C’estbon”, the division entered into a
strategic cooperation agreement with the Chinese National Table
Tennis Team, for which “/&E C’estbon” was made the exclusive
official provider of drinking water for the team.
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Pursuant to the establishment of the joint venture, the existing
products of “EH## Kirin” operation have started to be sold in China
through the division’s extensive distribution channels, realizing the
synergy from shared resources. The beverage market in China
continues to show considerable growth potential and is paving
the way for the sustained development of the Group’s beverage
division. Riding on the division’s extensive distribution capabilities
in China and complemented by the extensive product portfolio,
operational and technical expertise, as well as excellent product
development capabilities of Kirin Holdings, the division will be
transformed to a powerful contender in China’s non-alcoholic
beverage market.
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s beverage plants as at 31 December 2011

© 74 Hebei 1% @ #d  Hubei 1%
® SI&  Jiangsu 2* @ #E  Hunan 1*
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O mi Sichuan 1.1 0 5@ Hainan ™ Total number of beverage plants: 17
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3 beverage plants in Shanghai have been injected after formation of the 60:40 joint venture with Kirin Holdings Company, Limited
* OEM#&mH/E OEM beverage plants
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As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s consolidated cash and
bank balance amounted to HK$18,514 million. The Group’s
borrowings as at 31 December 2011 were HK$15,534 million
with HK$7,092 million repayable within one year, HK$8,438
million repayable after one year but within five years and HK$4
million repayable after five years.

The Group was at a net cash position as at 31 December 2011
and 31 December 2010.

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars.
As at 31 December 2011, 41.7% of the Group’s cash deposit
balance was held in Hong Kong dollars, 55.9% in Renminbi and
1.9% in US dollars; whereas 84.5% of the Group’s borrowings
was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and 12.7% in Renminbi
and 2.8% in US dollars. The Group’s borrowings are principally
on a floating rate basis. To mitigate the interest rate exposure,
the Group entered into certain interest rate swaps to hedge part
of its borrowings.

As the majority of the Group’s assets, liabilities, revenue and
payments are denominated in functional currencies of the
respective group entity, the expected foreign currency exposure is
minimal.

As at 31 December 2011, assets with a carrying value of HK$306
million (31 December 2010: HK$234 million) were pledged for
bank borrowings and notes payable.

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group, excluding its associated
companies, had a staff size of around 200,000, amongst which
about 95% were employed in the Chinese Mainland, whilst the
rest were mainly in Hong Kong and overseas. Remuneration
packages are assessed in accordance with the nature of job
duties, individual performance and market trends with built-in
merit components, paid in the form of cash bonuses.

By order of the Board
CHEN LANG

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2012
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1. BEREE
Mr. Qiao Shibo
2. BREA%LHE

Mr. Chen Lang

aged 57

was re-appointed Executive Director of the Group on 6 March
2009 and has been appointed Chairman with effect from 30
April 2009. He was appointed Executive Director of the Group
in July 2001 and Deputy Managing Director in November 2001.
He was re-designated as Non-Executive Director in March 2006
and resigned in February 2008. Mr. Qiao is the Director and
President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and
the President of China Resources National Corporation. He is
also the Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors of China Vanke
Co., Ltd. Mr. Qiao holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Literature from
the Jilin University, China. He joined China Resources National
Corporation and China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in
1992.

aged 46

was appointed Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
(previously named as Managing Director) of the Group in
January 2009. Mr. Chen is a Vice President of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited, and Director of China Resources
National Corporation as well as the Chairman of China Resources
Snow Breweries (China) Investment Co., Ltd., China Resources
Ng Fung Limited and China Resources Beverage (Holdings)
Limited. He was previously the Chief Executive Officer of China
Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd., and the Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Logic Limited (now
renamed as China Resources Gas Group Limited). Prior to that,
he was the Chairman and General Manager of China Resources
Development and Investment Co., Limited and was in charge of
a number of substantial investments in Canada and Thailand of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. Mr. Chen holds a
Bachelor of Economics degree from Anhui University, China and
a Master of Business Administration degree from the University
of San Francisco, USA. He is currently the visiting professor of
Anhui University, China. He joined China Resources National
Corporation and China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in
1986 and 1989 respectively.
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Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank
4. FRARESTE

Mr. Yan Biao
5 MXERE4E

Mr. Du Wenmin .
6. AEWEE

Mr. Shi Shanbo

- L |
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aged 50

has been an Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the
Group since June 2009 and Company Secretary since August
2009. Mr. Lai was previously the Executive Director, Non-
Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
of China Resources Microelectronics Limited. Prior to that, he
served as the Chief Financial Officer of Eagle Brand Holdings
Ltd., which is a company listed in Singapore and before then, he
served as the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Logic International Holdings Ltd. (now known as China Resources
Gas Group Limited). Mr. Lai has a Bachelor of Commerce degree
from the University of Western Australia and a graduate diploma
in Business and Administration from the Curtin University of
Technology of Western Australia. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant and a fellow member
of CPA Australia. Mr. Lai joined the Group in 2009.

aged 50

was appointed Executive Director of the Group in December
1994 and Non-Executive Director in March 2006. Mr. Yan is a
Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and
China Resources National Corporation and is the Director of Legal
Affairs of the China Resources Group. He is also a Non-Executive
Director of China Resources Land Limited and a supervisor of
China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Mr.
Yan has a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Peking University,
China and an MBA degree from the University of San Francisco,
USA.
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aged 48

was appointed Director of the Group in September 2007. He
is the Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. He is also a Non-
Executive Director of China Resources Power Holdings Company
Limited, China Resources Land Limited, China Resources
Cement Holdings Limited, China Resources Gas Group Limited
and China Resources Microelectronics Limited (its listing position
was withdrawn on 2 November 2011), and Director of China
Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. He was
previously Managing Director of China Resources Construction
(Holdings) Limited and the Chief Audit Executive of the Internal
Audit and Supervision Department of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited. Mr. Du obtained a Master’s Degree in
Business and Administration from the University of San Francisco,
USA. He joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in
1985.

aged 46

was appointed Director of the Group in November 2010. He is
the Assistant President of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited and was the audit Director of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited. He is also a Non-Executive Director of China
Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, China Resources
Microelectronics Limited (its listing position was withdrawn on 2
November 2011) and China Resources Land Limited. He is also
a Director of China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He
worked as a Deputy General Manager of the Finance Department
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and a General
Manager of China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company
Limited. He was the Chairman of China Resources Jinhua Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from
November 2006 to March 2010. He was also the Vice Chairman
and General Manager of China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He
holds a Master’s degree in Economics from Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics. Mr. Shi joined China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited in 1991.
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7. BLA
Mr. Wei Bin
8. RENKEL
Dr. Zhang Haipeng
9. EARESAE
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh
10. FREELT
Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
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aged 42

was appointed Director of the Group in November 2010. He has
been appointed the Chief Financial Officer of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited with effect from 1 April 2011 and is
the General Manager of its Finance Department. He is also a Non-
Executive Director of China Resources Gas Group Limited, China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited, China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Microelectronics
Limited and China Resources Land Limited, which are companies
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
except China Resources Microelectronics Limited whose listing
position was withdrawn on 2 November 2011, and a Director
of China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
and Shan Dong Dong-E E-Jiao Co., Ltd, which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Wei holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Auditing from Zhongnan University of Economics in China and
a Master’s degree in Finance from Jinan University in China, and
is a Senior Accountant and a Senior Auditor in China. He is also
a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Wei joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 2001.
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aged 40

was appointed Director of the Group in November 2010. He is the
CEO of China Resources Healthcare Group Limited. He is also a
director of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited, China
Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Shan Dong
Dong-E E-Jiao Co., Ltd, China Resources (Shenyang) Sanyo
Compressor Co., Ltd. and China Resources Asset Management
Limited, a non-executive director of China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Land Limited and
China Resources Microelectronics Limited (its listing position
was withdrawn on 2 November 2011), as well as a supervisor of
China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd.. Dr. Zhang used to be
the General Manager of the Strategy Management Department
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. Prior to joining
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, Dr. Zhang was
a Partner of McKinsey & Company. Dr. Zhang also worked at
China Merchants Holdings (International) Company Limited as
Director of Internal Control and Auditing. Dr. Zhang received an
MBA degree from Goizueta Business School, Emory University
in the USA and M.D. degree from Peking Union Medical College.
Dr. Zhang joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in
July 2009.

aged 58
has been a Director of the Group since 1988. He is also a Director
of Forcon Investments Limited, Sino Petrochem Development
Limited and China & Overseas Resources Limited. Mr. Houang
obtained his Bachelor of Business Studies degree from the
Polytechnic of North Staffordshire, United Kingdom.

FCPA (Practising),

GBS, OBE, JP, aged 58

has been a Director of the Group since March 2003. He is Senior
Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants
(Practising), member of the Eleventh National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and former
member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR. Dr. Li
holds directorships in a number of listed companies including Sun
Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport International
Holdings Limited, Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited,
RoadShow Holdings Limited and Bank of Communications Co.,
Ltd. Dr. Li was a Director of Meadville Holdings Limited.
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1. R

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi

12. REBEE

Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan

13. BT A

Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon
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GBS, OBE, JP, aged 62

has been a Director of the Group since November 2005. Dr.
Cheng is a practising solicitor and the senior partner of Messrs.
P.C. Woo & Co. Dr. Cheng was a member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong. He is the founder chairman of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary
President and Chairman Emeritus. Dr. Cheng currently holds
directorships in K. Wah International Holdings Limited, China
Mobile Limited, City Telecom (H.K.) Limited, Towngas China
Company Limited, Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited,
Kader Holdings Company Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited and Tian An China
Investments Company Limited, all being public listed companies
in Hong Kong. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of ARA Asset Management Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on Singapore Exchange Limited. His other directorships
in public listed companies in the last 3 years include Galaxy
Entertainment Group Limited and China COSCO Holdings
Company Limited, both being public listed companies in Hong
Kong, and ARA Asset Management (Fortune) Limited (formerly
known as ARA Asset Management (Singapore) Limited), which
manages Fortune Real Estate Investment Trust, a real estate
investment trust listed on Singapore Exchange Limited.
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GBS, JP, aged 47

has been a Director of the Group since November 2006. He is
the Executive Director and President of Asia Financial Holdings
Limited and Asia Insurance Company Limited. He also acts as an
Advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong
Branch. Apart from the roles in the business community, Mr.
Chan also serves as a Deputy to The National People’s Congress
of the People’s Republic of China and is a former member of
the Legislative Council and Executive Council of the Hong Kong
SAR. In addition, Mr. Chan holds directorship in a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong, including Chen Hsong Holdings
Limited, City e-Solutions Limited, New Heritage Holdings Limited
and Yau Lee Holdings Limited. Mr. Chan was a Director of
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited.

GBS, CBE, JP, aged 66

has been a Director of the Group since November 2006. He had
been a career civil servant for over 36 years before retiring from
the civil service in 2002. Mr. Siu rose to the rank of Secretary,
Government Secretariat in 1993 and served a number of high-
ranking government positions, namely the Secretary for Economic
Services, Secretary for Transport, Head of Central Policy Unit and
eventually retired from his last posting as Secretary for Planning,
Environment & Lands. Mr. Siu now serves as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Transport International Holdings
Limited and two of its subsidiaries, Leighton Asia Limited, and
Television Broadcasts Limited.

aged 55

has been appointed as Vice President of the Group since
November 2010. He was an Executive Director of the Group from
January 2000 to November 2010, and Deputy Managing Director
from March 2006 to November 2010. Mr. Wang is a Director
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China
Resources National Corporation. He is also an Executive Director
of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited and is responsible
for the entire operation of the Group’s beer operation. Mr. Wang
has a Bachelor of Finance degree from the People’s University of
China. He has previously worked in the China National Economic
Committee and held key management positions in a Shenzhen
based conglomerate. Mr. Wang joined China Resources National
Corporation and China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in
1994,
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aged 44
was appointed Vice President of the Group in September 2009.
He has been the Chief Executive Officer of China Resources
Vanguard Company Limited since June 2009. Mr. Hong joined
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1992. He
was the Chief Operating Officer of China Resources Vanguard
Company Limited between June 2006 and May 2009 and prior
to that, he had been its Chief Financial Officer since April 2003.
Mr. Hong holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from the
Hangzhou University of Commerce (now known as Zhejiang
Gongshang University). He has extensive experience in financial
and corporate management.

aged 51

was appointed Vice President of the Group in May 2011. He has
been the Managing Director of China Resources C’estbon Food
& Beverage (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (previously named as C’estbon
Food & Beverage (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd./Shenzhen C’estbon
Food And Drink Company Limited) since January 1997. Mr. Liu
was the Marketing Director of China Resources Snow Breweries
Limited between September 2000 and January 2003. He had
also held key positions in two Shenzhen based enterprises. Mr.
Liu majored in Industrial Economics at the People’s University of
China. He has extensive experience in marketing and corporate
management of fast moving consumer goods especially
beverages.

aged 46
was appointed Vice President of the Group in May 2011. He has
been the Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Ng Fung
Limited since 2011. Mr. Wang joined China Resources National
Corporation in 1988. He was previously the Senior Vice President
of China Resources Retail (Group) Company Limited. Mr. Wang
holds a Bachelor of Science degree and a Bachelor’s degree
in Management Science from the University of Science and
Technology of China, as well as a Master’s degree in Engineering
from Tsinghua University. He has extensive experience in strategic
planning and corporate management.
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In alphabetical order

aged 39

is the General Manager of the Group’s Corporate Development
Department and is in charge of the corporate finance function.
Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor’'s and Master’s degree of Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and
a OneMBA issued by five partner universities in four continents.
She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Institute of Management Accountants. Prior
to joining the Group, she had worked for international accounting
firms, served as a Chief Financial Officer in a Japanese company
and worked for a Hong Kong regulatory body. Ms. Chan has
extensive experience in audit and advisory, corporate finance and
regulatory compliance. She joined the Group in December 2008.

aged 47

is the General Manager of the Group’s Legal and Secretarial
Department. Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from
the University of International Business and Economics, China. He
is a member of All China Lawyers Association and is qualified to
practice law in the Chinese Mainland. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Cheng had worked in private practice and has extensive
experience in corporate and commercial legal work as well as
regulatory compliance. He joined the Group in July 2008.

aged 34

is the General Manager of the Group’s Information Technology
Department and is in charge of the strategic planning and
implementation of the Group’s informatization programs. He
has been appointed the Information Technology Director of
China Resources Microelectronics Limited, a subsidiary of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited that was formerly listed
in Hong Kong, since August 2006, where he was in charge of the
construction of the company’s informatization programs. Prior
to that, he worked for a renowned international management
consulting firm to provide consultancy and implementation
services on process improvement and informatization to
several companies, gaining extensive experience in designing,
implementing and managing informatization programs. Mr. Dong
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from the Zhengzhou
Institute of Aeronautical Industry Management. He joined the
Group in March 2011.
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aged 45

is the General Manager of the Group’s Internal Audit Department.
Mr. Lai holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and an MBA degree
from the University of Manchester, United Kingdom. He is a fellow
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to
joining the Group, he had worked for international accounting
firms in Hong Kong and also acted as the financial controller and
company secretary for several listed companies in Hong Kong.
Mr. Lai has extensive experience in internal and external auditing,
finance and accounting, regulatory compliance and company
secretarial matters. He joined the Group in September 2008.

aged 31

is the General Manager of the Group’s Corporate Management
Department and is in charge of human resources and
administration management. Ms. Li holds a Bachelor’s degree
of Economics and a Bachelor’s degree of Art in English from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies. Prior to joining the
Group, she had worked for China Resources Land Limited and
China Resources (Holdings) Company. Ms. Li has about eight
years of experience in Human resources and administration
management. She Joined the Group in April 2011.

aged 48

is the General Manager of the Group’s Finance Department and
in charge of the finance and treasury functions. Ms. Tang holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy and a Master’s degree in
International Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong.
She is a member of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants and has over twenty years of experience in finance
and accounting. She joined the Group in January 1993.

aged 46

is the General Manager of the Group’s Strategic Planning and
Investor Relations Department. He has been voted as Hong
Kong's best investor relations officer in Asiamoney’s Corporate
Governance Poll and China's best investor relations professional
in a survey conducted by Corporate Governance Asia. Mr. Tse
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Electronic Engineering from the
University of Sussex, England. He also holds an MBA degree
from the University of Stirling, Scotland and a Master’s degree
in Finance from the University of Southampton, England. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Tse had worked for several renowned
international investment banks in areas of equity research and
corporate finance. He has extensive experience in financial
analysis and strategic planning. He joined the Group in March
2002.
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The Board believes that risk management is an integral part
of corporate governance. Effective and efficient corporate risk
management will facilitate the Group’s business development and
operation by setting the appropriate risk appetite, maintaining an
optimal risk level and more importantly, proactively responding to
risks. It therefore helps protect shareholder value and safeguard
the Group’s reputation. Through putting in place proper risk
management control over key businesses and carrying out
regular reviews and updates, the Group strives to reduce the
likelihood and the effect of risks before they occur, and deal with
problems effectively when they arise.

While the Group’s risk management is the responsibility of
every management team member and is embedded in the daily
operation of every business unit, our risk management process
is based on a decentralized model with a centralized monitoring

B BAERREAB SR - DWFAFIE  system. The Group’s strategy is to maintain a streamlined risk
ZHERR - management process to identify, analyze and mitigate various
risks in an efficient and effective manner.
EEg Board of Directors
A ER Risk monitoring
EHAR R HE Reporting on regular and ad hoc basis
EREN Business Units
s—%: > B=H: O E=H: Step1: > Step 2: > Step3:
Bl E B D EBRESR & Risk Identification Risk Analysis & Risk Monitoring &
R R BT Mitigation Performance Evaluation
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We identify and assess risks both at group and individual
business unit levels, and incorporate risk management into
our business planning. At the end of each year, each business
unit undertakes a review of potential risks which fall within their
respective business and operation area. The business unit then
performs risk reviews including risk mapping and evaluation of
their probability of occurrence and impact. Identified risks are
reported together with the explanation of its nature and proposed
risk management strategies to the Group during the business
plan review session at the beginning of each year. In addition
to the annual exercise, our regular reporting system of each
business unit also facilitates ongoing risk identification and the
reporting of risks.

When risks are identified, the assigned risk owner is responsible
for analyzing the probability of their occurrence and potential
impact. Priority will be given to risks with high probability and
negative impact. The risk owner then designs appropriate
procedures and actions for risk mitigation and acts accordingly.
Implementation cost is also taken into account when devising
the action plan. During the implementation, we also emphasize
the balance of risks and benefits to ensure long-term business
success.

After risk identification, analysis and mitigation, evaluation
reports are submitted to the Group through the regular reporting
mechanism. To prevent the same risks from occurring again,
preventive actions and procedures to improve operational
efficiency are also incorporated into the internal control system. In
addition, our internal audit department undertakes independent
reviews on internal control system, and our management is
responsible for ensuring appropriate actions are taken to rectify
any control deficiencies highlighted in the audit reports within a
reasonable period of time.



#EBAIE B R AT CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2011

ANl AN

TrETEET

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

ERAFEEREAKEENZOEERD - B
BB R EBTEER - (FERPEIESLW
HEMEE  AEENEFEABNR/HLELR
o tERREAEEE  RMA/URES
e B EBBERIEATHELELERE
VB ETERERMNERMRBEERD
R BRAERELRRBETINEMNEE - &
I B ZAME - BREE T HREE - B —
FRAREFNITEMULEBRI S - KM
FRER I EmERENE -

BRBORERE  TESEBHBFIRS N

ZHRHERERRB c ARBEMBRFEMDE
BETRMANRERERE - ERTREEE
EEAT  HEBEAFGEZF LB RFERD
FE W AEERBET - TR LHER
SERBRELEH AT - REAEERENR

3 o

R-F——%F  AREZAEXKHERE B
BERBEIETE - OB AR R BN - BAPIREETIE R
LRRREAREMEEERGARDEE - B
FA - RMRISENRREAETREIE | KE -
S PR ORRTENS S BE—E
——FFE  RASKLET TE8FIRREFER
g5 -

R-ZT——F=ZH MAITEEEKCR
Vanguard |[E MBI REAESENRA -
EEFE=F2MMIR—/ RS - BREMAA
JEFI IR — /N

BESN AN 5 [ O MR F 2K 75 5| AT Bl B ¥ R
- WIRARREIAE ©3000828 7T - EHEHE
BLRHEIE B B0RRIR - AE IR AR BEM AT 5B
L o BN RMEB TR T EINE
RER AN - LARTE £EBIZT12%H
BEIRIBAE ©

Sustainability is an integral part of our business philosophy that
drives the Group’s continued growth. As a leading consumer
goods company in China, we pride ourselves on helping to
create values in the economy, community and the environment
through the way we work. In the pursuit of a sustainable and
green operation, we never lose sight of shouldering our share
of responsibility to ensure the well-being of our community and
employees while enhancing the quality of our products and
service. Our goal is clear. By working together with our people,
we hope to further enhance our market position and business
prospects, ultimately delivering long term benefits to all our
stakeholders.

We are committed to environmental protection through promoting
the message of conservation across our business units and
among our stakeholders. All of our business units adhere
strictly to our environmental protection policy and evaluate the
environmental impact of our commercial activities before they are
implemented. We also encourage our employees, customers and
suppliers to participate in our environmental protection campaigns
in order to build a greener environment for future generations.

In 2011, various business units of the Group reduced their carbon
footprint through efforts in energy conservation and emissions
reduction. Environmentally friendly light bulbs and other energy
saving systems were installed at our supermarket outlets, which
resulted in less electricity consumption. A total of 38 shops
have been named “model shops” in recognition of their efforts
in conservation during the year. As at the end of 2011, we have
established 68 environmental friendly and energy saving model
shops.

With an aim of supporting WWF’s call to action to combat climate
change, all “£8& % CR Vanguard” stores also took part in the
“Earth Hour” campaign for the third consecutive year, in which all

shops turned off their lighting for one hour on March 2011.

Besides, with its dedication in energy conservation and waste
reduction, our beer operation introduced new technologies
and devices, and invested over RMB30 million in environmental
protection projects and implemented more than 50 measures in
energy conservation and waste reduction. The Sichuan unit of our
food division has also completed its heat recycling system which
saved 12% of energy during production process.
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Our beer division organized “The 7th Great Expedition with SNOW The “Great Expedition with SNOW”

— Adventures in Kekexili” campaign in July 2011.
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campaign this year selected participants
from over 60 cities across the country.

The Group also strives to achieve waste reduction and recycling.
For instance, our beverage division has replaced non-reusable
plastic bags with eco-friendly cloth bags for water barrel
wrappings, and stepped up the recycling of carton boxes in
an effort to help minimize waste. The beverage division also
introduced various measures, such as improved technology and
systems for washing recycled bottles, to reduce water usage.

Furthermore, the new sewage treatment system at the Jiangxi
unit of our food division has commenced operation, while the
Nanning unit is running tests on its new sewage treatment
system designed to further improve waste treatment during the
slaughtering process.
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To protect the natural environment, we are dedicated in spreading
the green message to our customers and the general public by
organizing large-scale activities and donations.

In July 2011, our beer division organized “The 7th Great
Expedition with SNOW — Adventures in Kekexili” campaign with
the aim of raising public awareness on environmental protection
and raising funds for the disadvantaged. As part of the division’s
annual “Great Expedition with SNOW” campaign, the event this
year selected participants from over 60 cities across the country
and successfully promoted environmental awareness to the
public through a series of promotions on TV, newspapers, radio
and Internet. A total of RMB200,000 and winter clothing were
donated to the Kekexili National Nature Reserve for supporting
the protection of the Reserve. The adventurers of the expedition
also donated stationary supplies to students in a HOPE school in
the local area.

In August and September, 13 brands under our retail operations,
including “#FEEE X CR Vanguard”, “EX£448 Fun?”, “Ole’”,
“blt”, “A# Chinese Arts & Crafts” and “Pacific Coffee”, jointly
organized a photography and drawing contest in an effort to
promote among 4.27 million Weibo users and our customers
in 13 cities the message of environmental protection and
conservation.

To raise public awareness of green living, the supermarket
division also launched a mooncake box recycling campaign
for the fifth consecutive year, where 95,810 energy-saving light
bulbs were given away to people who handed in used mooncake
boxes. It also joined hands with Coca-Cola to launch the “Living
Green Starts with Me” campaign in an effort to collect PET bottles
for recycling. It has joined other local corporations to donate
250,000 algae-eating fishes last year, and planned to donate a
total of RMB80,000 in the coming three years to help clean up
the Taihu Lake in Jiangsu.
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As at the end of 2011, a total of 65 libraries and 26 physical
education classrooms were built in addition to the receipt
of over 350,000 books and 30,000 sports items from
donations under the “C’estbon 100 Libraries Program”.
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Under the “China Resources Hope Town” project, our food
division has helped the local villagers to start their livestock
and poultry raising businesses, while our retail division has
offered assistance on selling their produce.

We endeavour to live up to our motto of “Better Life Together”
and strive to build a better community to improve the quality of
life for all by effecting greater community engagement. Working in
collaboration with third party organizations, we launched an array
of volunteer and fundraising activities to help the underprivileged
in the community. We also encourage our customers, employees
and suppliers to demonstrate support to those in need.

Education plays an important and vital role in nurturing the future
leaders of society. We believe that every child should have the
opportunity to develop their skills and knowledge, and discover
their values in life through education. In line with this philosophy,
our beverage division has initiated the “C’estbon 100 Libraries
Program” since 2007, which aims to promote the joy of reading
and learning among children in rural areas. As at the end of 2011,
a total of 65 libraries and 26 physical education classrooms were
built in addition to the receipt of over 350,000 books and 30,000
sports items from donations under this program. Besides, our
beverage division joined hands with the Shenzhen Children’s
Library to launch the “365 Parent-Children Reading Program” in
order to promote an active reading culture.
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To improve school facilities in remote villages, our beer division
had also launched various campaigns to call for donations of
items such as stationary supplies, computers, books and money.
Moreover, our food division donated RMB300,000 in support of
those in need for education in Lianping County of Heyuan City in
Guangdong Province.

As a contributing member of the community, the Company has
demonstrated continuous support to the underprivileged in the
community through initiating a range of charitable events. Our
staff members in various business units are also encouraged to
take part in various community services.

To extend our care to senior citizens, children and the
underprivileged, our retail operation organized a host of charitable
events in 2011, including elderly home visits, children’s welfare
house visits and fundraising activities. All these volunteer
activities were well-received due to staggering participation
from the Group’s staff and their families. Our supermarket
chain also offered job opportunities to single parents to help
improve their living standards. As for our beer division, it made
various donations to help those in need. To name a few, they
included a donation of RMB250,000 to the Charity Federation of
Xiaoshan District in Hangzhou to support its charity events from
2010-2014, over RMB70,000 in donations by our beer division
and our staff to the People’s Government of Jilin Province to help
rural families rebuild their poorly built mud-houses, as well as a
RMB100,000 donation to a medical welfare fund in Wulanhaote
City of Inner Mongolia. In June 2011, the beer division also built
57 bus shelters on major city streets in Inner Mongolia, bringing
convenience to the local people.

Meanwhile, our food division continues to actively participate in
the “China Resources Hope Town” project, which is organized by
our parent company in Baise of Guangxi Province, Shaoshan of
Hunan Province, Xibaipo of Hebei Province and Miyun of Beijing
Province. Throughout the project, our “H% Ng Fung” unit has
helped the local villagers to start their livestock and poultry raising
businesses, while our supermarket chain has offered assistance
on selling their produce in order to help improve their living
standards.

We have also gained wide recognition from society for our
community work and our efforts in fulfilling corporate social
responsibility in Hong Kong. For instance, our supermarket chain
“IFE &R CR Vanguard” was presented the “5 Years Plus Caring
Company” logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in
2011, while our Pacific Coffee shops and “##E CR Care” were
awarded as “Caring Company” by the same organization.
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Our retail division support the victims of the Yushu earthquake
in 2010 by holding a singing contest for about 500 school

children in the county.
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The Group’s headquarter held an outdoor training
workshop in October 2011 to nurture the staff’'s team
spirit.

Disaster relief is one of the areas of focus in our commitment
towards social responsibility. Soon after the earthquakes in Japan
on 11 March 2011, our Pacific Coffee chain partnered with Bank
of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Limited, Mizuho Corporate Bank Limited,
Sumitomo Corporation Equity Asia Limited and Café Deco Group
to launch fundraising activities to help the earthquake victims.
Donation boxes were placed in all our Pacific Coffee shops in
Hong Kong. With the help of its customers, the activity collected
a total of HK1.2 million in donations for the victims. Our retail
division also extended our support to the victims of the Yushu
earthquake in 2010 by holding a singing contest for about 500
school children in the Yushu county of Qinghai province.

We believe our people are a primary reason for the continued
success and sustainability of our business. We strive to provide
our employees with a great place to work by enhancing the
workplace environment and greater employee engagement.
To improve work safety, all our business units have developed
their own occupational health and safety guidelines and policies
specific to their operating environment. Our supermarket
operation also launched a health check campaign in 2011, where
over 33,000 employees participated.
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In a bid to nurture talent and create a culture of learning, we offer
a wide variety of training programs throughout the year, covering
a comprehensive range of topics including management, sales
and marketing, workplace safety, customer service, as well as
technical and interpersonal skills. In addition to the CR Vanguard
Institute established by our retail division to provide training
courses on leadership and operational skills, another training
institute is in the pipeline for our beer division.

As a trusted and reputable food and beverage supplier and
retailer, the Group understands the importance of ensuring
the safety and quality of products. This is essential for not only
safeguarding the public’s health, but is also imperative for our
reputation as a quality brand. To this end, we have established
standards and assessment procedures specific to the
characteristics of the products.

In March, our supermarket operation launched its third national
food safety campaign, which included over 1,000 food safety
trainings for more than 100,000 employees, as well as a
nationwide competition to enhance food safety awareness
among our staff and customers. Our “#EHE %R CR Vanguard”
supermarket chain was named as the “model shop for food
safety” in a number of cities for their food safety promotion efforts.
As at the end of 2011, we have established 72 food safety model

shops in aggregate.

Our food division continues to uphold the superior brand image of
“H¥ Ng Fung” by setting the highest standards of food hygiene
and safety, as well as quality control. We have developed a
product tracing system which covers the whole supply chain from
upstream registered mainland pig farms to downstream retail
outlets. Coupled with our high-standard product recall system,
we are able to swing to action quickly when any food safety issues
arise. Furthermore, we were appointed as the official supplier of
pork during the FINA World Championships 2011. The Shanghai
unit of our food division also won accolades such as “Competitive
Enterprises of Meat Products Industry in the PRC” in 2011, and
one of the “383 Leading Enterprises in Food Industry in Shanghai”.
The honors and awards are a testament to the safety and quality
of our products.
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Our supermarket operation launched its national safety
campaign in March and organized a media site visit to its
direct agricultural products trading base.
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Our staff from “#EHE CR Care” and “Voi_la!” wine cellar
have won a total of 3 awards in the “2011 Service &
Courtesy Award”.

Meanwhile, the Group continues its emphasis on meeting
stringent industry-recognized standards in order to ensure
product safety. Our Sheung Shui abattoir and 31 CR Vanguard
stores have obtained the Hazard Analysis and Critical Control
Points (HACCP) certification. Adhering to stringent quality
control and food safety standard, our beer division has renewed
the ISO09000 Quality Management Standard and HACCP
qualifications. Our beverage division also introduced the Safety
Programme Manager (SPM) system with an aim of ensuring the
high standard of food safety practices.

As a leading consumer goods company in China, we prescribed
stringent internal guidelines for the supply chain management in
all our business divisions to ensure product quality. Not only do
we require our new suppliers to submit relevant documents for
review, we also run background checks to evaluate their reliability.
We conduct regular assessments, inspections and evaluations to
review the standards of our suppliers, and will cease cooperation
with the unqualified suppliers.
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We also launched special projects to optimize our supply
chain management. Since 2009, our supermarket chain has
been appointed by the Ministry of Commerce and Ministry of
Agriculture of the PRC as one of the experiment units to establish
direct trading bases between farmers and supermarkets. As
at the end of December 2011, “ZF&ZK CR Vanguard” has
established 80 direct trading bases with sizable scale across 23
provinces in China, covering a total site area of approximately
70,820 mu and over 102,000 farming households who provide
over 150 types of agricultural products to our supermarkets.
Through our professional trainings and guidance on farming
technology, the farmers could sustain a 15% growth in their
annual household income. Not only does the program serve to
improve the livelihood of farmers, our supermarkets also receive a
stable supply of quality goods.

We spare no effort in enhancing customer satisfaction and loyalty
by providing them with quality goods and services. To ensure
that our services and products meet consumer demand, various
operations of the Group conduct customer satisfaction surveys
in order to assess its own strengths and weaknesses. Organized
by the Hong Kong Retail Management Association, our “ArZ4
Chinese Arts and Crafts” participated in the annual “Mystery
Shoppers Program” in Hong Kong, which has been named the
leader in the department stores category for seven consecutive
years since 2005.

The Group’s achievements in service excellence had once again
been widely endorsed by the public during the year. Our “%
& CR Care” shops have won the “2010 Hong Kong Top
Service Brand Awards” in 2011. Our staff from “F % CR Care”
and “Voi_la!” wine cellar have won a total of 3 awards in the
“Health Care Products” and “Specialty Stores — Wine & Cigars”
categories of the “2011 Service & Courtesy Award”. In addition,
our Pacific Coffee chain was named “U Favorite Coffee Shop” in
the “U Favorite Food Awards 2010 — 2011” held by U Magazine
in Hong Kong, marking the third consecutive year in which
the shop has won in the same category. It was also voted the
“Most Loved Coffee Chain Store” by readers of the Hong Kong
Economic Journal.
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It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid
corporate governance framework is essential to the successful
growth of the Company and the enhancement of shareholder
value. The Company is committed to attaining and maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and adopts principles of
corporate governance emphasising a quality board, accountability
to all stakeholders, open communication and fair disclosure.

On 8 April 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate
Governance Practice Manual (“CG Manual”). The CG Manual
which was revised on 31 March 2009 and 18 November 2010,
incorporates almost all the Code Provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) for
the time being in force and includes the implementation details for
the Code Provisions and, where appropriate, the Recommended
Best Practices. Pursuant to the amendments to Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules (most of which became effective on 1 April
2012), the CG Manual was further revised on 21 March 2012
and are available on the Company’s website. The CG Manual
can be downloaded from our website and copies are available on
request to the Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with all the Code Provisions in the
CG Code for the time being in force throughout the year ended
31 December 2011, with deviation from Code Provision A.4.1
of the CG Code as summarised below. The Company has also
exceeded the requirements under the Listing Rules and the CG
Code in various areas of its corporate governance practices.

In addition to meeting the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
inclusion of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual
Report is intended to keep our shareholders abreast of the
corporate governance practices of the Company and their
development throughout the reporting year and to invite our
shareholders’ views thereon.
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The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company’s
affairs. The Directors recognise their responsibilities to enhance
shareholder value and to conduct themselves in accordance with
their duty of care and integrity.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their

decisions include:

1. Direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. Setting the policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

3. Monitoring the performance of the management;

4. Approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments,
disposal of assets or any significant capital expenditure of
the Group;

5. Ensuring a prudent and effective internal control system;

6. Review of the financial performance and results of the
Company; and

7. Recommendation to shareholders of the Company on final
dividend and the declaration of any interim dividends.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts
of each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that
period. Since November 2002, to enable the shareholders to
appraise the operations and performance of the Group, the Group
has been releasing quarterly financial and operational review.
The financial statements are prepared and presented to enable
a clear and balanced assessment of the financial position of the
Group. Regular management reports on the financial position and
prospects of each business unit of the Group are reviewed by the
Executive Committee to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the performance of the Company.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2011, and up to the date

of this Report, there was the following change to the membership

of the Board:

(1)  Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter retired as Independent Non-
Executive Director on 27 May 2011.
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As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises 13 directors,
including three executive directors (which contain the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer), five non-
executive directors and five independent non-executive directors.
The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
45 to 54 of this Annual Report and can also be found on our
website. The relationships (including financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationships) if any, among members of
the Board are disclosed. There is no such relationship as between
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors confirming his independence from the
Company, and considers all of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.

The experience and views of our independent non-executive
directors are held in high regard and contribute to the effective
direction of the Group. The Company exceeded the minimum
requirements under the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with five
independent non-executive directors. Throughout the year
of 2011, the Company has maintained the proportion of its
independent non-executive directors to at least one third of the
total members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a tailored induction programme
for its newly appointed directors. Continuing development and
information are provided to the directors to keep them abreast
of the latest developments involving the Group’s businesses and
operations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed
from time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced
composition of skills and expertise appropriate for the
requirements of the businesses of the Company. Appointments
are first considered by the Nomination Committee. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put to
the full Board for decision.
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All directors (including executive and non-executive directors) are
not appointed for a fixed term. The Board does not believe in any
arbitrary term of office and would like to retain sufficient flexibility
to organise the composition of the Board to serve the needs of
the Group. All directors are subject to re-election by shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting following their
appointment and at least every three years on a rotation basis.
The Articles of Association of the Company require that one-third
of the directors (including executive and non-executive directors)
shall retire each year. The directors who are required to retire
each year shall be those appointed by the Board during the year
and those who have been longest in office since their election or
re-election. A retiring director is eligible for re-election.

During the year of 2011, the positions of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer were held separately. The role of Chairman
was held by Mr. Qiao Shibo, and Chief Executive Officer was held
by Mr. Chen Lang. The segregation of duties of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear distinction in the
Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s
business. The respective responsibilities of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer are more fully set out in the CG Manual.

Mr. Qiao Shibo attended and was the Chairman of the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2011. In
addition to the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and either
the chairman or at least one member of the audit committee,
compensation committee and nomination committee attended
the annual general meeting to ensure effective communication
with the shareholders of the Company.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals to review the financial
performance of the Group. Between these regular meetings, the
Board meets to discuss and consider major issues (whether or
not required by the Listing Rules) and also on other occasions
when board decisions are required. With respect to regular
meetings of the Board, directors usually receive at least 14 days
prior written notice of the meeting and an agenda with supporting
Board papers no less than 3 days prior to the meeting. With
respect to other meetings called, Directors are given as much
notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
The Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by
the Directors.
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EEegN T —FHAMBEXNEH(BIEE®  During 2011, 6 meetings (including meetings by way of circulation
RER) REER T —FHFEEEEEE  of written resolutions) were held by the Board. The attendance of
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the Directors at Board meetings and principal Board committee
meetings held in 2011 is set out in the table below:

- B%LEEE FNEE® HTEET UKZET RELEE
Board Audit ~ Compensation  Executive Finance  Nomination
R S W Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee

#{TE= Executive Directors

SiK%EE Mr. Qiao Shibo 411 |1 20 11

BRBAL & Mr. Chen Lang 30111 20 23

LS Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank 411 |1 1 20 23

JE# 7= Non-Executive Directors

EREE Mr. Yan Biao 3001 |1

B E Mr. Wei Bin 3@ 1

HXE5 4 Mr. DuWenmin 3] 19] 1

AZEs%4E  Mr. ShiShanbo 30111

FKEEEEL  Dr. Zhang Haipeng 1| 191

B #1TEE Independent Non-Executive Directors

R Z5tE+©  Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter © 21| 1 2

BAESLAE  Mr. Houang Tai Ninh 4111 4 1

ZREEEL D LiKa Cheung, Eric 411 |1 4 1

#Ex@+  Dr. Cheng Mo Chi 4111 2 1

BREE A Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan | 4 | 16| 1 4

BMESEE M Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon | 47| 1| 1 1

——— .

Toil nur?jfefg ffﬁfét??ﬁgs held in 2011 6 4 1 209 239 0

W

Notes:

R: TH&# Regular Meeting

5 3I€5% Special Meeting

ZER% 2 Written Resolutions

REARRSIZMAIE108MG - Eh—REHMMEEUEETA2EA -

At one of the board meetings, Mr. Yan Biao attended the meeting by way of telephone pursuant to Article 108 of the Company ‘s
Articles of Association.

RBEARBSIZAMANFE108F - Eh —REHBAEUEFTA2H -

At one of the board meetings, Mr. Wei Bin attended the mesting by way of telephone pursuant to Article 108 of the Company 's
Articles of Association.

BEARRSIZMAIE108MF - B —REFEMXRALENTHELA2HE -

At one of the board meetings, Mr. Du Wenmin attended the meeting by way of telephone pursuant to Article 108 of the
Company s Articles of Association.

RBEARBSRAAF108F - B —RERREBELUEFET A2 -

At one of the board meetings, Dr, Zhang Haipeng attended the meeting by way of telephone pursuant to Article 108 of the
Company s Articles of Association.

RESBLREBLIIFPTES  R_F——FRA-TLEER -
Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter retired as Independent Non-Executive Director with effect from 27 May 2011
RERARZRAANE108K - Hfh—RGEREBALEUBFEFALHE -

At one of the board meetings, Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan attended the meeting by way of telephone pursuant to Article 108 of
the Company s Articles of Association.
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At one of the board meetings, Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon attended the meeting by way of telephone pursuant to Article 108 of

the Company 's Articles of Association.
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All of the Executive Committee resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions in 2011.

O —E—HFEZMBRERRE  HhtZAg

A

#IT - EBTRUEMRABRRE A6 -

Eleven of the Finance Committee resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions and twelve of the Finance Committee
resolutions were passed by way of physical meeting in 2011.
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While the Board retains at all times full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company, certain responsibilities of the Board
are delegated as follows:

(@  Committees — various committees have been established
by the Board to administer certain specified functions
of the Company’s affairs. The main committees include:
the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Compensation Committee. The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Compensation Committee which
set out, among other things, the duties, functions and
composition of these committees are set out in the CG
Manual and available on the Company’s website;

(b)  Chief Executive Officer — the day-to-day management of the
Company’s business is delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer who is accountable to the Board; and

(c)  Senior Management — certain responsibilities of corporate
and operating management are delegated to senior
management of the Company within the parameters as
specified by the Board.

As at 31 December 2011, the Nomination Committee comprised
four independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Houang
Tai Ninh (chairman), Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Mr. Bernard
Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, and one
executive director, Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank. The duties of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to make recommendation after
such review and to assess the suitability and qualification of
any proposed director candidate. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee are then put forward for consideration
and adoption, where appropriate, by the Board. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee setting out its duties and
procedures was revised on 18 November 2010. Pursuant to the
amendments to Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (most of which
became effective on 1 April 2012), the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee was further revised on 21 March 2012
and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Nomination
Committee do not held any meeting.

As at 31 December 2011, the Compensation Committee
comprised four independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Siu Kwing Chu, Gordon (chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr.
Li Ka Cheung, Eric and Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, and one executive
director, Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank. Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon
is appointed as chairman after the former chairman, Dr. Chan
Po Fun, Peter retired on 27 May 2011. The duties of the
Compensation Committee include making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure of remuneration
of directors and senior management, establishing a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on remuneration
and determining the specific remuneration packages for all
directors and senior management. The terms of reference
of the Compensation Committee setting out its duties and
procedures was revised on 18 November 2010. Pursuant to the
amendments to Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (most of which
became effective on 1 April 2012), the terms of reference of the
Compensation Committee was further revised on 21 March 2012
and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives is
determined with reference to the performance and responsibilities
of the individual, the performance of the Group, prevailing market
conditions and remuneration benchmarks from comparable
companies. Directors and employees also participate in bonus
arrangements based on the performance of the Group and the
individual.

During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met

once and passed resolutions on matters including:

o Approval of the remuneration packages 2011 for directors
and senior management of the Company.
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As at 31 December 2011, the Audit Committee comprised four
independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka Cheung,
Eric (chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi and
Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan. Former member, Dr. Chan Po
Fun, Peter is retired on 27 May 2011. One of its members has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. No member of this Committee
is @ member of the former or existing auditors of the Company.
The membership of the Audit Committee has complied with
the Listing Rules requirement that the majority of its members
must be independent and one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualification. The existing terms of reference of the
Audit Committee which was revised on 18 November 2010, are
modeled on “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” issued by
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and have
also adopted the principles set out in the CG Code for the time
being in force. Pursuant to the amendments to Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules (most of which became effective on 1 April
2012), the terms of reference of the Audit Committee was further
revised on 21 March 2012 and are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors, review of the
Company’s financial information and oversight of the Company’s
financial report system and internal control procedures. During the
year under review, the Audit Committee met on four occasions.
The work of the Audit Committee in 2011 included reviews of:

° the external auditors’ report to the Audit Committee in
respect of 2010 audit;

o the 2010 annual report and annual results announcement;

° the external auditors’ internal control memorandum in
respect of the 2010 audit;

o connected party transactions;

° the quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March
2011 and the related results announcement;

° the 2011 interim report and interim results announcement;

o the quarterly results for the nine months ended 30
September 2011 and the related results announcement;

o the quarterly reports of internal audit activities;

° the 2011 internal audit review;

° the staffing and resources of the Group’s Internal Audit
Department; and

o the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
functions.
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During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the
external auditors on three occasions.

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and
independence of the external auditors of the Company. The
Audit Committee concludes that the independence of the
external auditors of the Company has not been compromised
by non-audit services performed for the Group. During the year
under review, audit fees paid and payable to the Company’s
external auditors amount to approximately HK$19 million (2010:
approximately HK$13 million); fees related to non-audit services
paid and payable amount to approximately HK$1 million (2010:
approximately HK$1 million).

The interests held by the Directors in the Company’s securities
as at 31 December 2011 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report
on pages 84 to 88 of this Annual Report. On 8 April 2005,
the Company has adopted a Code of Ethics and Securities
Transactions (“Code of Ethics”) which incorporates the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The
Code of Ethics has been amended, approved and reconfirmed
by the Board of directors of the Company on 6 April 2006, 4
April 2007, 31 March 2008 and further revised on 31 March
2009 and 18 November 2010, respectively. The prohibitions on
securities dealing and disclosure requirements in the Code of
Ethics also apply to specified individuals who include the Group’s
senior management and persons who are privy to price sensitive
information of the Group. The Code of Ethics is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Board assumes overall responsibility to establish and
maintain sound systems in risk management, internal control and
governance to ensure the effective and efficient accomplishment
of corporate goals and objectives, safeguard the Group’s assets
and shareholders’ interests as well as ensure the reliability of
financial and corporate reporting. The Board confirms that it is
the overall responsibility of the Board to establish and effectively
implement the internal control system to ensure the smooth
operation of business, safeguard he Group’s assets and
shareholders’ interests as well as ensure the reliability of financial
statements.
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The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the
frameworks recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission in the United States
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
as the standards in establishing risk management and
control systems among our Group companies. The Group’s
internal control system includes five key elements, namely the
existence of an effective control environment, risk management,
communication and information system, cost effective control
activities and monitoring mechanism.

Every business unit is required to identify and assess the risks
and impact on the respective business unit at least once every
year. The executive management team of each business unit is
accountable for the conduct and performance of each operation
in the business unit within the agreed strategies and similarly the
management of each operation is accountable for its conduct
and performance. Policies and procedures are designed for
safeguarding corporate assets, maintaining proper accounting
records and ensuring transactions are executed in accordance
with management authorisation. Monthly management reports on
the financial results and key operation indicators are reviewed by
the Executive Committee of the Board. Regular meetings are held
with the executive management team of each business unit to
review the actual performance against budget.

Our Internal Audit Department, reporting to the Audit Committee
and Chief Executive Officer respectively, is responsible for
assessing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, formulating an impartial opinion on the effectiveness
and efficiency of the systems, and reporting its findings to
the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee. Follow-
up audits will be conducted in due course to ensure that audit
recommendations are being properly implemented. The Internal
Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems on an on-going
pbasis.

Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of
individual business units, the scope of work performed by the
internal audit function covers all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

Results of internal audit activities are reported to the Audit
Committee at least once every quarter and the corrective actions
are taken by the relevant business units. The Board conducts
regular reviews of the Group’s internal control system through the
Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee.
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Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December
2011, the Board and the Audit Committee believe that the
system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the
Group’s assets are safeguarded and there is no significant area
of concerns that may affect shareholders.

The Company’s Articles of Association was revised on 29 May
2009 by special resolution in the 2009 Annual General Meeting
in order to ensure compliance with amendments to the Listing
Rules, in particular, relevant CG Code provisions in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules and amendments to the Companies
Ordinance, and to bring the Articles of Association up to date and
in line with the current practice in Hong Kong.

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and fair disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Accurate and fair disclosure is necessary for
shareholders to form their own judgment on the operation and
performance of the Group.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally
disclosed information deserves a reasonable reply. The Strategic
Planning and Investor Relations Department is responsible
for managing investor relations and will respond to such
shareholders’ and analysts’ enquiries.

The Company’s website provides shareholders, investors, existing
and prospective partners and counterparties with information on
the Company’s corporate governance practices. Copies of such
information can be obtained from the Company Secretary upon
written request.

For and on behalf of the Board
CHEN LANG

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2012
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The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beer, food and
beverage businesses. The principal activities of the Company
are investment holding and property investment. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are shown on pages 175 to 181. An
analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segments is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 101
and shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2011.

An interim dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share amounting to
HK$360 million was paid to shareholders during the year.

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK$0.32 per
ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$768 million
payable on or about 15 June 2012 to all persons registered as
holders of ordinary shares on 31 May 2012.

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

A schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on
pages 182 to 185.

Movements in the share capital during the year are set out in note
31 to the financial statements.

7



78

AEBRARRZ EERAFE 2 ZBERD
BITIE R AR & IR E R 2 B R R IS MY o
=t=-

RERARNKB 2 BRARN/EEI5HET -

REEARERREAHEEFTHZMOT

BHREE(EE)
BREAKLE(BEHTTE)
LAt (BEIFE)

i istea
e
HXRELE
AEdELE
FElsE L

BRELLE
FEREBL
BREBL
REBLEE
E T lE s
Eamt (RM-E——FRAA-TLREMD

REARFABERARNE T — HERE
BAEEE  FREEL BEEEL - KE
BRERBAELAEKERRBFEESRILAER
BE -

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 32 to the financial statements respectively.

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$15 million.

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Mr. Qiao Shibo (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Lang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Yan Biao

Mr. Wei Bin

Mr. Du Wenmin
Mr. Shi Shanbo
Dr. Zhang Haipeng

Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi

Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon
Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter (Retired on 27 May 2011)

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Dr.
Cheng Mo Chi, Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing
Chue, Gordon shall retire by rotation and are eligible for re-
election.
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None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries were
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of directors and senior management are set
out on pages 45 to 54.

During the year, the Company operates a share option scheme
for the purpose of promoting additional commitment and
dedication to the objectives of the Company by the participants
(“Scheme”).

The Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general
meeting on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently
amended on 20 August 2004 by an ordinary resolution passed
by shareholders, and expired on 31 January 2012. The board
of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
participants including any executive or non-executive directors of
the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as such), any
discretionary object of a discretionary trust established by any
employee, executive or non-executive directors of the Group, any
executives and employees, consultants, professional and other
advisors to the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as
such), chief executive, substantial shareholder of the Company,
associated companies of the Group, associates of directors,
chief executive and substantial shareholder of the Company, and
employees of substantial shareholder and where a substantial
shareholder is a company, employees of subsidiaries of a
substantial shareholder.
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Subject to the requirements of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”), the exercise price shall be such price
determined by the board of directors at its absolute discretion
and shall be no less than the higher of (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately proceeding
the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share on the date
of grant. The maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Scheme (including options to be granted to the directors, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of
their respective associates) is equivalent to the maximum limit
permitted under the Listing Rules. The scheme mandate limit
under the Scheme was refreshed and renewed by an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 20 August 2004 which enabled the grant of
further share options to subscribe up to 210,462,321 shares
representing 10% of the shares in issue as at the said date. As at
the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 6,571,000 shares which represent 0.27% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

Share options are generally either fully vested or are vested
over a period of time up to a maximum of four years after the
acceptance of a grant and exercisable within a period of 10 years
immediately after the date of grant.

Save as disclosed below, no share options have been granted
(or granted in excess of individual limit), exercised, cancelled
or lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme during
the year in relation to each of the directors or their respective
associates, employees, and other participants of the Scheme.
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R-B——F+-A=+—BRAFEEH As at 31 December 2011 and during the year, the following
- NI EERBREBZTER L RE directors had interests in respect of options to subscribe for
& BB ERE RS - IRIKRZETE] - BRI shares granted under the Scheme. Share options held by
BRBEBIENT directors granted under the Scheme are set out below:

RETHE

EREHE SR

i , ZHAT

Number of share options' e

RZT——F BT

RZZE——%F +=AR Price of

e —A-A  REEE RMAEE RAFE MEAFE —t—A Company's
BET  RAITE R {1 Bi KW WA sharesfor

Exercise Outstanding Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding options

Y REAH price at during during during during at  exercised?
Name of director Date of grant HK$  1/1/2011 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2011 HK$S
BUFHTES
Independent Non-

Executive Directors

L5 (RZF—F

REAZTHBEMR)
Chan Po Fun, Peter (Retired

on 27 May 2011) 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - 200,000 - - - 30.800
BAE
Houang Tai Ninh 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - 200,000 - - - 30.800
EX ¢
Li Ka Cheung, Eric 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -

&t Total 600,000 - 400,000 -

200,000
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Except for all non-executive directors, all directors of the
Company are employees of the Group and details of share
options held by them are disclosed in paragraph (a) above.
Summary of share options granted to employees of the
Group (other than directors of the Company) and other
participants under the Scheme are set out below.

(i) Employees (other than directors of the Company)

HEITE

ZEEIRE

REE S AAT

Number of share options' I B2

WZT——4F RS

RZT——%F +=A Price of

B —A-A RAEE RAEE RAEE RAFE =t-A Company's

BB AT Hit 1% | KA AT shares

Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding for options

=k price at during the during the during the during the at exercised?

Date of grant HK$ 1/1/2011 year year year year  31/12/2011 HKS

07/02/2002 7.7 84,000 - - - - 84,000 -

19/04/2002 7.40 244,000 - 106,000 - - 138,000 29.150

02/08/2002 8.32 150,000 - - - - 150,000 -

14/04/2003 6.29 4,000 - - - - 4,000 -

08/10/2003 8.90 52,000 - 50,000 - - 2,000 32.500

14/01/2004 9.72 1,442,000 - 194,000 - - 1,248,000 30.896

20/04/2004 9.89 840,000 - - - - 840,000 -

25/05/2004 9.15 566,000 - 126,000 - - 440,000 31.606

04/10/2004 10.35 3,478,000 - 168,000 - - 3,310,000 29.392

22/07/2005 12.50 100,000 - 100,000 - - - 31.100
/N5t Sub-total 6,960,000 - 744,000 - - 6,216,000
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(i)  AMBREE (i) Other Participants
HEITE
2B
R A PG
Number of share options' A ERe
RZT——4F BT
RZT—%F +=A Price of
1668 —A—H REAEE RAEE RAEE RAEE =+t—A Company's
RS AT i EoN:d | Ed WARITE shares
Exercise  Qutstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  OQutstanding for options
Kt A price at during the during the during the during the at exercised?
Date of grant HKS 1/1/2011 year year year year  31/12/2011 HKS
05/03/2002 7.35 401,000 - 40,000 - - 361,000 30.988
/Nst Sub-total 401,000 - 40,000 - - 361,000
Bff3E Notes:
1. AR 2 B FERB AR FTS Jo 2 AR A BIERERR D - 1. Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares in

the Company covered by the share options.

2. MERNCITEBRIEEZEZARRRGES - B 2. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for the options exercised

SEBREITE BEIRT - AR B S FT AT 2 W T during the year is the weighted average of the closing prices quoted on
B2 T8 - the Stock Exchange immediately before the date of exercise of options.
SEE I TR IR M ER AN M 2 ST ECE FIS R BT RS RS The accounting policy adopted for the share options granted is set out
MsE—FMA - in note 2S to the financial statements.

3. EXFE R BRESHEAEEBSRERT 3 All the share options granted as mentioned above will expire on the
F2BER - MEXRLERE RERBEIT - date falling ten years from the date of grant and consideration for each
grant is HK$1.00.

4, AR EREFE I | L ERE - SREERTTE 4 As no share options were granted during the year under review, no
A e price disclosure is applicable.

5. BRASHE —ARENRS 2308 F e N IR BB E R & 5. Share options are generally either fully vested or are vested over a
EANFEZHBRRE T TEERE 2 B8 period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance
BHFERITE - of a grant and exercisable within a period of not more than 10 years

immediately after the date of grant.
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As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (“SFO”), which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of SFO, including interests and short positions which the directors
and chief executive of the Company are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of SFO, or which are required to be
and are recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
section 352 of SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

AR E D2

Aggregate

He e AR EE percentage of

5% Long position/ % e B Number of interest?

Name of director Short position Number of shares  underlying shares! (%)

B R 1,120,000 - 0.05
Qiao Shibo Long position

PR BA R 500,000 - 0.02
Chen Lang Long position

Bk R 110,000 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

L1 ] R 500,000 - 0.02
Yan Biao Long position

MXR R 100,000 - 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position

FRIF R - 200,000 0.01
Li Ka Cheung, Eric Long position

PR B R 40,000 - 0.01

Bernard Charnwut Chan

Long position
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R EXTBEER 8 | —a R DR BRI &
MARARRRRY - ZEBRETENIF EMIAE
MR APTETA -

Notes:

This refers to underlying shares of the Company covered by share
options granted as detailed above under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”, such options being unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives.

2. EARRNTRD RABERMDP OB EEEAATR 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
T+ A=+ HEBRITRARENE D shares and underlying shares of the Company to the total issued share
tk e capital of the Company as at 31 December 2011.
3. TYRECEARRESUERSEEAZENE S All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
Ao capacity as beneficial owner.
BH ETUuERHEEBEEE(EER As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the
(BEREREIRG)) B BT @R &R issued ordinary shares and underlying shares covered
E RN R &I PR AT BB AR 1D 2 BE AR A by options granted under the share option schemes of
MR  ZSERERBRIELTIA associated corporations (within the meaning of SFO), such
EUMRBHRATETA ¢ options being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives:
(i) N—EMREEE - EEHBEWERA @i Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
A(ERE ) DBITERREE outstanding under the share option schemes of
BENE BRI M AR TEE an associated corporation, China Resources Land
[t 2 M A Limited (“CR Land”):
W ARITIE Hihigs
IEAR S A ITIE(E Epss
Number of RS TT Aggregate
Y=~} Mg B share Exercise R AR percentage
EENR Long position/ Number of options price Date of  of interest?
Name of director Short position shares outstanding’ HK$ grant (%)
i e 700,000 - - - 0.01
Qiao Shibo Long position
b egid e 10,000 - - - 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
B [§5~) 1,992,000 - - - 0.03
Yan Biao Long position
MHXR [S=) 1,040,000 - - - 0.02
Du Wenmin Long position
hHEE e 140,000 - - - 0.01
Shi Shanbo Long position
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Notes:

1.

The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
of CR Land covered by the share options.

DFA e

2. BRSPS MAEMERG RABRDBSnE 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
HEMR - T——F+ - A=+—HEBTRAR shares and underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued share
BHBEDL ° capital of CR Land as at 31 December 2011.

3. X BEERAL RS EEURREEAZEY 3. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
MIFH - capacity as beneficial owner.
iy RA—EEEEE -EERTIERE (i) Interests inissued ordinary shares and options

RARI([EBRE ] BBEITLER outstanding under the share option schemes of an
DA ZE A m B A i st 21 18 R 77 associated corporation, China Resources Gas Group
R 2 fe s Limited (“CR Gas”):
B ARTTE HiE R
B IE(E Epa
Number of BT Aggregate
TR,/ KR D E R share Exercise HHEHAH  percentage
E54R Long position/ Number of options price Date of  of interest?
Name of director Short position shares  outstanding’ HK$ grant (%)
SR 51 400,000 - - - 0.02
Qiao Shibo Long position
Lk 51 10,000 - - - 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
MHXR 51 54,000 - - - 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position
AEE R 50,000 - - - 0.01
Shi Shanbo Long position

F5T Notes:

1. TEARE SN B e T R B RAB AR (D 48 1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
o of CR Gas covered by the share options.

2. IR TP ROVEBRRRGN RIBERG @gEE 2 This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
HRRR - ZE——F+ - A=+ —REETELE shares and underlying shares of CR Gas to the total issued share
HWENL © capital of CR Gas as at 31 December 2011.

3. EXBBR s RS ESUEEHAEAZE 3. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his

capacity as beneficial owner.
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(i) W —ERERE -FEENERE (i
RAR[EHEEN DEBEITERK
FARRE B E N B A A 8 M R 1T

Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
outstanding under the share option schemes of an
associated corporation, China Resources Power

(FRERGHE 7 fE2S - Holdings Company Limited (“CR Power”):
BARTTER HhHEE
fERRESE 1T(E ERilad
Number of BT Aggregate
B8,/ KE [igra4= share Exercise BHEHAH  percentage
BEMA Long position/ Number of options price Date of  of interest®
Name of director Short position shares outstanding' HKS$ grant (%)
SHE 5=} 888,0007 122,160 2.750 12/11/20032 0.03
Qiao Shibo Long position 203,600 3.919 18/03/20053
PeR A 5=} - 152,7008 4.641 18/11/20054 0.01
Chen Lang Long position 203,6008 6.924 05/09/2006°
By 5=} 10,000 - - - 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
Gl 5=} - 244,320 2.750 12/11/20032 0.01
Yan Biao Long position 325,760 3.919 18/03/2005°
MXE 5=} 480,240 - - - 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position
AEE 5=} 500,000 - - - 0.01
Shi Shanbo Long position
B 5T Notes:

1. BRES B IEERE S RNERE NBERGOE 1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
o of CR Power covered by the share options.

2. BRES IHRL  SHEsz -+ TAREAE 2
HEERFES  RRERSESAFRE - 258
BERERR—Z—=FtARBER - Li&RE
HEAORERBEIT -

Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of
the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of
grant. All options expire on 6 October 2013. Consideration for each of
the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

3. ERESLHRL SR 2=t TERHA 3
HEERAFRET  RREAREAFRE - 24
BRESK -_T-—AF=A+/\BER - 8K
RHEMRER/EBIT -

Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of
the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of
grant. All options expire on 18 March 2015. Consideration for each of
the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.



88

BT - (&) Notes: (continued)

4. BRESTEHRY 8o z2=-1+  AlEKREHE 4, Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of
HEERAER:  REEAEES—RBERLE &5 the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of
EREEN =T —RF+—A+/\RfEm - Lile grant. All options expire on 18 November 2015. Consideration for each
REHARERBEAT - of the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

5. EEESTHEL 85 2=+ IJHEEAR 5. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of
HMEEBEFER  RRLANE—AFEL - 24 the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of
WK —_E—"FNARHER - LligRE grant. All options expire on 5 September 2016. Consideration for each
HOREAEBEAT - of the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

6. IR TP RERE NRGN RIAB@RG 2E5E 6. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
HEIR _E——F+-_A=1+—HZBETHRA shares and underlying shares of CR Power to the total issued share
BEHBE DL ° capital of CR Power as at 31 December 2011.

7. Bt S AR A A £ EME 2 30,0000% B 7 2 1 7. Mr. Qiao Shibo was deemed to be interested in 30,000 shares through
o interests of his spouse.

8. [ BA 4 A 35 4R A A H BB 2 356,300 A% FE E A 17 8. Mr. Chen Lang was deemed to be interested in 356,300 underlying
2 HEE o shares through interests of his spouse.

9. BMIaE7 8RR AIEEIN  EXFARBE AR 9. Save as otherwise specified under notes 7 and 8, all interests disclosed
SHEEEUEREAAZENEE - above are being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial

owner.
(V) A RIAEESEE - KRR E (v) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
BAF(TEBAOR ) D BTE @A outstanding under the share option schemes of an
RiRE KR IS HE ST B k1T associated corporation, China Resources Cement
(BEERR A > K25 Holdings Limited (“CR Cement”):
B AT HiE R
fEN RS e 1T1R(E Ela
Number of BT Aggregate
=8 v~} RS 4= share Exercise B AR percentage
BEEHF Long position/ Number of options price Date of  of interest?
Name of director Short position shares outstanding’ HK$ grant (%)
A R 40,000 - - - 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
AEE e 280,000 - - - 0.01
Shi Shanbo Long position

& - Notes:

1. RERCE B B IR R ERACREBR GO R 1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
o of CR Cement covered by the share options.

2. 1T B PP REVERICRKRG RAEMR G B8EE 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
HKER =T —F+ZA=+—B2ZBBITRA shares and underlying shares of CR Cement to the total issued share
BEHBESLL - capital of CR Cement as at 31 December 2011.

3. EXFEEcERETESEEUEREEAZSY 3. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his

NFA e

capacity as beneficial owner.
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RZZE——F+ZR=+—8 KR EXHMEHE
BRSO RSN - AT AT RAR BRI
HEAR D A ARB(E S LB FRD)EXV
ME-_RFE=DMARRRHEEXCLHEER
RRAIFENBRMARNEREIAR

As at 31 December 2011, other than the interests and short
positions as disclosed above, the following persons have
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as they fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of SFO or as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company:

BAES IR A
HEEENRGNEE
Number of
shares in which
S v the interested BEREEDH
Name of Long position/ party is deemed Percentage of
AR BE interested party Short position to have interests shareholding (%)
e N China Resources e 1,232,764,380 51.38
([ZEE@E AR ) National Corporation  Long position
(FfFsE1) (“CRNC”) (Note 1)
EHRHBRAF China Resources Co., e 1,232,764,380 51.38
(M) Limited (Note 1) Long position
CRC Bluesky Limited CRC Bluesky Limited =) 1,232,764,380 51.38
(FfF5E1) (Note 1) Long position
Z=H(EE)BRAR China Resources [55-) 1,232,764,380 51.38
([FEEEE D (M) (Holdings) Company  Long position
Limited (“CRH")
(Note 1)
HZIEEFRAF Globe Fame Investments 172 1,232,764,380 51.38
(M) Limited (Note 1) Long position
Genesis Asset Managers, Genesis Asset Managers, & 144,188,662 6.01
LLP(FH7E2) LLP (Note 2) Long position
BEE - Notes:
1. HEREEERAR(EHEAEHNER(BIZ)BRY 1. Globe Fame Investments Limited (currently known as CRH (Enterprise)

A AEBEENZENBRARINESEBEAZ Y
D578 - ZHEE ACRC Bluesky Limited 892 &}
B A7 - MCRC Bluesky Limited &3 B D AR
ARIZEHEENAR  MEERMBERARLHE
HRATIFE100% & - Bt - #H%KE - CRC
Bluesky Limited + ZEEA D AR A R R EHEAE
WRBERO AR AR -

2. Genesis Asset Managers, LLPUAIE & KIE 519455
Bt o

Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH, held the shares in the
capacity of beneficial owner. CRH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC
Bluesky Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Resources Co., Limited, which is in turn held as to 100% by CRNC. So,
CRH, CRC Bluesky Limited, China Resources Co., Limited and CRNC
are deemed to have corporate interest in the shares.

2. Genesis Asset Managers, LLP held the shares in the capacity of
investment manager.
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According to certain loan agreements, CRH is required to remain
as a beneficial owner of at least 35% of the issued share capital
of the Company or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether
directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the Company.
As at 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount of the facilities
subject to such obligation were HK$11.5 billion. Such facilities will
expire from May 2011 to May 2016.

On 25 March 2011, the Company and CR Land jointly
issued an announcement in connection with their entering
into a Cooperation Agreement in relation to a property
project in Harbin (“Harbin Project”) to be developed by
a project company of CR Land (“Project Company”),
on the basis that the Group will hold after completion of
the Harbin Project most of the commercial space in this
development and to share the land cost on a pro rata basis
which is estimated to amount to approximately RMB86
million inclusive of related tax, equivalent to approximately
HK$102.1 million. In addition, China Resources Vanguard
(Liaoning) Superstore Co. Ltd. (“CR Vanguard (Liaoning)”),
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, will
enter into the Project Management Agreement which will
form part of the Cooperation Agreement to appoint the
Project Company as its project manager to develop the
commercial space of the Harbin Project. As the Company
and CR Land are owned as to 51.40% and 65.37% by
CRH, CRH is therefore, the controlling shareholder of
both CRE and CR Land. As fellow subsidiaries, CRE
and CR Land are each a connected person of the other
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly the transactions
contemplated under the Cooperation Agreement and the
Project Management Agreement constitute a connected
transaction for each of CRE and CR Land.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, (i) the land cost
(inclusive of related tax) to be shared by the Group payable
under the Cooperation Agreement; and (ii) the aggregate
amount of construction cost and project management
fee payable by the Group under the Project Management
Agreement totaled HK$392,057,000.



#EBAIE B R AT CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2011

RZE——F+LAHA  EHEENBE
2EMBAREHILEEEGR AR ([
HibgE ) BEARRNEEZEE2ENB AR
JImERERERRARNRYIERE])
IS RS FE G - Rt - EHILERE
HE - mAYIERERIRERERIIER
BAERBESERRAGR([ERBEDHE
AR HE - SINFYIEHEZZERHTEK
BEAHREEIL SR BB ANRRE
e AENBRE(BEINBREER)
495 NR#72,960,0007T (HE R 4B
87,550,0007T) ° FEm A REM B
FTEAPEESERELCE ZNIMETH
EHTEEERE c EHEEANQ TR
AR o B B AR D FIER R AR
A IEARARINEEEAL - BRERE
EFRIE TEEETTHIR SBRARE —I8
MBERS -  REWEREAEEZEAES
R R AL I B35 2 SRR 17 R LA 2
HEBEMMSMD M SRR KRR -

FR - AEEHEEEALTETETRS
ZERSHIRE ETRBIEKFERER
] WERZIHRIEEA SR A
BhEIEERS ] WaE NI ®RE M
=t RERFEEERSHAEET ETR
AIZE14A 4616V R IR T - BREFHBER
AT :

On July 5, 2011, China Resources Beijing Medication
Investment Company Limited (“CR Beijing Medication”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH, and Shenzhen
CR Care Investment Company Limited (“Shenzhen
CR Care”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an Equity Transfer Agreement
pursuant to which CR Beijing Medication agreed to sell,
and Shenzhen CR Care agreed to acquire, the entire
equity interest of Shenzhen Hua Yi Run Sheng Medication
Investment Company Limited (“Hua Yi Run Sheng”). In
addition, Shenzhen CR Care shall repay the outstanding
shareholders loan due to CR Beijing Medication and its
associates. The total consideration for such acquisition,
inclusive of repayment of outstanding shareholders loan,
amounts to approximately RMB72.96 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$87.55 million). Hua Yi Run Sheng and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the operation of a
drug retail chain under the brand name “Sanjiu” in several
provinces in the PRC. CRH is the controlling shareholder
of the Company. CR Beijing Medication is an associate of
CRH and thus it is a connected person of the Company,
and the transaction contemplated under the Equity Transfer
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company. Such acquisition is in line with the Group’s
strategy to reinforce its market leadership in retailing sector
and create synergy on a multi-format business platform to
satisfy the diverse needs of customers and different market
segments.

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions
with connected persons which constituted “continuing
connected transactions” under the Listing Rules. These
transactions also regard as “Related Party Transactions”
under applicable accounting principles, which are set out
in note 37 to the financial statements. Details of those
continuing connected transactions which are subject to the
reporting requirements under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing
Rules are summarized as follows:

91



92

@)

RIBEEHHREEEE

R-ZEZRAENA-+H #EH
MR (CEREH)BRAF([HEE])
(AREN—REEHBAR])HA
NERERRRE RSB SR TR
HEEHa BB AT BEEN
RNENHBELRERHEERER
% o RIBZD W - BHERERSE
B X A &% 700,0007C © EA
ERRBEAGEBNBLIE =
HEWRHNEHEMEEE - REE
REMWE (1EREHEEERARA
AERBES MRIRISE)RIRE o
ZhmEAR=F —TThFL
A—REER -

RZZEZNEFEA=+,"8 B
BNHEERNEENZENBE AT
Dragon Rider Development Limited
([DRDLD BRI TR EE B -
mEZEEEDRDLANEREEN
—EEE - REZHE - HEM
DRDL X% 7 A & & % % 2,000,000
T ERERERBAEREAEMM
B R =FERRHE T ERE
MEAMUE (fEADRDLEL B A B
AR IMREE)RE - %
DiHEAFEE LR ET R
WEFEHER - FlREEEHE
EEBEHBZIHENEERRA
FEo

REE=ZE——F+=ZA=1+—
HIEFE - #=H%E RDRDLA
B NREES LESE
177,020,000 7T * i E AR EH
SE RDRDLE T/ A &BRIE HiE
##£32,400,0007T ©

@)

Facilities management agreement and godown
management agreement

On 26 June 2009, China Resources Logistics (Yuen
Fat Wharf & Godown) Limited (“Yuen Fat”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, renewed facilities
management agreements with CRH, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, for the provision of
management services by Yuen Fat on the port
premises and facilities developed on a site owned
by CRH in Kowloon. Under the agreement, Yuen
Fat had paid CRH a monthly fee of HK$0.7 million in
consideration for the right to keep, as the service fee
payable by CRH to Yuen Fat for that relevant month,
all cargo handling fees, service charges and other
payments collected by Yuen Fat at its own expenses
from independent third parties. The agreement was
for a term of 3 years commencing on 1 July 2009.

On 26 June 2009, Yuen Fat also renewed godown
management agreement with Dragon Rider
Development Limited (“DRDL”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRH, for the management, by Yuen
Fat, of a godown owned by DRDL in Kowloon. Under
the agreement, Yuen Fat had paid DRDL a monthly
fee of HK$2 million in consideration for the right to
keep, as the service fee payable by DRDL to Yuen
Fat for that relevant month, all license fees and other
payments collected by Yuen Fat at its own expenses
from independent third parties. This agreement has
the same term as the above facilities management
agreement. The above facilities management
agreement and godown management agreement are
vital to the operation of Yuen Fat.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the
aggregate receipt of service fees payable by CRH and
DRDL to Yuen Fat amounted to HK$177,020,000
while the aggregate payment of monthly fees by Yuen
Fat to CRH and DRDL amounted to HK$32,400,000.
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Tenancy agreement

On 20 September 2010, a framework agreement
was entered into by the Company and CRH with a
term commencing from the date of the framework
agreement to 31 December 2012. It was agreed,
inter alia, that any tenancy agreements to be granted
by the CRH and its subsidiaries or associates
to a member of the Group should be on normal
commercial terms. Each transaction should be
either conducted at market price or at such other
prices as the parties may agree fairly and reasonably
in the circumstances as if they were independent
third party. In addition, each transaction to be
entered into will be documented in a separate
written agreement with a duration not exceeding
twenty years for premises mainly used for retail or its
incidental purposes. For premises not used for retail
or its incidental purposes, the duration of the written
agreement should not exceed three years. As CRH is
the intermediate holding company of the Company,
CRH is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated
under the framework agreement will enable the Group
to secure a supply of the premises for its business.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the
aggregate amount of the rent, management fees
and other related charges payable by the Group
to CRH and its subsidiaries or associates was
HK$69,680,000.

Decoration agreement

On 19 November 2010, the Company announced
that the Group intended to continue to enter into new
contracts for the design, decoration and furnishing
of the Group’s offices, retail outlets and investment
properties under the framework terms with Uconia
Company Limited (“Uconia”), a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Resources National Corporation
(“CRNC”), and its subsidiaries (“Uconia Group”)
for the three years ending 31 December 2013.
According to the framework terms, each provision of
decoration services by the Uconia Group to members
of the Group would be documented in a separate
written agreement with duration not exceeding three
years and each contract of decoration services would
be entered into on normal commercial terms and the
prices would be either at market prices or at prices
no less favorable to the Group than those available
from independent third parties. The granting of
contracts to Uconia Group for the design, decoration
and furnishing of the retail outlets, supermarkets
and offices are in the usual and ordinary course of
business of the Group. As CRNC is the ultimate
holding company of the Company, CRNC is a
connected person of the Company and Uconia
Group is an associate of CRNC under the Listing
Rules.
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Decoration agreement (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the
aggregate amount charged by the Uconia Group
totaled HK$74,700,000.

Construction agreement

On 6 July 2010, a framework agreement (“Framework
Agreement”) was entered into by China Resources
Retail (Group) Company Limited (“CR Retail”) and
RSB R AT (China Resources Construction
Corp.) (“CR Construction”) with a term commencing
from the date of the framework agreement to 31
December 2012. It was agreed, inter alia, that any
construction, incidental design and construction
management services to be provided by CR
Construction and its subsidiaries (“CR Construction
Group”) or its associates to a member of CR Retall
and its subsidiaries (“CR Retail Group”), its fellow
subsidiaries of the Group or the Company should
pbe on normal commercial terms. Each transaction
should be either conducted at market price or at
such other prices as the parties may agree fairly
and reasonably in the circumstances as if they were
independent third party. As CR Construction is a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRNC which in turn
is the ultimate holding company of the Company,
CR Construction is an associate of a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the framework
agreement will enable the Group to have a sizeable
construction service provider.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the
aggregate charges of provision of construction,
incidental design and construction management
services provided by CR Construction Group and its
associates to the Group totaled HK$397,523,000.

Revision of Annual Caps for Continuing Connected
Transactions

As mentioned in the above paragraph (d), CR Retall
and CR Construction entered into the Framework
Agreement and, among the other things, setting of
the annual caps for the charges for the provision
of construction, incidental design and construction
management services by CR Construction and
its associates to the CR Retail Group, its fellow
subsidiaries of the Group and the Company under
the framework agreement for the three years ending
31 December 2012.
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Revision of Annual Caps for Continuing Connected
Transactions (continued)

According to the announcement dated 25 March
2011, if CR Construction is selected as the
construction contractor for the Harbin Project,
the construction services to be provided by CR
Construction to CR Vanguard (Liaoning) will be
governed by the Framework Agreement and the
construction cost in the amount of approximately
RMB804.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$954.7 million) to be paid by CR Vanguard
(Liaoning) to CR Construction will be covered by the
relevant annual caps.

As (i) CR Construction has been selected as the
construction contractor for the Harbin Project
and (i) the forecasted charges for the provision of
construction, incidental design and construction
management services by CR Construction and
its associates to the CR Retail Group, its fellow
subsidiaries of the Group and the Company under the
Framework Agreement for the two years ending 31
December 2012 are adjusted upward, the Company
on 1 August 2011 revised the annual caps for such
charges for the two years ending 31 December
2012 from HK$540 million and HK$540 million,
respectively, as set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 6 July 2010, to HK$1,200 million
and HK$1,700 million, respectively.
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0 EAEtE ()  Master Lending Agreements
R-Z—ZFTF+—HA-_+=-H K On 22 November 2010, the Company issued an
NEBEY—DEBEEBRRODER announcement in connection with the proposal
NETEERMD]) EEHEERAE to provide greater flexibility in intra-group lending
ZEWBARMEKNEEXE AR between members of the group of China Resources
AIEMAIERER N _T—F Co., Limited (“CRC”), CRH and their respective
F+-AZ+=-H HEERER subsidiary companies. On 22 December 2010, the
Z(WWaE ) MEEBFELRES resolution to approve the master lending agreements
BERRZREPBRERFIAE L (“Agreement”) and the related annual caps were
ERERE - BRARAEZ - approved by the shareholders of the Company at
—=ZF+-_A=t—HH=ZEFE the extraordinary general mesting. The term of the
(BRIEHABRACHE —FIER) - ARE Agreement is three years ending 31 December 2013
HEBRANEITMRARABZERED (unless extended for a further period). Since the China
7o Atk HEsEk R 23k Resources Group listed companies are signatories
REFERERS BE_T—— of the Agreement, the Agreement constitutes a non-
FH+—_A=+—"HILFE BHAEAE exempt continuing connected transaction under the
EIRES FMEROEROT ¢ Listing Rules. Information on all the above-mentioned

lending made for the year ended 31 December 2011
by the Group was as follows:
RZE—F
+=A
=+—H
% #E
Principal Balance at
BRANESE amount 31
NG N EF|=  December
Borrower's BHETL Interest 2011
BEFA BHA immediate holding ERA RMB 2R rate ARBEET
Lender Borrower company Guarantor million Duration ~ perannum  RMB million
EHERERAR  EHBEMREER  EEEMARAR el 500 01/03/2011- 5.208% -
(ADEIMIE NS China Resources CRC 31/03/2011
A China Resources Land Limited
China Resources Land Investment
Vanguard Co., Limited
Ltd. (a subsidiary
of the Company)
ERERERAR  EHENRABR  EHEMARRA ZEER 500  2/4/2011- 5.208% -
(ADFRME AF] China Resources CRC 2/9/2011
al) China Resources Land Limited
China Resources Land Investment
Vanguard Co., Limited

L td. (a subsidiary
of the Company)

Hz—Z——F+=-_A=+—81
FE - AEBZBHBENHF S8
BA A8 115,790,0007T ©

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the
aggregate amount of interest received by the Group
under the Agreement totaled HK$15,790,000.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain
work on continuing connected transactions of the Group
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has provided a letter to
the directors of the Company and confirmed that, for the
year ended 31 December 2011, the above continuing
connected transactions:

(@ had received the approval of the directors of the
Company;

(b)  involving the provision of services by the Group had
been entered into in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company;

(c) had been entered into in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreements governing such
transactions;

(d)  had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions, on terms no less
favorable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

(c) inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2011 are set out on pages 175 to 181.

Details of the share options issued or granted during the year by
the Company are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the Group’s total value of
purchases and total turnover.

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and will not be re-appointed.

The Board has resolved to recommend the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the new auditor of the Company
following the retirement of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and
such proposed appointment is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
QIAO SHIBO
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2012
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED
EBRIXEERAA

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Resources
Enterprise, Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 101 to 181, which comprise
the consolidated and Company's balance sheets as at 31 December 2011,
and the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2011 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

2 - F——F+ = J=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2011

—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
PiEE BEHET BEEET
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
BB 2 EK Continuing operations
S Turnover 6 110,164 86,728
SHEE R AN Cost of sales (82,807) (64,404)
EF Gross profit 27,357 22,324
E g A Other income 7 2,807 2,755
HERDIHER Selling and distribution expenses (19,334) (15,382)
— M EITHER General and administrative expenses (5,190) (4,537)
B RS RCR Finance costs 8 (224) (175)
FE(RE SN B LG R Share of net results of associates 10 27
BRI A3 A Profit before taxation 5,426 5,012
BiIE Taxation 13 (1,556) (1,395)
SECE 2 2 KFE Profit for the year from continuing
bl operations 9 3,870 3,617
BRILEE Z£5K Discontinued operations
PR 7 R 7 NFE Profit for the year from discontinued
gl operations 9,15 - 3,022
REEHA) Profit for the year 3,870 6,639
DB Attributable to:
AR Shareholders of the Company 2,832 5,674
FEIEHIIRR RE Non-controlling interests 1,038 965
3,870 6,639
BREF Earnings per share 16
FELERERIEE From continuing and discontinued
ZE operations
EHAK Basic HK$1.18 HK$2.37
b Diluted HK$1.18 HK$2.36
BHEKE %% From continuing operations
HAR Basic HK$1.18 HK$1.12
e Diluted HK$1.18 HKS$1.11
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Er - F——14F+ = F=+—H/IFF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2011

—E——fF —E-EF
2011 2010
BEEER BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
REEZER Profit for the year 3,870 6,639
Hih2mmukas(BH) : Other comprehensive income/
(expenses):
GINETE 2 ERER Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations 1,537 1,021
AIEREARBEAR Fair value adjustment on available for sale
investments - (94)
TEEMIARNRBERAR Fair value adjustment on derivative financial
instruments 27 (20)
VI EHRHB Surplus on revaluation of properties 7 -
BHHEAE Reclassification adjustments:
—AHEHB AR B — release of exchange differences upon
NAEIMEH 2 ERER disposal of subsidiaries/associates - 37)
—AHEME AR mE — release of valuation reserve upon
2 HERE disposal of subsidiaries - (24)
—AHEEREmEY — release of valuation reserve upon
ZIHERHE disposal of available for sale
investments - (10)
IRV PRIS T Income tax relating to:
—HAERE AR BEAE — fair value adjustments on available for
sale investments - @
REFEHMEEUWRE (BRBIE) Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax 1,571 834
AEER2EHKRERE Total comprehensive income
for the year 5,441 7,473
DB Attributable to:
AR Shareholders of the Company 3,887 6,189
IR HIN R Non-controlling interests 1,554 1,084
5,441 7,473
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R -FE——4F+— J=+—H At 31 December 2011

FRBEE
BEEEE
—REWHE
—BFAANEERY
TS
—H Y% - HaE Rk
B
[k
Hib B EE
IS NI
AERE
TBIERIA
EETRIREE

RBEE

&

g5 M E MR RIA
AR EIFIR
EHEIRIRITET
BE RIRITHETF

wRBRE

B 5 REA RN IR
TEERMTA
SEIIC B

FEfTEIR

REBEERE
REERRBEE

FRBEE
REEN
EETRIRAE
TETRTH
HA3EREBIE

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
— Investment properties
— Interests in leasehold land held for
own use under operating leases
— Other property, plant and
equipment
Goodwiill
Other intangible assets
Interests in associates
Available for sale investments
Prepayments
Deferred taxation assets

Current assets

Stocks

Trade and other receivables
Taxation recoverable
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Short term loans

Taxation payable

Net current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Long term loans

Deferred taxation liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Other non-current liabilities

B aE

Notes

17

17

17
18
20
21
22
23
29

24
25

27
26
28A

28B
29
26
30

—EB——fF
2011
BETET
HK$ million

11,180
5,901

33,159
10,755
310
432

31

305
762

62,835

20,715
11,534
51

258
18,256

50,814

(45,487)
8)
(7,092)
(610)

(53,197)
(2,383)
60,452

(8,442)
(2,496)

(532)
(11,470)

48,982

—E-FF

2010
EEEET
HKS$ million

9,904
4,984

26,555
9,654
219
376

23

311
556

52,582

15,626
6,843
46

234
14,071

36,820

(32,476)
(22
(4,151)
(849)
(37,498)
678)

51,904

(8,158)
(2,096)
(14)
(347)
(10,615)

41,289
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+—H At 31 December 2011

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

BB Chen Lang

Z % Director

B aE

Notes

31
32

2544 Lai Ni Hium, Frank

—EB——fF
2011
BETER
HK$ million

2,399
33,955

36,354

12,628
48,982

Z % Director

—E-TF

2010
EEEET
HK$ million

2,398
28,421

30,819
10,470

41,289
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R -FE——4F+— J=+—H At 31 December 2011

FRBEE
—REWHE
—HAYE - s

B
R B ARz

REEE
COYET e
e RIRTRTT

REBRE
B 5 REAEN IR
FEfSTEIR

RBEEFE
HEERRBAE

FRBEE
EERIAR R

RAK ik
[LEN
G

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
— Investment properties
— Other property, plant and
equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Taxation payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

PR B8 Chen Lang
ZE % Director

—EB——fF

2011

B aE BETET
Notes HK$ million

17 54
17 8
19 16,453
16,515

25 999
5,779

6,778
27 (3,983)
(1)
(3,984)

2,794

19,309
29 ©)
19,300

31 2,399
32 16,901
19,300

2544 Lai Ni Hium, Frank
Z % Director

—E-FF

2010
EEEET
HKS$ million

54

3
18,483

18,540

1,027
4,848

5,875

(6,121)
(1)

(6,122)
753

19,293

)
19,285

2,398
16,887

19,285
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*&“EEJJZEE%MLE

REFH2RERANFHE

£<«M Zfﬁ‘/j%
Eﬁ%%ﬂ S
B B PS5
EREINIEH
RIEBRBNEH
RERBEAHPTEH

REFHZRERE

HEBEEEMSHA
HEREREMSEIA

H SRS QRIS FR

HEMBAR, %%
CREsHEZHR
kHReEE)

L UiHh i R B S

BYSE ETAIEIRE
%)

XA E

BRI

BABEEE

BAHMELEE

E%)\Eki AN j

WEEI BN R, %7

CREr MBS 2R

kHReEE)
EHEMRITAET 2 E

RETH(ER) EE

ZERE

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Chinese Mainland income tax paid

Overseas profits tax paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded

Chinese Mainland income tax
refunded

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of fixed
assets

Proceeds from disposal of available
for sale investments

Proceeds from disposal of associates

Disposal of subsidiaries/business
(net of cash and cash equivalent
disposed of)

Dividends received from associates

Dividends received from unlisted
available for sale investments

Interest received

Receipt of government grant

Purchase of fixed assets

Purchase of other intangible assets

Acquisition of associates

Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
(net of cash and cash equivalents
acquired)

Changes in pledged bank deposits

Net cash (used in)/from investing

activities

B aE

Notes

33A

33B

33C

—E——fF
2011
BETER
HK$ million

9,479
(208)
(1,470)
7

7,799

252

10

1
317
325

(7,033)

(64)
(280)

(1,513)
(24)

(8,009)

—E-TF

2010
EEEET
HK$ million

7,970
(118)
(855)

1)
3

6,979

588

13
214

3,389
22

(448)
41
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B —FE——4F = f=+—HF¥/Z For the year ended 31 December 2011

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Interest paid
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary

shares

Proceeds from bank and other
borrowings

Repayment of bank and other
borrowings

Purchase of additional interests in
subsidiaries

Net proceeds from partial disposal of
subsidiaries

Contribution from non-controlling
shareholders

Net cash from/(used in) financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31
December

Analysis of the balances of cash
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

—EB——fF
2011
BETET
HK$ million

(1,271)

(69)
(159)

11
9,116
(6,067)

(84)

3,221

4,698

4,488
(303)

14,071

18,256

18,256

—E-FF

2010
EEEET
HKS$ million

5,282
(5,196)

211)

14,071
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e RRED S ER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Er - F——14F+ = F=+—H/IFF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2011

Fi4
Rkg
Non- 3
RAARRELRR controlling Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
EERR
HERE
Employee
A BAEE  (EERE shaebased  HIREE  EXEE RS
Share Share  Valuation ~ compensation Hedge  Exchange  Retained At
capital  premium resenve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

AYEET BMBET AMBER AMBET BMEER  AMEER  AMEER  BMEER  BWEER  AMEER
HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HK$milion ~ HKSmilion  HKS million

W=F—%-5-A At 1 January 2011 2,398 1247 2 172 (29 2,585 12726 30,819 10470 41,289
BER EREE Exchnge diferences on
ranslating foreign operations - - - - - 1,026 - 1,026 511 1,531
fEARIENLER  Farvaueadusimenton
ik derivative financiel instruments - - - - 2% - - % 2 27
NEERES Surplus on revluation of
properties - - 4 - - - - 4 3 7
REF T Proft for the year - - - - - - 2832 289 1,038 3870
FEE2ENE Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 4 - % 1,026 2,832 3,887 1,554 5,441
RRERARG Shares issued at premium 1 10 - - - - - 11 - 11
WEKBAA Acauistion of subsidares - - - - - - - - 207 07
EENELAER Purchase of adaiional inerest n
subsidaries - - - - - (23) (2 (61) (64
HEPHRELE Parta disposl of subsicaries
i3] (Note - - - - - - 2,981 2,031 501 3458
RE Dividends - - - - - - (1,21) (12M) (69) (1,340)
1 10 4 - % 1,026 4,469 5,535 2,158 7,693
RE——F At 31 Deoember 2011
tZR=+-H 2,399 12,957 b 172 @ 3611 17,19% 36,354 12,628 48,982

Mis: : RER - NEBHEERMEK240%#  Note: During the year, the Group disposed of its 40% interest in beverage business for a
= EEHBERIE T EENE - net cash consideration of approximately HK$3.2 billion.

108



CEV L

A% AR A R CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2011

7= CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

2 —F——14F = H=+—HF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2011
F]
Non- iEp
TRERRERES controling Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company Inferests equty
EER(
e
Employee
BE  BREE  fEEE saebased  HMEE  EXEE B2
Share Share Valuation  compensation Hedge  Exchange  Retained At
captal premium resene Tesene resene resene profts Total
AEAET  AMAET ABAST ABAEET AMEET  AYEEn  AEEEn AEEET  RPEET  RYEEn
HKSmilon ~ HKSmilon ~ HKSmiion ~ HKSmilon  HkSmilon ~ HKSmilon ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmiion ~ HKSmilion ~ HK$ milion
RZE-ZF-A-B  A1Jauay2010 2,39 12923 146 17 ) 1,93 8,295 25,847 9,597 30,444
BB EREE Exchange differences
on tranglating foreign
Operations - - - - - 686 - 686 3% 1,021
fTESBIALS Fair value acjustment
[BlER% on derivative financia
instruments - - - - 4] - - 6] (12 (20
TERETALS Fair value acjustment
R on avalable for sale
investments - - @ - - - - [ ] %)
R ERRLa/ Releass of exchange
BELAmED differences upon
pa 53 disposal of subsiolaries/
associates - - - - - (37 - 81 - 81l
RHEMBAAMEL  Release of valuation
LIEERE reserve upon disposal of
subsidiaries - - (24 - - - - (24) - 24
HETEREMELY  Reloase of vauation reserve
LIHERE upon disposal of available
for sale investments - - (10) - - - - (10) - (10)
TEERT Profit for the year - - - - - - 5674 5674 966 6,639
AEEEENG Total comprehensive income
forthe year - - (126) - ® 649 5674 6,189 1,084 TAT3
REERIRN Shares issued atpremium 2 gl - - - - - 2% - %
WEHEAT Acquition of subsicaries - - - - - - - - 128 18
EENEL S Purchess of additional interest
in subsidiaries - - - - - - (68) 68) (143 (1)
HENEAT Disposal of subsiciaries - - - - - - - - (340) (340)
RE Dividends - - - - - - (1,175) (1,179) (124) (1299
FEHRETE Contrbution from non-
controling shareholders - - - - - - - - 68 08
2 2 (126) - ® 649 4431 4972 873 5845
#-%-% At 31 December 2010
TZA=+-R 2,398 12947 20 17 29 2,585 12,726 30819 10470 41,289
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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General

Ultimate holding company

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company as at 31 December 2011 to be China Resources National
Corporation (“CRNC”), a company established in the Chinese
Mainland. The address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is disclosed in the annual report.

Principal activities

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beer, food and beverage
businesses. The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and property investment, and the activities of its principal
subsidiaries are shown on pages 175 to 181.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. Save as specified in the principal
accounting policies as set out in note 2, the financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
has issued a number of new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations on Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”)
and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) that
are effective or available for early adoption for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2011. In the current year, the Group has
adopted the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations.

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Financial Instruments: Presentation —

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS Interpretation 14
(Amendments)

Classification of Rights Issues
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
Limited Exemption from Comparative

HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time

Adopters

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

SEERE24  BHALTIHE
(183T)
SEERE SRMTIA: BB
(18%T) D%
B iR 2 U RS LR
(1&3T) KZ(2010)
B s e ZE A BN RS
F15EUER]) ERF7YE 2 W
BHIEBE T
BRE#HR
BIISIREERRE BHREESEX
F1455(1B3T)
BIRImEENRE IRATARES
F195% BMEE

@EﬁW%mefJEﬁ —(EE
BOUNEERGERRERE SR
Y?Eéﬁﬁf%iﬁﬁmﬁfufﬁﬂgﬁﬂﬂi
ﬁ%mﬁﬁ“ﬁ ERFE A%
EREEREGEERNERIS 2
§|J MRERRBESZER - BEE
FIEEBHER  WEESMILERE M
BIEH TR D R -

SI AR RAEERTEA - EFT R
R AEENE BT HE R
EEE MRS M BRI RS
REAFE - RBAFEL ISR
SEE

HKFRS Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity may choose to
disclose an analysis of other comprehensive income by item in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity or in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements. In the current year, for each
component of equity, the Group has chosen to present such an
analysis in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Such
amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hense the
disclosures in these consolidated financial statements have been
modified to reflect the change.

The adoption of other new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations has had no material effect on the results or financial
positions of the Group for the current and prior accounting periods.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustments are required.
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The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued

but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)
HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)
HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)
HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)
HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

(Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKFRS Interpretation 20

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

Disclosures - Transfer of Financial Assets

Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures

Financial Instruments

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

The Group has not early applied the new standards and amendments
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that have been issued by the HKICPA but are not yet effective. The
Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new standards and amendments but is not yet in a position
to determine whether these new standards and amendments would
have a material impact on its results of operations and financial
position.
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the
financial statements of the Company and of all its direct and indirect
subsidiaries and also incorporate the Group’s interests in associates
on the basis set out in note 2D below. The results of subsidiaries and
associates acquired or disposed of during the year are included from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate. All material intra-group transactions and balances
have been eliminated on consolidation.

Prior to 1 January 2010, increases in interests in existing subsidiaries
were treated in the same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries,
with goodwill or a bargain purchase gain being recognised where
appropriate. For decreases in interests in subsidiaries, regardless of
whether the disposals would result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries, the difference between the consideration received
and the carrying amount of the share of net assets disposed of was
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.

From 1 January 2010 onward, changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries that do not involve a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, with no impact on goodwiil
or profit or loss. When control of subsidiary is lost as a result of a
transaction, event or other circumstance, the Group derecognises
all assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests at their carrying
amount. Any retained interest in the former subsidiary is recognised
at its fair value at the date the control is lost, with the gain or loss
arising recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Asset swap involving entities under common control are accounted
for using restructuring accounting. Under restructuring accounting,
assets and liabilities transferred to the Group are recognised in
the consolidated financial statements at their carrying values on
the transaction date and no goodwill or discount on acquisition
is recognised. The consideration for the disposal companies is
the carrying values of the acquirees, while the difference between
carrying value of the acquirees and the disposal companies is
charged or credited to retained earings, as an adjustment arising on
restructuring of companies under common control.
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A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share capital or
controls more than half of the voting power, or where the Company
controls the composition of its board of directors or equivalent
governing body. In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment loss. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary nor a jointly
controlled entity, over which the Group is in a position to exercise
significant influence through participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee. The results and assets and
liabilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate. In the consolidated
balance sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group’s share
of net assets of the associates plus goodwill arising on acquisitions.
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate, which forms part
of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate, represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities.
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Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary prior to 1 January
2010 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary on or
after 1 January 2010 represents the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the previously held equity
interest in the acquiree over the net fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. Goodwill is tested for impairment
at the reporting date and whenever there is an indication that the
cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
An impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account and is not reversed in a subsequent period.
On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001 continues to
be recognised as a deduction from equity and is not recognised in
the consolidated profit and loss account when the Group disposes
of all or part of the business to which that goodwill relates or when a
cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Prior to 1 January 2010, a discount on acquisition arising on an
acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition over the cost of acquisition. Gain on bargain purchase
arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary on or after 1 January 2010
represents the excess of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed over the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the previously held equity interest
in the acquiree. Discount on acquisition or gain on bargain purchase
arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is recognised immediately in
the consolidated profit and loss account.
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The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss”, “loans and receivables”, “held-to-maturity
investments” and “available-for-sale investments” dependent on the
purpose for which the assets are acquired. Financial liabilities are
classified as “financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” and
“financial liabilities other than financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (other financial liabilities)”. Details of classifications and
measurements are as follows:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and have two sub-categories: financial
assets held for trading and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the profit and loss
account in the period in which they arise.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market which are initially measured at fair value. At each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. Objective evidence of
impairment includes significant financial difficulty of the debtors,
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.
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(b)

(c)

Loans and receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are initially
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are stated in the balance sheet at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate computed on initial
recognition.

Objective evidence of impairment includes default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with the operations of the investment.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the profit and loss
account. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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(d)

(e)

Available for sale investments

Available for sale investments are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories.

The Group holds certain investments in equity securities, that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably. These available
for sale investments are stated at cost less impairment losses.
Apart from this, available for sale investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. At each balance
sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised directly in equity, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from equity and recognised in the profit and
loss account.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account
when there is objective evidence that the equity investment is
impaired.

Objective evidence of impairment includes significant financial
difficulty of the issuer or counterparty and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with the
operations of the investment.

For those investments carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the equity investment and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent periods.
For those investments carried at fair value, any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such equity investments is
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in valuation reserve.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the profit and loss account in the period
in which they arise.
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®)

(9)

(a)

(b)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings which
are held for long term rental and/or for capital appreciation.
Such properties are carried in the balance sheet at their fair
value. Changes in fair value of investment properties are
recognised directly in the profit and loss account in the period
in which they arise.

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production or administrative purposes or for purposes
not yet determined, are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all construction
expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs capitalised and
other relevant expenses directly attributable to such projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time when construction work is complete
and the costs of construction are transferred to the appropriate
category of fixed assets when available for use.
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(c)

Other property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets other than investment properties and construction
in progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the
straight line method. The residual values and useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating
leases are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term

= Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being 20 to 50 years

- Leasehold improvements 310 10 years or over the
unexpired

term of lease,

whichever is shorter

- Vessels 510 15 years
- Cold storage facilities 10 years
- Plant and machinery 510 25 years
- Furniture and equipment 310 10 years
- Motor vehicles 310 8 years
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(T) HEZE (d) Leased assets
() BEREHAYBEEZE ()  Assets acquired under finance leases
B
REBEAEEZEB R Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases that transfer
A E Y A= RN to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
ERAOREESLHOmME incidental to ownership are classified as being held under
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finance leases and are accounted for as if purchased
whereby an amount equivalent to cost is recorded as
fixed assets and as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided in accordance with the Group’s
depreciation policy. Payments to the lessor are treated as
consisting of capital and interest elements. The interest
element is charged to the profit and loss account.

Operating lease charges
All leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as

2T AT E IR IES? operating leases.

GEEOUN- S

EEMRAN 2 HESBAK Rental income or expense arising from operating leases
X (F0BR (E R 1E & 28 (net of any benefits received and receivable as an
IEIRVA—E ZickoNI=A incentive to enter into an operating lease) is recognised
KFEW 2 Fz) T @R in the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
X BE L B A B 470K over the periods of the respective leases except where
THEERER BEEBS an alternative basis is more representative of the time
—HEFTRRKRBAFEE pattern of the user’s benefit.
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X

BAZERLY T 2K The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
RTIREA BN IR B 4R amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
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(e)

lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property.

Impairment of fixed assets
At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources

of information are considered to assess whether there is any
indication that fixed asset other than investment properties are
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such impairment losses are recognised in the profit
and loss account.
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(e) Impairment of fixed assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the assets is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
profit and loss account in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item of fixed asset
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the profit and loss
account.

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired separately
and from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair
value respectively. After initial recognition, other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are stated at cost and are amortised on the straight line
method over their useful lives with amortisation commences when
the asset is available for use. The estimated useful lives of other
intangible assets with finite useful lives are as follows:

Brand names
Exploitation rights

10 to 20 years
17 to 20 years

These intangible assets are assessed for impairment at each
balance sheet date by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts. Where indication of impairment exists,
an impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss account to
reduce the assets to its recoverable amount. Where an impairment
loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. Such
reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Deferred taxation is provided in full on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements, with limited exceptions. Deferred
taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised. Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled.
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Stock of properties represents properties held for sale which is
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to management estimates based
on prevailing market conditions.

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and
packing materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method or in the case
of retail business, cost is calculated on the first-in first-out basis.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling price
less all further costs of production and the related costs of marketing,
selling and distribution.

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the
asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present
condition.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the assets’ or disposal groups’ previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value at each
balance sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading financial
assets/liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified as effective
hedging instruments. The Group designates certain derivatives as
either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.

(a) Fair value hedges
Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to changes in fair value
of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm
commitment.
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(a) Fair value hedges (continued)
For fair value hedges that qualifying for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair values of hedging instruments and hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the profit
and loss account in the periods in which fair value changes
arise.

(b) Cash flow hedges
Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to variability in cash flows that
are attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction.

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting, the
effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the changes
in fair value of hedging instruments is initially recognised in
equity and transferred to the profit and loss account when the
hedged item affects the profit and loss account. The ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss
account.

For the hedge of a forecast transaction that subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, the associated gains or losses are removed
from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the asset or liability.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or are
classified as held-for-trading financial assets/liabilities are taken
directly to the profit and loss account.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods necessary
to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is
intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value is credited to a deferred income account and is released to the
profit and loss account over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business and net of
discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of
services; and interest income is recognised in the profit and loss
account as it accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is amortised to the consolidated profit and loss account over the
guarantee period.

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis and charged
to the profit and loss account in the year incurred, except for costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of that assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities and debt
securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
profit and loss account in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of
the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the Group’s exchange reserve. Such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account in the period which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before 1 January 2005
is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer and
reported using the historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.

The Group has granted share options to certain employees and other
participants, for their services rendered, to subscribe for shares of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s share option scheme.
The fair value of services received is determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (employee share-based compensation reserve).
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The fair values of investment properties are determined annually
by independent valuer on market value for existing use basis or
calculated on the net rental income and allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In making the judgement, considerations have been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at
the balance sheet date and appropriate capitalisation rates of the
net rental income. These estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and transactions entered into by the Group.

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2E. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amounts of cash generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable amounts have been
determined either based on value-in-use calculations or the cash-
generating units’ fair value less costs to sell. Details of the calculation
are disclosed in Note 18.

As at 31 December 2011, a deferred taxation asset of HK$58
million (2010: HK$53 million) in relation to unused tax losses has
been recognised in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet. The
recognition of the deferred taxation asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future assessable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future assessable profits generated are less than expected, a
material reversal of deferred taxation assets may arise, which would
be recognised in the profit and loss account in the period such a
reversal takes places.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet.
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The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, bank balances and derivative financial instruments
entered into.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk to trade
and other receivables as its customer bases are widely spread
across diverse industries and geographical locations. For its
retail businesses and some transactions in its beer and beverage
businesses, sales of products are made in cash. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that open account customers are
financially viable and with an appropriate credit history. To minimise
its credit risk exposure, credit evaluations are performed for the
determination and approval of credit limits granted and other
monitoring procedures are implemented to ensure that follow-up
actions are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, regular
reviews on aging and recoverability are performed to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

In respect of bank deposits and transactions involving derivative
financial instruments, the Group has procedures and policies in place
to ensure they are made to counterparties with acceptable credit
quality.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set out
in note 36, the Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk as at 31 December 2011.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of adequate committed credit facilities to fund capital,
prospective investment opportunities, debt servicing obligations and
dividend payments. Management also closely monitors the Group’s
rolling forecast and actual cash flows and maturity profiles of financial
liabilities.

Other than short term loans, long term loans and derivative financial
instruments, all other financial liabilities of the Group are non-
interest bearing. The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s borrowings and
derivative financial instruments, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay. For derivative instruments settled on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash inflow/(outflow) is presented. Whereas they
require gross settlement, the undiscounted gross inflow/(outflow) is
presented.
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B &3R5 MfsE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Risk Management Objective and

Policies (continued)

B Liquidity risk (continued)
EHEES: 3]
ReRERg
R-E-F RIZRF Total
—£R | 2B  BBEF contractual REfE
Within1 Between1 Between2 Over undiscounted  Carrying
year and2years to5years S5years  cash flow amount
BEEET A¥REn A¥BEEr BBEERT A%AEr A¥BEER
HK$ milion  HKS milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion  HK$ million  HKS million
—E—-F 2011
EEFIREE Fixed rate borrowings
A& Other loans @) ¢ - - (12) (11)
FBEEE Variable rate borrowings
RTER Bank loans (7,186) (3,406) (5,235) @) (15,831) (15,495)
HEEHR Other loans 27 - - - 27 27)
BARY Finance lease (1) - - - ) )
(7,214) (3,4006) (5,235) @ (15,859) (15,523)
(7,217) (3,415) (5,235) @  (1587)  (15,534)
fTETE-B4£%  Derivatives - net settlement
ey Interest rate swaps (10) - - - (10) ®)
—E-BF 2010
EEREREE Fixed rate borrowings
EtER Other loans (17) - (18) - (35) (35)
FBHREEE Variable rate borrowings
RITER Bank loans (4,186) (4,817) (3,399 o] (12,400) (12,273)
BERY Finance lease 1) - - - (1) (1)
(4,187) (4,817) (3,399) @ (12407 (12,274)
(4,204) (4,817) (3,417) ] (12,442) (12,309)
fTEIE-$&E  Derivatives - net settlement
pilkget Interest rate swaps (36) (10) - - (46) (36)
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The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly from its long term
and short term borrowings. Borrowings at fixed and floating interest
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow
interest rate risk respectively. To cover interest rate risk, the Group
maintains the loan portfolio in a preferred fixed/floating interest rate
mix and review regularly. To avoid undue concentration of risk, the
Group entered into interest rate swaps to mitigate current and future
corporate profitability from interest rate volatility.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at
the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended
31 December 2011 would decrease/increase by HK$145 million
(2010: decrease/increase by HK$102 million).

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on a
hypothetical situation. In reality, market interest rates would not
change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the analysis is used for
reference purpose and should not be considered a projection of the
future profits or losses.

Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating outside Hong Kong
and have their local currencies as their functional currencies.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 2% (2010: 2%) of the Group’s sales are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group entity
making the sale, whilst approximately 98% (2010: 98%) of costs are
denominated in the group entity’s respective functional currencies.
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The following table details the Group’s exposure at the balance
sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

—E——F —ET-TF
2011 2010

BE a8f& BE A&
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BEHET BYHEERT AkaET ABBEET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ milion  HK$ million
211 12 170 17
2,061 436 1,151 764
37 - 10 -

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
or decrease in the Hong Kong dollars against the Renminbi.
Under the linked exchange rate system, the financial impact on
exchange difference between Hong Kong dollar and US dollar will be
immaterial and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at year end
for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit and other equity where the relevant
foreign currency strengthens 5% against Hong Kong dollars. For a
5% weakening of the relevant foreign currency against Hong Kong
dollars, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
and other equity.

HEBHER(BRINFE HEIHMERBINTE
Effect on profit/ Effect on other
(loss) after tax components of equity

- —ZT—TF ZB——F —ZT-FTF
2011 2010 2011 2010
BEHET AB¥eEr B¥EEx A¥EET
HK$ million HKS$ milion HK$ million  HK$ million
10 8 - _

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on a
hypothetical situation. In reality, market exchange rates would not
change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the analysis is used for
reference purpose and should not be considered a projection of the
future profits or losses.
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 28, cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
issued capital, reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
raise of bank borrowings or the redemption of existing debt.

—E——F —ET-TF
2011 2010
AMEET  BEEET
HKS$ million HK$ million
Turnover from continuing
operations comprises
revenue from:
Sales of goods 103,565 81,348
Rendering of services and others 6,026 4,766
Rental income 573 537
Sales of properties - 77
110,164 86,728
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For the year ended
31 December 2011
TURNOVER
External sales
Inter-segment sales”

Total
Segment result*

Unallocated comorate expenses
Interest income
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

As at 31 December 2011
ASSETS
Segment assets
Deferred taxation assets
Taxation recoverable
Unallocated comorate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabitties
Taxation payable
Deferred taxation liabilties
Unallocated cororate liabilties

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation
Impaiment loss recognised
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5E
Retail

BEEER
HKS million

69,992

70,088
2,649

56,168

20,839

4,034
1,304

BE
Beer

HEEER
HKS million

26,609
80

26,680
2178

40,466

21,999

5,083
1,326
357

&R
Food

BEEER
HKS million

10,500
206

10,706
449

8,367

1487

44
203

i
Beverage
BEAER

HKS million

3,063
4

3112
192

1917

829

3n
51

RER
BEH
Investments
and Others
BEEER
HKS million

U

Hi

Elimination

BEEER
HKS million

(3
(3

it

Total
EREER
HKS million

110,164

110,164
5462

(119
301
(224

5426
(1,556)

3810

106,918
162

5
5918

113,649

94,155

610
24%
7406

4,667
10,246

2,804
376
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N BEHERIBEER @ 6. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
EEE D (B Operating segments (continued)
B HES
iz e
RER $hAH (H1R)
EhER Continuing  Discontinued
ZE B R #a  Investments 4% Operations Operations aif
Retal Beer Food Beverage andOthers  Elimination Totd  (Note 15) Total
AEEET AYEET AYEEN AYEET AYEEn REEET AYAEn AYEERT AYEER
HKS milion  HKSmilion HKS milion HKS milion  HKS milion HKS miion - HK$ milion - HKS milion HKS millon
HE-E-3% For the year ended
tZA=+-HItEE 31 December2010
g2y TURNOVER
HME External sales 5,067 21,48 8124 2,00 - - 86728 40 87,138
ERmEE Inter-segment sales” 73 53 182 2 - (333 - - -
At Total 56,140 21,53 8,306 2,080 - (333 86,728 40 87,138
PEEE" Segment result* 2,733 1,928 686 204 #18) 5133 57 5190
FEHBHAFETTE  Unallocated corporate expenses (119 - (118
FEHA Interest income 172 1 173
HEBR HEEER Profit on disposal of discontinued
FERF operation - 3347 3347
SRR Finance costs (175) 8] (178)
B AER Profit before taxation 5012 3402 8414
] Taxation (1,39) (380) (1,779)
REERT Profit for the year 3617 3,022 6,639
W-E-2& As at 31 December 2010
+ZB=t+-8
BE ASSETS
NEEE Segment assets 43215 3942 7,647 1,047 - 84911 -
EitiRaE Deferred taxation assets 556 - 556
MEERE Taxation recoverable 46 - 46
FOABHATETEE  Unalocated corporate assets 3889 - 38%
GREESE Consolidated total assets 89,402 - 89402
8f LIABILITIES
PEEE Segment liabilties 20687 15,368 1,413 428 1 38,397 - 38307
[ERTHIE Taxation payable 849 - 849
ELHARR Deferred taxaion liabiities 20% - 2%
FEHBHAAETEE  Unalocated corporate fibifties 6,771 -8
GEERAR Consolidated total liabilities 48,113 - 4813
&R OTHER INFORMATION
BREY Capital expenditure 2529 1719 301 153 1 4793 - 479
FEREH Depreciation and amortisation 114 1212 197 25 1 2,576 8 2,584
TR ERE Impaiment loss recognised 5 25 2 - - 282 - 282
MR BB B Valuation deficit on financia
SHEAEERER assets at fair value through
profit and loss - - - - 419 419 - 419
EBEHEDIRE RN TIHERK * Inter-segment sales were charged at prevailing market rates.
DEREBRBRAFSWA -« BFEK > Segment result represents earnings before interest income, finance costs

RRIIERTEF] and taxation.
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PERt  HMER
BE Chinese Other
Hong Kong Mainland Countries
B¥EEr BY¥EET A¥EERL
HK$ milion  HK$ milion  HK$ million
Blt—®2——%1+=A Turnover from continuing
=t+—HIEFEEMN operations for the year
BERE CEENWEXE  ended 31 December 2011 8,817 100,000 1,347
R-ZE——%F As at 31 December 2011
+=A=+—H
FEmENE B (Pi5T) Non-current assets (Note) 12,840 48,734 468
BLE—F-ZF+=A Turnover from continuing
=t+—HIEEERN operations for the year
BECEZERNEEE  ended 31 December 2010 7,331 78,073 1,324
R-E-ZF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—AH
IEmE A E (M) Non-current assets (Note) 9,737 41,781 485

Wi

FRBDEETEEAERE RELEHIRE
= o

Htb WA BFETHZE :

FREE XK
KEFLEMAERENRE

FLBHA
BEMEEMLBR

BIEHE —FHHE R R Z RS ER

&R 2 R R PSR
HE AT ERE PSRN

HEBEEEMSEN
BRI B

BRIEEE 2 KB
A SUA

Note:

At

Total
BEEET
HK$ million

110,164

62,042

86,728

52,003

Non-current assets excluded available for sale investments and deferred taxation

assets.

Other income includes the
following:
Continuing operations
Dividends from unlisted
available for sale investments
Interest income
Valuation gain on
investment properties
Profit on deemed disposal of
an associate
Profit on disposal of associates
Profit on disposal of available
for sale investments
Profit on disposal of
fixed assets
Government grants recognised
Discontinued operations
Interest income

—E——F
2011
BEEER
HK$ million

301
1,137

30

28
97

—T-FF

2010
BEBHETT
HKS$ million

19
172

1,335

98
10

187
11
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S

2011
BYEER
HK$ million
Continuing operations
Interests on bank loans and
other loans wholly repayable
within five years 163
Financing charges 63
226
Less: Amount capitalized in cost
of qualifying assets* (2)
224
Discontinued operations
Interests on bank loans and other
loans wholly repayable within
five years -
Financing charges -
224

*

—ET-EF

2010
EEEET
HK$ million

124
51

175

175

w N =

178

In 2011, finance cost relating to the general borrowings used for obtaining

the qualifying assets have been capitalized at various rates ranging from

4.86% to 6.70% per annum.
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—g-—-% ~T-TF
2011 2010
AMEET  ABEAT
HK$ million HK$ million
Profit for the year has been
arrived at after charging:
Continuing operations
Auditors’ remuneration 28 21
Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) 11,435 8,223
Depreciation
— Owned assets 2,877 2,565
Impairment loss recognised
on (included in seling and
distribution expenses or
general and administrative
EXPeNses)
— fixed assets 88 36
— other intangible assets 7 10
— stock (Note 1) 281 236
Amortisation of other
intangible assets (included
in general and administrative
expenses) 17 11
Operating leases charges on
land and buildings (Note 2) 3,335 2,930
Cost of goods sold 82,449 64,027
Valuation deficit on financial
assets at fair value through
profit and loss (included in
general and administrative
expenses) - 419
Discontinued operations
Auditors’ remuneration - 1
Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) - 40
Depreciation
— Owned assets - 8
Operating leases charges on
land and buildings - 64
Cost of goods sold - 190
And after crediting:
Continuing operations
Gross rental income 573 537
Less: Related out-goings (23) (22)
Net rental income 550 515
Notes:
1. Mainly wear and tear of packing material arising from normal production
process.

2. Including contingent rent of HK$79 million (2010: HK$54 million).



g% —T-%TF
2011 2010
BEEER EEEET
HK$ million HK$ million

we Fees 1.67 1.61
BEAR#H® KoERL Basic salaries and allowances 8.53 8.95
NESHEK Provident fund contributions 0.33 0.44
BEARTEAL Bonus paid 8.43 13.85
18.96 24.85
we HivEi <
Fees Other Emoluments
EfEHe
K2R DABEMR —Z-TF
Basic Provident &5t
Salaries and Fund BARAT A3t 2010
—Eg——F 2011 Allowances Contributions  Bonus paid! Total Total
BEEER BYEEER BEEER BEEER BEEER BEEER
EEHE Name of director HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BE Qiao Shibo 0.08 2.44 0.13 1.44 4.09 3.99
FREA Chen Lang 0.08 2.32 0.13 2.05 458 3.85
Bt Lai Ni Hium, Frank 0.08 3.77 0.07 4.94 8.86 9.55
EIRd Yan Biao 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.08
B Wei Bin 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.01
HXR Du Wenmin 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.08
hEE Shi Shanbo 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.01
BT Zhang Haipeng 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.01
BEAE Houang Tai Ninh 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.16
FRE Li Ka Cheung, Eric 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.16
BRE Cheng Mo Chi 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.16
BRE Bernard Charnwut Chan 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.16
EE Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.16
PREL Chan Po Fun, Peter 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.16
TE Wang Qun - - - - - 4,62
2B Lau Pak Shing - - - - _ 155
Bz Jiang Wei - - - - - 0.07
=ik Li Fuzuo - - - - - 0.07
B3t Total 1.67 8.53 0.33 8.43 18.96 -
—T—TF 2010 1.61 8.95 0.44 13.85 - 24.85
1 AT EMFE 2 LLER - (8 1 The bonus payment is determined with reference to the operating resullts,
BIATITERIE REETISS TS individual performance and comparable market statistics during both years.
FEE °
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The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2010:
four) directors, details of whose remunerations are set out in note 10
above. The details of the remunerations paid to the other three (2010:

one) highest paid employees are as follows:

—E——fF
2011
BEEER
HK$ million

Basic salaries and allowances 6.75
Provident fund contributions 0.19
Bonus paid 9.15

16.09

—ET-FTF

2010
EEEET
HKS$ million

222
0.02
2.038

4.27

The emoluments of these three (2010: one) highest paid individuals

were within the following band:

AE

No. of person

S
HKS$ 2011

4,000,001-4,500,000 -
4,500,001-5,000,000 1
5,000,001-5,500,000 1
5,500,001-6,000,000 1

—E—EF
2010

1

The Group operates various defined contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all Hong Kong employees. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The amount of contributions is
based on a specified percentage of the basic salary of employees
and any forfeited contributions in respect of unvested benefits of staff

leavers are used to reduce the Group’s contributions.

—E——F
2011
BYEER
HK$ million
Group contributions to staff
provident fund 43
Forfeited contributions utilised (1)
Amount charged to consolidated
profit and loss account 42

Un-utilised forfeited contributions -

—E-TF

2010
BEBHETT
HKS million

33
(1)

32
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The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
respective local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss account in
respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the Chinese Mainland
amounted to approximately HK$1,117 million (2010: HK$808 million).

—E——F T -TF
2011 2010
BERET BEEET
HKS$ million HK$ million
Continuing operations
Current taxation

Hong Kong 124 135
Chinese Mainland 1,287 949
Overseas 12 18
1,423 1,102

Deferred taxation
Hong Kong 185 215
Chinese Mainland (52) 78
1,556 1,395

Discontinued operations
Current taxation

Chinese Mainland - 382

Deferred taxation
Chinese Mainland - )
- 380
1,556 1,775

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year.

Chinese Mainland income tax has been provided for based on the
estimated assessable profits in accordance with the relevant tax laws
applicable to the subsidiaries in the Chinese Mainland. Overseas
taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
jurisdictions.
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The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits Tax

rate as follows:

Profit before taxation (excluding

share of net results of associates)

Calculated at a taxation rate of
16.5% (2010: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in
other jurisdictions

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes

Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses

Tax loss not recognised

Over provision on taxation
in previous year

Income earning companies
exempted from taxation (note)

Withholding tax on undistributed
profits

Taxation charge

Note:

S

2011

BEEER
HK$ million

5,416

894

131
(117)

169

(50)
434

(19)
(33)

147

1,556

—ET-FF

2010
EEEET
HKS$ million

8,387

1,384

11
(119)

205

(29)
257

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the Chinese Mainland are eligible
for certain tax holidays or concessions and were exempted from Chinese Mainland

income taxes for the year.
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g% —T-%TF
2011 2010
BEEER EEEET
HK$ million HK$ million

2011 interim dividend paid of
HK$0.15 (2010: HK$0.14) per
ordinary share 360 336

2011 proposed final dividend of
HK$0.32 (2010: HK$0.38) per
ordinary share 768 911

1,128 1,247

At the meeting held on 21 March 2012, the directors proposed
final dividend of HK$0.32 (2010: HK$0.38) per ordinary share.
This proposed dividend, which is calculated on the Company’s
number of ordinary shares as at the date of the board meeting, is
not recognised as a liability in these financial statements. The total
dividends paid by the Company, including the final dividend for the
year 2010, amounting to HK$1,271 million (2010: HK$1,175 million)
are reflected in the current year financial statements.



#MEI¥ AR A F CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2011

B &3R5 MfsE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THEBRIEEE ¥ 15. Discontinued Operations

R-ZZ-—ZF_F > AEENURS
RAEEH38.8{8 7T H & H M 2 FF
MRS 2 s -

BE-F-TF+-A=+-AL
FEZEARBRABDKRIES
EBOHEET

The Group disposed of its brand-fashion distribution business
interest in February 2010 at a cash consideration of HK$3,880

million.

The results of the discontinued operations included in the

consolidated profit and loss account for the year ended 31

December 2010 are set out below:

—ET-TF
2010
BEBEET
HK$ million
RIS ER 2 AREEF Profit for the year from discontinued operations
& Revenue 414
S Expenses (359)
BrEE AT A Profit before taxation 55
IR Taxation 12
PR 120 T Profit after taxation 43
HEERIHEEEE 2 F 5 F Net profit on disposal of discontinued operations 2,979
3,022
NEEHEN DB Profit for the year attributable to:
ViN/NCT) 38 Shareholders of the Company 3,001
FEFE IR R Non-controlling interests 21
3,022
HEBRIHEE XK 2 EEFE Net assets of discontinued operations disposal of 374
CRIEREEBECEHERE Cash flows from discontinued operations
KERF 2R RAFRE Net cash from operating activities 58
RERSZRERANFRE Net cash from investing activities 3,389
AREE RS2 FRE Net cash used in financing activities (170)
FEERE Net cash flows 3,277
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For continuing and
discontinued operations
The calculation of the basic and
diluted eamings per share is
based on the following data:

Earnings

Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the purposes
of calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:
— Share options

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share

S e
2011 2010
BEEER EEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
2,832 5,674
—g——% —T-%TF
2011 2010

2,398,928,915 2,397,120,695

4,928,267 6,254,157

2,403,857,182 2,403,374,852
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—E——fF
2011
BEEER
HK$ million

For continuing operations
The calculation of the basic and
diluted eamnings per share is
based on the following data:

Earnings
Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the
purposes of calculating basic
and diluted earnings per share
Less: Profit attributable
to shareholders of
the Company from
discontinued operations

2,832

Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the
purposes of calculating basic
and diluted earnings per share

from continuing operations 2,832

—ET-FF

2010
EEEET
HKS$ million

5,674

(3,001)

2,673

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for

both basic and diluted earnings per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, basic earnings per share
and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued operation are

HK$1.25 per share and HK$1.25 per share respectively, based

on the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company from the
discontinued operation of HK$3,001 million and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.
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Tt EEEE

17. Fixed Assets

R R

HEEEN

1R

neress 2% BEREE
land held Other property, plant and equipment
forown  BRET At
R&EME  useunder  Buildings BEEE
Investment  operating held for  Other fixed gt A3
properties leases  ownuse assets  Sub-total Total
BEEET  AYBET  ABEER  AlYEEn  BYEER  AEEER
HKSmiion ~ HK$milon ~ HKSmilon ~ HKSmilion  HKSmilion ~ HKS milion
150 The Group
AZEE Cost or valuation

RZF-Z5-F-H At1 January 2010 8,699 4826 12,006 28474 35,480 49,006
ERZEE Exchange difference 33 144 403 811 1214 1391
WENBLR/ $HREA Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries/business - R 120 200 30 32
HENBLR/ $HEEL Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/business - - - (1) 27 (7
AE Additions 1 236 97 3,708 3,800 4037
HeE Disposals (158) (188 (147) (1,189) (1332 (1678)
Eipis Reclassffications ) 632 809 (1,487) (678) (2
BifRE Adjustment on valuation 133 - - - - 133

RZE-FET-A=T-BR 31 December 2010 and

“2—%-f-H 1 January 2011 9,904 5,082 13,288 25,489 38,777 54,363
ERER Exchange difference 39 278 708 1543 2,251 2,568
WENBLA/ EEHEA Relating to acquisition of subsidiarieshousiness 69 413 400 101 1431 1913
FEERIEN Relating to businesses injected by non-

HEEA controlling interests - o 67 268 3% 362
AE Additions 4 428 179 6,422 6,601 7,033
HE Disposals - (89) #) (T74) (815) (868)
Exip] Reclassffications o 6] 622 (669) 47 (26)
EfhER Adjustment on valuation 1137 - 7 - 7 1144
RZZ—F+ZA=1-A At 31 December 2011 11,180 6,769 15,250 33,290 48540 06,489
uﬂﬁ& RinlfE Accumulated depreciation and impairment
RZE-ZF-A-A At 1 January 2010 - 548 1814 8,485 10,299 10847
ERZEE Exchange difference - 17 63 30 413 430
HENBLR/ EBEE Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/business - - - (19 (19 (19
TEENE Charge for the year - 118 470 1,977 2447 2,965
HERMD Written back on disposals - 21) (39 (828 (866) (887)
BRANERE Impairment loss recognised - - 3 3 K} 36
ETinL Reclassifcations - 3% (1) (37) (88) (52)

WZE-ZF+ZA=1-Ak At 31 December 2010 and

—Z——F-f-H 1 January 2011 - 698 2,261 9,%1 12,022 12920
ERER Exchange difference - 4 178 739 917 957
TEENE Charge for the year - 139 493 2,245 2,738 2817
HERE Written back on disposals - (12) (20) (535) (555) (567)
BRI AESR Impairment loss recognised - 3 13 72 85 88
e Reclassfications - - (29 3 (26) 26)
RZE—F+ZA=1-A At 31 December 2011 - 868 2,896 12,485 15,381 16,249

e Net book values
RZE——F+ZA=+-H At 31 December 2011 11,180 5901 12,354 20,806 33,159 50,240
RZ-FF+-A=1-A At 31 December 2010 9,904 4984 11,027 15,528 26,055 41,443
IR IR AR - Representing assets stated:
A At cost - 6,769 15,250 33,290 48,540 56,309
BoE-—EELiA At 2011 professional valuation 11,180 - - - - 11,180
11,180 6,769 15,250 33,290 48540 66,489




#MEI¥ AR A F CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2011

B &3R5 MfsE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tt BEEEE®)

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

Hit¥% » BERRE
Other property, plant and equipment
Investment gy Other Nt &5t
properties  Buildings assets  Sub-total Total
wEEEr AEEr AEEErT A¥EET A¥EER
HK$ milion  HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion  HKS$ milion  HK$ million
YNNG The Company
A A Cost or valuation
RZT—ZTF—F—H At 1 January 2010 51 2 22 24 75
hE Additions - - 1 1 1
He Disposals - - @ @ @
ERAR Adjustment on valuation 3 - - - 3
R-E-ZF+-A=1+—-HK  At31 December 2010 and
—2—F—f—H 1 January 2011 54 2 21 23 77
hE Additions - - 6 6 6
HE Disposals - - (1) (1) (1)
RZE—F+-A=1—H At 31 December 2011 54 2 26 28 82
ZEERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
RZE-TF—-F—H At 1 January 2010 - 1 19 20 20
KEEHE Charge for the year - - 1 1 1
HERE Written back on disposals - - (1) (1) (1)
RZT—TF+-A=+—AKk At 31 December 2010 and
—2—%—f—H 1 January 2011 - 1 19 20 20
REEE Charge for the year - - 1 1 1
HERE M Written back on disposals - - (1) (1) (1)
nZE——F+-A=+-H At 31 December 2011 - 1 19 20 20
REFE Net book values
RZE—F+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2011 54 1 7 8 62
RZE-ZEF+-F=1—H At 31 December 2010 54 1 2 3 57
BT ARGRBE « Representing assets stated:
B At cost - 2 26 28 28
BR-E——5EEME At 2011 professional
valuation 54 - - - 54
54 2 26 28 82
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MERER REERRE

REH
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BEEMROTE 2ME
BERROE 2=

A it
BEMROFEE 2ME
BERROTEE 2=

BRI 2=

o
BERROTEE 2=

BRI 2=

LS
i)
BARBROEE 2 M

FRE A i
BPROTE ZME

ZE——F+ZA=+—HZRE
MED BB EXGEMBIERT
BRARMELGE - HEH2REA
BYMECARMNZZHEMEE

RZEBE——F+ZA=+—H K&
HEREBEBEEBTZETEED
BIERBB2BE T L RHER
Z B -

AERANER 2 BEBREERS
Heh —HBUE X RBRRENK
T #REE M2 o 3R A o

Carrying amounts of the property
interests comprise:
The Group
Hong Kong
Properties held on long lease
Properties held on medium-
term lease

Chinese Mainland
Properties held on long lease
Properties held on medium-
term lease
Properties held on short lease

Overseas
Properties held on medium-
term lease
Properties held on short lease

The Company
Hong Kong
Properties held on medium-
term lease

Chinese Mainland
Properties held on medium-
term lease

—E——F

2011
BEEER
HK$ million

7,493

3,630

631

16,029
1,629

11
12

29,435

54

1
55

—E-TF

2010
EEEET
HK$ million

6,673

3,361

3,029

12,759
68

12
13

25,915

54

1

55

The investment properties have been valued at 31 December 2011
by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional
valuer. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence
of recent transaction prices for similar properties.

At 31 December 2011, fixed assets with carrying amounts of HK$48
million are pledged for short term loans in sum of HK$25 million.

Impairment loss recognised during the year was mainly attributable
to greater than anticipated wear and tear on plant and equipments
under one of the manufacturing businesses.
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‘f“t BEEE & 17. Fixed Assets (continued)
HEtWErEETEREERIRE D Other fixed assets mainly comprise construction in progress, plant

HeStm  HEMERE M-
RERME  BARRERTE -

and machinery, leasehold improvements, vessels, cold storage
facilities, furniture and equipment and motor vehicles.

EEIR WERE  HENERE
Construction Plant and Leasehold Httr At
in progress machinery improvements Others Total
BEEET BEEET AYEET BEBET BEBET
H$milion ~ HK$milion  HK$ milion HKS million HKS million
by The Group
KAMEE Cost or valuation
RZZ-£5-A-H At 1 January 2010 1,738 15,363 3,195 3178 23474
ERES Exchange difference 54 561 105 91 811
WEIBAR,/£H%EEA  Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business 89 8 - 29 200
HERBAT,/£KBEL  Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/busingss - - (16) (11) @7
RE Additions 1,907 636 583 577 3,703
HE Disposals () (774) (208) (198) (1,185)
BHO8 Reclassffications (2,759 1,182 234 (150) (1,487)
RZE-ZH+-A=+—H At31December 2010and
k=2——%-F-H 1 January 2011 1,030 17,050 3,898 3,516 25,489
ERER Exchange difference 88 1,093 215 147 1,543
WEHBLR/£KEBEEA  Relating to acquistion of
subsidiaries/business 97 839 7 68 1,011
IR ALHKEEA  Relating to businesses injected by
non-controlling interests 1 252 1 14 268
AE Additions 3,884 726 1,091 721 6,422
HeE Disposals (19 (219) (270) (266) (774)
ENNE Reclassffications (1,69) 704 228 97 (669)
WZZ——F+-A=+—H At31December 2011 3,383 20,445 5,165 4,297 33,290

149



150

B3R &5 M 5E NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TtEEEE®

i}

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

EEIR WERE  HENERE
Construction Plant and Leasehold Hitp At
in progress machinery improvements Others Total
B¥BET  A¥EET  AE¥EET  A%ERER RERET
HKS milion HK$ million HKS$ milion HKS$ milion HKS milion
ZEHTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
W-Z2-ZF-A-H At 1 January 2010 - 5,282 1,490 1,713 8,485
ERER Exchange difference - 229 61 60 350
HEMBAR/£HKEEY  Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/
business - (1) (10) 8 (19
REEHE Charge for the year - 1,145 436 396 1,977
HEED Written back on disposals - (429) (159) (252) (828)
BRAZAERE Impairment loss recognised 1 30 - 9 3
ENNE Reclassffications - 106 29 (172) 37)
M-Z-ZF+-A=+-F At31 December 2010 and
k=E—%-HA-H 1 January 2011 1 6,368 1,853 1,739 9,961
ERER Exchange difference - 559 o4 86 739
REEHE Charge for the year - 1,269 529 447 2,245
LEER Written back on disposals 1) (133) (229) (172) (535)
BRAZRESRE Impairment loss recognised - 67 - 5 72
Eip] Reclassifications - (39) 13 28 3
WZZ——F+-A=+—H At31December 2011 - 8,092 2,260 2,133 12,485
REFE Net book values
RZE——%+-A=1+—H At31 December 2011 3,383 12,353 2,905 2,164 20,805
WZE-FE+-A=1+—H At31 December2010 1,029 10,682 2,040 1,777 15,528
BTSRRI EE | Representing assets stated:
B At cost 3,383 20,445 5,165 4,297 33,290
BT -—FEEfHE At 2011 professional valuation - - - _ _
3,383 20,445 5,165 4,297 33,290
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The Group
Cost
At 1 January 2010
Exchange difference
Acquisition of subsidiaries/business

At 31 December 2010 and
1 January 2011
Exchange difference
Acquisition of subsidiaries/business

At 31 December 2011

Accumulated impairment losses
At 31 December 2010,
1 January 2011 and
31 December 2011

Carrying values
At 31 December 2011

At 31 December 2010

#=BAIE B R AT CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 4% 2011

EEEET
HK$ million

9,242
167
262

9,671
266
835

10,772

17

10,755

9,654

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the cash generating
units (“CGU”), each of which represent an operating entity within
the operating segments identified by the Group for the purpose
of segment reporting. A segment level summary of the goodwill

allocation is presented below:

N

2011

BEEET

HK$ million

Retail 4,400
Beer 5,836
Food 491
Beverage 28

—E—T&

2010
BEEET
HKS$ million

4,294
4,939
394
27

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on a
value in use calculation. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a
three-year period and a discount rate of 10% per annum. Cash flows
beyond the three-year period are extrapolated using the nominal

growth rates stated below.
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+ N BB 18. Goodwill continued)
FREEFEEZTERK Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations:
BHRSRENSETZ
ERIERE
Nominal growth rate
beyond the initial
cash flow projections
(%)
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
=€ Retail 10% 10%
by Beer 5% 5%
B Food 3% 3%
R Beverage 5% 5%
+h. RMTB A Rl 2 fE%s 19. Interests in Subsidiaries
—E——fF —E-EF
2011 2010
BEEET BERET
HK$ million HKS$ million
RATE] The Company
FE LR - KANME Unlisted shares, at cost 12,158 14,137
i NI e Amounts due from subsidiaries 8,100 7,349
FERTHT B A RIFRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (3,805) (3,003)
16,453 18,483
R-_TE——F+_A=+—HzZ= Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 are set
EMBARFIETERE17T5EESE out on pages 175 to 181.
1818 °
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20. Other Intangible Assets

HIREE
ag g Shrimp
Brand Exploitation catching &t
names rights quota Total
AEEET BEEET BERET BERET
HK$ milion HK$ million HK$ million HK$ milion
rEHE The Group
R Cost
R-Z—FE—H—0 At1January 2010 305 - - 305
EXEE Exchange difference 15 - - 15
WERIB AR /%%  Acquisition of subsidiaries/
business 64 78 - 142
N_E—ZF At 31 December 2010 and
+-A=1t-HkK 1 January 2011
—2—%—f—H 384 78 - 462
EREE Exchange difference 22 4 - 26
WERIB AR /%%  Acquisition of subsidiaries/
business 39 - - 39
NE Additions 54 - 10 64
RZE——F At 31 December 2011
+-A=+—H 499 82 10 591
Rt ORE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
RZE—ZF—H—H At1January 2010 210 - - 210
ERER Exchange difference 19 _ _ 1
KFEHH Charge for the year 11 _ _ 1
EHRZRERE Impairment loss recognised 10 - - 10
RNZE—EF At 31 December 2010 and
+-RA=t-8K 1 January 2011
—2—%—f—H 243 - - 243
EREE Exchange difference 14 - - 14
REZHH Charge for the year 12 5 - 17
BREAZREEE Impairment loss recognised 7 - - 7
NZE——F At 31 December 2011
+-A=+-H 276 5 - 281
FEFE Net book values
RZE——F At 31 December 2011
+-A=+—H 223 7 10 310
RZE—ZF At 31 December 2010
+-A=+—H 141 78 - 219
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“t- RESE AT 2 R

21. Interests in Associates

—E——F —ET-TF
2011 2010
BEHET B EET
HK$ million HKS$ million
EE The Group
JELET Unlisted
(R &EESE Share of net assets 284 235
EES Goodwill 148 141
432 376

ATHE AR EERE QR 2K

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

WIEER - associates is set out below:

—EB——fF —E—TF
2011 2010
BEEHBET BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
AERE Total assets 2,691 2,238
BERE Total liabilities (1,453) (1,116)
BEFE Net assets 1,238 1,122

AEBEGHEAREETE Group’s share of net assets of
associates 284 235
& Revenue 3,596 2,753
AN A Profit for the year 22 72

R E R B2 N R AR F S R K Group’s share of profits of

associates for the year 10 27
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22. Available for Sale Investments

25 —Z-ZF
2011 2010
BEHET BEEHET
HK$ million HKS$ million

NEE The Group

FRER ETRG - AR EE Listed shares in Chinese Mainland,

at fair value 9 9
ot Aniliyn) Unlisted shares in Hong Kong 9 9
R A IE E TR Unlisted shares in Chinese Mainland 13 5
22 14
31 23

DT - Analysed as:
FERED Non-current 31 23

ETREREN AR BERL2ET
BIREMHEE

FETBROEBERARRSEERLZ
BERTE - ARAEAABEME
HERK  WEEAEHETER
RfEE-

I RAFOR

The fair values of investment in listed equity shares are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices.

The investments in unlisted equity shares are measured at costs less
impairment at each balance sheet date. As the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant, their fair values cannot be

ascertained reliably.

23. Prepayments
—E——F —T-TF
2011 2010
BEEERT BEEET
HK$ million HKS$ million
KEE The Group
Rt A=+—HBzHeReHA Rental deposits at 31 December 437 449
1R —FRER 2 M5 Portion to be utilised within
one year 132 138
R —FEER 2 BH Portion to be utilised after
one year 305 311
R+ A=+—RHz&% Balance at 31 December 437 449
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—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
B¥EET BEEBEET
HK$ million HKS$ million
The Group
Properties held for sale 63 63
Raw materials 1,852 2,002
Consumables and packing
materials 6,832 5,812
Work-in-progress 536 415
Finished goods 11,432 7,334
20,715 15,626
rEH b N
The Group The Company
- —ZT-TF ZB——F —T-ITF
2011 2010 2011 2010
BYEET AB¥AErx BY¥EBR A¥%aErT
HK$ million  HK$ million HKS$ million  HK$ million
Trade receivables 1,553 1,331 - -
Provision for doubtful debts (68) (104) - -
1,485 1,227 - -
Value-added tax recoverable 3,347 1,907 - -
Prepayments 2,627 1,182 1 -
Deposits paid 2,455 409 3 3
Other receivables 1,589 2,066 3 24
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 992 1,000
Amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries 3 11 - -
Amounts due from associates 28 41 - -
11,534 6,843 999 1,027

credit terms:

(@  cash upon delivery; and
(b)  open credit within 60 days

The Group normally trades with its customers under the following
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1L BSRHMWEWEIE®  25. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

NEEENEWE SRR ZERED The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables at the balance
R sheet date:

—E——fF —TEF
2011 2010
BEBET BEEHET
HK$ million HKS$ million

AEE The Group
0-30XK 0 - 30 days 883 675
31 - 60X 31 -60 days 235 240
61 - 90K 61 —90 days 85 93
> 90K > 90 days 282 219
1,485 1,227
NEEBRARNTNREEENE SR The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and
HitElW B AL B EEEERE other receivables at balance sheet date was approximate to the
HEE o corresponding carrying amount.
IR 2B Movement in the provision for doubtful debts
—=E——F —T-EF
2011 2010
BEEET BEBEET
HK$ million HKS$ million
®—HA—H At 1 January 104 120
ERRZRERE Impairment losses recognised 20 2
REEK B E s &5 Amounts written off as uncollectible 62) )
W BT B A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries 3 -
HEME AR Disposal of subsidiaries - (14)
ERERE Exchange difference 3 1
R+=—A=+—8 At 31 December 68 104
18 HA B SRR (B BR X Y BR iR Aging of past due but not impaired
=F—-F —FTTF
2011 2010
BYEER BEBEET
HK$ million HK$ million
#ER 230H Less than 30 days past due 134 114
#18331-60H 31-60 days past due 64 111
#18361-90H 61-90 days past due 36 21
BHEIQ0H M = Over 90 days past due 59 26
293 272
i AREE  INERE R RGNS Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
HRARERNNEL - R FEs range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
i3 YNGR
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=25 =B —ZT-TF —T-TF
2011 2011 2010 2010
BE afE BE a8E
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BYEEHERT BYEER A¥EET BBEERT
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ milion  HK$ million
rEE The Group
¥R Derivatives under hedge
RIEZITAETA accounting
WEMELH - Cash flow hedge:
MEISHE L Interest rate swaps - 8 _ 36
- 8 - 36
DT - Analysed as:
FRE Non-current - - - 14
e Current - 8 - )
- 8 - 36

PAE BRIA R TE BB K R ie
HaH  —#IARERELHH -
AR, 2 7 55 [ R 5 & 0 A S 1) 2= 7y
RSN ERR o FIEEH R
BN SR ER AL - Em N
FRREN SR HEFTESNRFE
ERERNERE - EIRERARER

FREAHMNEEHRNATE - KA
FHREPHERAEOANEER
B BITEARRRERE T EE °

MERERHELER R  BIER
EA—F(ZE—ZFAMF) I
BAREBFHEE — K FlREH
MEBSFEEBTBRITEAERE
([HIBORY) ©

All interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest
amounts for fixed rate interest amounts are designated as cash flow
hedges in order to reduce the Group’s cash flow exposure resulting
from variable interest rates on borrowings. The interest rate swaps
and the interest payments on the loan occur simultaneously and the
amount deferred in equity is recognised in the profit and loss account
over the period that the floating rate interest payments on debt
impact the profit and loss account.

The fair value of interest rate swaps at the balance sheet date is
determined by discounting the future cash flows using the curves at
reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract.

The interest rate swaps have a maturity up to one years (2010: two
years) from the balance sheet date and settle on monthly or quarterly
basis and the floating rate on the interest swaps is the Hong Kong
Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”).
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EH

The Group

—2-——F —T-TF

2011

2010

BEEHERT BBEET
HK$ million  HK$ million

BB SRR Trade payables 18,546
FBULFRIE Receipt in advance 11,084
TEIRRE H Accruals 5,913
2iuze Deposit received 4,712
HAbFERTER Other payables 5,136
JETBN B A B FIE Amounts due to subsidiaries -

FER—RERATIZEIE  Amount due to a holding
company -

ARSI SE] Amounts due to fellow

M8 A RIFRIA subsidiaries 90
JETESE A B R IB Amounts due to associates 6
45,487

REERENE SRR KRS
AT

AEE
0-30Xk
31 -60K
61 -90K
> 90K

AEBEARBNGBEANE SR
Hit BAFAA A BEELREE
HE -

13,592

7,067
4,577
3,227
3,803

118

87
5

32,476

AKATF

The Company
—E——F —ZT-TF
2011 2010
BEHERT BY¥HETL
HK$ million  HK$ million
18 18
3 2
3,962 5,101
3,983 5,121

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the balance

sheet date:

The Group
0 - 30 days
31 -60 days
61 - 90 days
> 90 days

S

2011

BEEET
HK$ million

10,739
2,333
3,688
1,786

18,546

—EEF

2010
BEEET
HKS$ million

7,640
2,967
1,061
1,924

13,592

The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and
other payables at balance sheet date was approximate to the

corresponding carrying amount.

159



160

B3R &5 M 5E NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1R FEHAE K

28A.Short Term Loans

—E——F —ET-TF
2011 2010
BEEET BEEBEET
HK$ million HK$ million
NEE The Group
REERANARER D Current portion of long term loans
—EIMPIRITE R — unsecured bank loans 4,000 3,195
— REABE AL A - long term obligations under
finance leases 1 1
RHSRITREMER R Short term bank and other loans
(EELe: and trust receipts
— A - secured 25 -
— R — unsecured 3,066 955
7,092 4,151
1t REAE R 28B.Long Term Loans
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
BEAER BEEET
HK$ million HKS$ million
NEE The Group
ARRFNER 2 BERRITER Unsecured bank loans repayable
within 5 years 12,429 11,331
BEARAFRNEBEERZ Unsecured bank loans not wholly
EIXIPIRITE R repayable within 5 years 4 4
ARRFNER 2 Ht SR ER Other unsecured loans repayable
within 5 years 9 18
ARRFNER 2 BERAHIE Obligations under finance leases
repayable within 5 years 1 1
12,443 11,354
YR mE & E 2 BIERER ) Current portion included in
current liabilities (4,001) (3,196)
8,442 8,158
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—B——F —E-EF
2011 2010
BE¥EERT BEBEET
HK$ million HKS$ million
The Group
The non-current portion of long
term liabilities are repayable as
follows:
Bank Loans
After 1 year, but within 2 years 3,299 4,732
After 2 years, but within 5 years 5,130 3,404
After 5 years 4 4
Other Loans
After 1 year, but within 2 years 9 18
8,442 8,158

The aggregate amount of committed borrowing facilities available to
the Group is HK$13.48 billion. As at 31 December 2011, a sum of
HK$13.48 billion has been drawn down.

Under the terms of the agreements of the Group’s unsecured
bank loans repayable within five years, CRH, a holding company, is
required to remain as a beneficial owner of at least 35% of the voting
shares of the Company or remain as a single largest shareholder
(whether directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the
Company.

The Group has floating rate borrowings denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars, US Dollars and Renminbi with interest rates linked to
HIBOR, London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) and the lending rate
stipulated by the People’s Bank of China respectively.

The effective annual interest rates on the Group’s floating rate
borrowings range from mainly 0.41% to 6.10%. (2010: from 0.45%
to 5.35% per annum).
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FRARLHBAEERABZEEH(HE
Al — iR 2 AR EERT) AN T

KEE The Group
RIEHIBARE Deferred taxation assets
R—HA—H At 1 January
ERaBEHEx Credited/(charged) to
iR/ (HRR) consolidated profit and
loss account
WS E AR Acquisition of subsidiaries
2 %‘Jﬂx? Businesses injected by
EAEH non-controlling interests
BEM2ENE  Charged to other
ez comprehensive income
ERAE Exchange rate adjustment

A+ZA=+—H At31 December

EEREEENREBENRIERNSS
EARKRRERRABFNER A L
R AREEBEEMER - K=
T——F+_A=+—8  £A&E
RERZ MG EEEK1,8888
BN (ZT—ZTF : B%204588
JC) - MAREAREERETE AT S E A Z
S IRIB B R R FER B URA KT 8
IS EBERAFANRRZ RER
ZHIEEBEEBE1 67958 (=
T—TF : B 832BETT) °

The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balance within the same taxation jurisdiction) recognised
during the year is as follows:

WA BEREM
bk Impairment, provision =H
Tax losses and others Total

—§-—% -3-3§ —%—-% -T TF —%--§ -TI%

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

BETER E¥EEr BYEER ANEEn BY¥EEx B¥IER
HK$ million  HK$ milion HK$ million  HK$ milion HK$ million  HK$ milion

53 64 503 269 556 333
4 (14) 177 184 181 170
- - 1 - 1 .
- - 4 - 4 -
- - - @ - @
1 3 19 52 20 55

58 53 704 503 762 556

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2011, the Group
has unrecognised tax losses of HK$1,888 million (2010: HK$2,045
million) which is uncertain as to whether it can be utilised to set off
against future taxable income. Out of this amount, the unrecognised
tax loss of HK$1,679 million (2010: HK$1,832 million) will expire
within 5 years.
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The components of deferred taxation liabilities recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the year are as
follows:

KAEEZ
EHFEHR
REMEER  MEBERE  Withholding
Revaluation  Accelerated tax on
of investment tax  undistributed Hit a3t
property  depreciation profits Others Total
BEEET BEBETL BEBET BEEET BEEET
HK$ milion HK$ milion HK$ milion HKS milion HK$ milion
K&E The Group
RZZ-25-A-H At1 January 2010 1,184 308 133 4 1,624
BEABERRNG Charged/ (credited) to
consolidated profit and
loss account 194 0 276 - 463
Wk B ] Acquisition of subsicliaries - 6 - _ 6
ERFE Exchange rate adjustment - - - 3
WZE-FF+-A=+—HLK At31 December 2010 and
“F—%-f-H 1 January 2011 1,378 305 409 4 2,096
EfRABaRIR Charged to consolidated proft
and loss account 188 6 120 - 314
WEHBAT Acqisition of subsidliaries 16 54 - - 70
SR ANER Businesses injected by
non-controlling interests - 5 - - 5
EREE Exchange rate adjustment - 10 1 - "
RZE—E+-RA=+-H At 31 December 2011 1,582 380 530 4 2,496

RIBHEARKMBEFER - iR
EHENTRMBEARE T
NFE—A—BRRENFEME M
B RSB 7 O = IR FE R IR AR 0 BT
FETREHE A TR R 80 2R i B IR
BRLERIEER

ARRZELER AR BEREREY
¥t REFUREMEENMD
HEBBHTE -

RZE—F+=ZRA=+—H ' H
fbIERB) B B B IR B S #4093
BEL(ZZ—ZF : BE304EE
JL) c BB EB A E AREM
BRI g £ B TR & T b Asaa -

Under the Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has been provided for
undistributed profits to the extent that declaration of dividends are
anticipated in the foreseeable future.

The Company’s deferred taxation liabilities relate to the accelerated
tax depreciation of its investment property, land and building and
other assets.

At 31 December 2011, other non-current liabilities included
government grants of HK$493 million (2010: HK$304 million). The
government grants mainly represent subsidies granted by PRC
governmental authorities towards the purchases of leasehold land.
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—E——F —T-TF
2011 2010
RHOEE HE RinEE [Nl
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares Value shares Value
BER BEEER BER AB¥EEsT
million HK$ million million  HKS$ million
JETE Authorised
EREESE1T Ordinary shares of
2 EE HK$1 each 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
EEITRBREA  Issued and fully paid
R—A—H At 1 January 2,398 2,398 2,396 2,396
1T{E R RS Exercise of share options 1 1 2 2
W+—_A=+—H At 31 December 2,399 2,399 2,398 2,398

ARRRLERAETE - §IRE2
BEEHRRNA AL  BOEER
RAZ BIR([FETEL) - thoh - 1R
BARR-HER-_ZT_F—A
=t—BRIERERER (&5
gl R_ZE-—ZFFEFETH
HARE R RITHRE ©

MR T _F—-A=+—H
ZHRERAE LEAE - RRR T
EMENAZ+TRERRBBAER
REBERER  YER B ——F—
A=t—BEH - ARAEFEA
RAEERSEERNBRE %%
RERSEEREASE ZEMH
THIFNTES (SEERZEZA
) BAKREZEMFEE - #1T
EEYHNTESTARINBBERE
FE2IEFER - AEBZEMITHA
g &8 EXER- FXEERk
HER (REZRREE 2 LA
1) ARFESTHRABLEER
R AEEZBERR  ARALZ
BEE  HRTRABRTIERRW
BMEA TEERRNES R(HEEX
EERREAF)) TERRNMEAF
HER °

PR —AREDES 2 AR T R
BRHBERERRREANF ZHRA
BT YRBERHZAESTER
176 -

The Company operates a share options scheme for the purpose of
promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objectives
of the Company by the participants (the “New Scheme”). In addition,
certain outstanding share options for the year 2010 were held under
a share option scheme of the Company which was terminated on 31
January 2002 (the “Old Scheme”).

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general
meeting on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently amended on
20 August 2004 by an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders,
and expired on 31 January 2012. The board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible participants including any
executive or non-executive directors of the Group (or persons
proposed to be appointed as such), any discretionary object of a
discretionary trust established by any employee, executive or non-
executive directors of the Group, any executives and employees,
consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group (or persons
proposed to be appointed as such), chief executive, substantial
shareholder of the Company, associated companies of the Group,
associates of directors, chief executive and substantial shareholder of
the Company, and employees of substantial shareholder and where
a substantial shareholder is a company, employees of subsidiaries of
a substantial shareholder.

Share options are generally either fully vested or vested over a period
of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a
grant and exercisable within a period of 10 years immediately after
the date of grant.



RIEH BRI 2 IR B3 1
RN

R=F-—-%
-A-H
%8 HR{TE
REAH Exercise Outstanding
Date of grant price at1/1/2011
BT
HK$
Hitd
New Scheme
07/02/2002 717 84,000
05/03/2002 7.35 401,000
19/04/2002 7.40 244,000
02/08/2002 8.32 150,000
14/04/2003 6.29 4,000
08/10/2003 8.90 52,000
14/01/2004 9.72 1,442,000
20/04/2004 9.89 840,000
25/05/2004 9.15 566,000
02/06/2004 9.55 600,000
04/10/2004 1035 3,478,000
22/07/2005 12.50 100,000
7,961,000
ARERITE
Exercisable at the end of the year
MERSEECEET)
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 9.74
BREREASTNT -
Hatdl
New Scheme
FZDirectors 600,000
{EEEmployees 6,960,000
2 EEOher participants 401,000
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Details of the movement of the share options granted under New

Scheme are summarised as follows:

BREHE
Number of share options
REFE  RAEE

ikl BT
Exercised  Cancelled
during during
the year! the year

REREE
Rit
Granted
during
the year

- 40,000 -
- 106,000 -

- 50,000 -
- 194,000 -

- 126,000 -
- 400,000 -
- 168,000 -
- 100,000 -

1,184,000 -

- 9.60 -

Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:

- 400,000
- 744000 -
- 40,000 -

REEE

K

Lapsed
during
the year

R=B-—-%
+=A=+-8
WA
Outstanding
at 31/12/2011

84,000
361,000
138,000
150,000

4,000
2,000
1,248,000
840,000
440,000
200,000
3,310,000

6,777,000

6,777,000

9.77

200,000
6,216,000
361,000

EREREZ
fhEtAAEE
Estimated
fair value of
the share
option
granted
BET
HKS
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Number of share options B DABE
R-Z2-BF REFE REEE  REAEE  REAFE  R-Z-BF Estimated
-A-H it i BT %% tZA=t-H fair value of
1@ HAk{TE  Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed EAITE the share
REAH Exercise Outstanding during during during during  Outstanding option
Date of grant price at1/1/2010  theyear  theyear'  theyear  theyear at31/12/2010 granted
BT BT
HK$ HK$
Eqtdl
0Old Scheme
20/06/2000 719 228,000 - - - 228,000 - -
21/11/2000 7.08 350,000 - 350,000 - - - -
578,000 - 350,000 - 228000 -
el
New Scheme
07/02/2002 717 184,000 - 100,000 - - 84,000 -
05/08/2002 7.35 431,000 - 30,000 - - 401,000 -
19/04/2002 740 244,000 - - - - 244,000 -
02/08/2002 8.32 150,000 - - - - 150,000 -
14/04/2003 6.29 4,000 - - - - 4,000 -
01/08/2003 7.10 30,000 - 30,000 - - - -
08/10/2003 8.90 72,000 - 20,000 - - 52,000 -
14/01/2004 972 2,026,000 - 584,000 - - 1,442,000 -
20/04/2004 9.89 840,000 - - - - 840,000 -
25/05/2004 9.15 778,000 - 212,000 - - 566,000 -
02/06/2004 9.55 600,000 - - - - 600,000 -
04/10/2004 1035 4,690,000 - 1,212,000 - - 3,478,000 -
17/01/2005 11.40 40,000 - 40,000 - - - -
22/07/2005 12.50 250,000 - 150,000 - - 100,000 -
10,339,000 - 2,378,000 - - 7,961,000
10,917,000 - 2,728,000 - 228000 7,961,000
ARELITR
Exercisable at the end of the year 7,961,000
MERSEE(EST)
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 9.67 - 9.64 - 719 9.74
BRERBASTNT - Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
Eqtdl
0Old Scheme
[EEEmployees 578,000 - 350,000 - 228000 -
Hatdl
New Scheme
#=Directors 600,000 - - - - 600,000
JEEEmployees 9,308,000 - 2,348,000 - - 6,960,000
Hip2EEOther participants 431,000 - 30,000 - - 401,000
Bt e - Notes:
1. FREITEBRENITER S 2N 1. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
TR (B R 30.66TT( =T — options exercised during the year was HK$30.66 (2010: HK$29.30).

T ¢ HE#20.300T) °
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BRHRE
Share
premium
AERET
HKS$ million
The Company
At 1 January 2010 12,923
Shares issued at premium 24
Profit for the year -
Dividends -
At 31 December 2010 and
1 January 2011
12,947
Shares issued at premium 10
Profit for the year -
Dividends -
At 31 December 2011
12,957

BER®G
HERE
Employee
share-based
compensation
reserve
AERET
HKS$ million

172

172

REEF
Retained
profits
BEEET
HKS$ million

2,010

2,933
(1,175)

3,768

1,275
(1,271)

3,772

Bt

Total
BEBET
HK$ million

15,105
24
2,933
(1,175)

16,887
10
1,275
(1,271)

16,901

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 108 to 109.

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to the

TAE  EMK shareholders amounted to HK$3,772 million (2010: HK$3,768

million).
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BB RIE A
HE
JEAE B AR AR
HEMB AR, %5
Frig s F
HEEE R RIPISET
HE R EREMMSHEN

FEETAEREREMEA
MEHA

FBH

HEBIEEEF R A
EHERZEEEERERE
ERER KB EERERE
EHERZFERIERE

e
Hitb BB E#H

REWMEEHER

BonBEFABENEREE
B4R

BIEHE —HBE QR Z S ET

BRI

oy B
BENE LD

Hifr e 2 &
B 5 MEMEWGRIEZ &

B 5 R A A 3R

REMBZAE

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Share of net results of associates

Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/
business

Profit on disposal of associates

Profit on disposal of available for
sale investments

Dividend income from unlisted
available for sale investments

Interest income

Interest expenses

Net profit on disposal of fixed
assets

Impairment loss recognised
on fixed assets

Impairment loss recognised
on other intangible assets

Impairment loss recognised
on stocks

Depreciation

Amortisation of other intangible
assets

Valuation gain on investment
properties

Valuation deficit on financial
assets at fair value through
profit and loss

Profit on deemed disposal of
an associate

Government grants recognised

Operating cash inflows before

working capital changes
Prepayment for rental deposit
Changes in properties held for
sale
Changes in other stocks
Changes in trade and
other receivables
Changes in trade and
other payables

Cash generated from operations

—E——F

2011
BEEER
HK$ million

5,426
(10)

(@)

(1)
(301)
161

(28)

281
2,877

17

(1,137)

(30)
97)

7,246
(5,142)
(4,195)

11,564
9,479

—E-TF

2010
EEEET
HK$ million

8,414
27)

(3,561)
(98)

(10)

10

236
2,565

11

(1,335)

419

6,395
(50)

56
(4,741)

(1,208)

7,518
7,970
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B &3R5 MfsE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow

Statement (continued)

HEMB AT, %1% B Disposal of subsidiaries/business
25 —Z-ZF
2011 2010
BEEET BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
HEEEFE Net assets disposed of:
EEEE Fixed assets - 8
AERE Available for sale investments - 24
rE Stocks - 20
B 5 R EMEY A Trade and other receivables - 81
e RRITHET Cash and bank balances - 24
SEAGHENEE Assets classified as held for sale - 1,132
H 5N EA NI Trade and other payables - (144)
FERIBETE Tax payable - ®)
PEEARENEEY Liabilities associated with assets
EEaE classified as held for sale - (398)
- 741
SEIEHIR R M = Non-controlling interests - (340)
FERED Reserve released - ®1)
HEWB AR, EBHEEF Profit on disposal of
subsidiaries/business - 3,561
- 3,901
ATRAAZA Satisfied by:
RERE Cash consideration - 3,413
EIERE Deferred consideration - 100
EFBMB RS Deposits received in last year - 388
- 3,901
HEWMBAR $BHME2 Analysis of the net inflow of
RERREEERABEIN cash and cash equivalents
in respect of disposal of
subsidiaries/business
2EESRE Cash considerations received - 3,413
HER e MRTER Cash and bank balances
disposed of - (24)
- 3,389
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REBEARGEENRARE -

BEEEE
Hit BV EE
AERE
BB E
&

B 5 R EMEWRIA

ARETRIA

e RIRITHETF
B 5 REMENTIEA

ST LB
FEfTRIR
REER
EETRRAE

FEFETIR R M
WelB i EEAE 2 P

AT B3 AT

B

XA ERREE L

NAfEE

FERHE

EFENZEE

WEHB AR, EB2RER
RESERGFEIN

ENRERE

WP RS MIRTTAETF

The assets acquired and
liabilities recognised at
the dates of acquisition:
Fixed assets
Other intangible assets
Available for sale investments
Deferred taxation assets
Stocks
Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable
Cash and bank balances
Trade and other payables
Short term loans
Tax payable
Long term loans
Deferred taxation liabilities

Non-controlling interests
Goodwill on acquisition

Discharged by:

Cash

Fair value of equity interests in
an associate before the
business combination

Balance of consideration payable

Cash consideration paid in
last year

Analysis of the net outflow of
cash and cash equivalents
in respect of acquisition
of subsidiaries/business’s
undertaking
Cash consideration paid
Cash and bank balances

acquired

—E——F

2011
BEEER
HK$ million

1,913
39

7

1

195
295

408
(1,157)
(75)
(1)
(70)

1,555
(207)
835

2,183

1,921

262

2,183

(1,921)

408

(1,513)

—E-TF

2010
EEEET
HK$ million

352
142

33
898

(827)

379
(448)
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rEH b N
The Group The Company
—B——F —ZT-TF B--F IZ-IZF
2010 2010 2011 2010
BEEErT ABaEr BY¥EEx ABEER
HKS$ million  HK$ milion HK$ million  HK$ million
REZEREE Capital commitments
SR 2 B A EYED outstanding at the balance
N sheet date are as follows:
EFELEMABE  Contracted but not
provided for 4,721 2,859 - -
BHREERREY Authorised but not
contracted for 7,116 4,998 - -
11,837 7,857 - -
AEE AT
The Group The Company
-5 —Z-ITF ZB--F —ZT-ZF
2011 2010 2011 2010
BEEErT ABaEr BY¥EEx A¥asrx
HK$ million  HK$ milion HK$ million  HK$ million
REEE R - 1BIETA] At the balance sheet date,
ST EAAER  the total future minimum
WTNEAE S 2 & lease payments under
RABERIEEE non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as
follows:
-E—FA — Within one year 2,933 2,613 3 7
-HEE_FEZERF - Inthe second to fifth year
(BIEEREMT) inclusive 10,285 8,180 - 12
-RFZE — After five years 15,615 13,478 - _
28,833 24,271 3 19
EREHEFEEARERAETE Operating lease payment represents rental payable by the Group for
EFTURMESAZ2EE - B certain of its retail outlets and properties. Leases are negotiated for

ITBR-E_TFEZHEEFHES -

lease terms principally ranged from 1 to 20 years.
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The Group The Company
—EB——-F —T-TF B--F IZ-IZF
2011 2010 2011 2010

BEEHERT BYEEEL BY¥EER BBEET
HK$ million  HK$ milion HKS$ million  HK$ million
REEE R - 1BIBEAA] At the balance sheet date,
ST EMAER  the total future minimum
IMTEARUWENZ &  lease payments under

EREFIEAR non-cancellable operating
leases are receivable as
follows:
—E—FRN — Within one year 1,058 869 1 1
—HEE_FEFRF - Inthe second to fifth year
(BIEEEMT) inclusive 1,987 1,428 - 1
—RFZE — After five years 610 713 - -
3,655 3,010 1 2
WEMERTEER2HERTEEM These properties and retail outlets have committed tenants for lease
BAFENT1ZE20%F - terms principally ranged from 1 to 20 years.
rEH N
The Group The Company
—E——F —Z-ZF ZB-—-F "IT-TF
2011 2010 2011 2010

BEEHET BYEEL BY¥EER ABEET
HK$ million  HK$ million HKS$ million  HK$ million
REEER - KRATA  Atthe balance sheet date,
THARIRMEIEFT  there were contingent
NEAME IR T liabilities in respect of
EEZSHAREE guarantees for banks loans
provided to subsidiaries - - 7,975 7,020
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Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. In addition to the
transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material related

party transactions.

Purchase of goods from
Fellow subsidiaries
Associates

Receipt of services from
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries
Associates

Sales of goods to
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries
Associates

Rendering of services to
Fellow subsidiaries
Associates

Operating lease payment to
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries
Associates

Interest received from
A fellow subsidiary

Transaction under godown
management agreement and
facilities management
Receipt of service fee from

A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries

Payment of monthly fee to
A holding company
Fellow subsidiaries

—E——F
2011
BEEET
HK$ million

10
231

496
18

N

N

14
56

16

103
74

24

—E-FF

2010
B EET
HKS$ million

212

136
21

11
57

94
86

24
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37.

B

38.

39.

Material Related Party Transactions (continued)
Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities in
Chinese Mainland

The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies under
CRNC which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the
transactions with CRNC group and the associates of the Group, it
also conducts businesses with entities directly or indirectly owned
or controlled by the PRC government in the ordinary course of
business. The directors are of the opinion that those entities other
than the CRNC group do not have the power to govern or participate
in the financial and operating policies of the Group. The transactions
including sales and purchases of goods and services and bank
deposits and corresponding interest income, with these entities
are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group’s business. The
Group believes that it has provided, at the best of its knowledge,
adequate and appropriate disclosure of related party transactions as
summarised above.

Compensation of key management personnel
Remuneration paid for key management personnel include solely the
directors of the Company disclosed in note 10.

Events after the Reporting Period

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire a
100% interest in Jiangxi Hongkelong Department Store Investment
Company Limited at a consideration of RMB3,690 million. The
acquisition was completed subsequent to the balance sheet date in
January 2012.

Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements set out on pages 101 to 181 were approved
by the board of directors on 21 March 2012.
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R -FE——4F+— J=+—H At 31 December 2011

HWEAR

Subsidiaries

(=)
(1

2
Retail

REBZMARYL

Incorporated in Hong Kong

hE(FE)BRAA
Chinese Arts & Crafts (H.K))
Limited

FHER(BE)ERAR
China Resources Vanguard
(Hong Kong) Company Limited

EBMR(AEEE)ERAR

China Resources Logistics
(Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown)
Limited

ERME(FR) AR AR
CRE Properties (Hong Kong)
Limited

CRE Property (Argyle Centre)
Limited

CRE Property (Silvercord) Limited

CRE Property (Hennessy) Limited

EEEXERAR
Worldfaith Properties Limited

Pacific Coffee Company Limited

ERTEBRRE
HE/ZEREE

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

KEEER
attributable to
the Group

5,000,000 &R EIE

BH10T 2 SRR
5,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10 each

100.0

90,000,000 &R A A
BTz EBR

90,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

100.0

1,000,0008 B AR EE
BT LRk

1,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

100.0

RERAEESE T LER
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

100.0

REREERE T LRk
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

100.0

REREESE T Rk
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

100.0

REREESE T Rk
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

100.0

SREREEAB T ERR 88.6

3 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

77,355 BREEEE1 T2
LEk

77,355 ordinary shares of HK$1
each

80.0

ENEpil

Percentage of capital

ANARE  WERARES
held by held by
the Company  subsidiaries

= 100.0

= 100.0

= 100.0

= 100.0

= 100.0

= 100.0

= 100.0

= 100.0

= 100.0

IREH

Principal activities

TEXK

Retail business

BmER - REERR
SmitE

Supermarket operations,
investment holding and
wholesale of merchandise

BE R AR
Wharf & godown services

REBREMEER
Investment holding and
property management

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

MSFERE S - LR
RIRBRERT

Trading of coffee products,
operation of coffee shops
and provision of maintenance
services
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Gl

Subsidiaries

(=)
(1)

SE(8)

Retail (continued)

R E R T

BERTERRRA
HfE/ ERER

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/

registered capital

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

%] b r% ? ﬁ R
(China Resources Vanguard
Co., Ltd.)

FHER BN ETERAR

(China Resources Vanguard
(Suzhou) Supermarket Co.,
Ltd.)

BREMARAR
(Suguo Supermarket Co., Ltd.)

HIEREEREETERAR

(China Resources Cikelong
(Zhejiang) Supermarket Co.,
Ltd.)

EEBEREEETEM)
BRAF
(China Resources Vanguard
(Guangzhou) Superstore
Co., Ltd))

EHEREERTONT)
BRAT

(China Resources Vanguard
(Zhejiang) Superstore Co. Ltd.)

AREBERLEEMARAA

RAEZEERLEETARAH

ARH3,376,600,0007C

(FHER)
RMB3,376,600,000
(Registered capital)

ARE2197,720,0007

(BWER)
RMB2,197,720,000
(Paid up share capital)

12,006,140 7T
US$12,096,140

AR 582,820,000
RMB582,820,000

AK%124,000,0007
RMB124,000,000

AR H50,000,0007C
RMB50,000,000

AR 128,000,000
RMB128,000,000

AR%120,000,0007
RMB120,000,000

AR H60,000,0007C
RMB60,000,000

Percentage of capital

FRARE WELARA
held by

subsidiaries

KEEER
attributable to
the Group the Company

100.0

100.0

85.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

35.0

100.0

85.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

IREH

Principal activities

e

Supermarket operations

e

Supermarket operations

B

Supermarket operations

BMEH

Supermarket operations

EiES)

Supermarket operations

B

Supermarket operations

e

Supermarket operations

e

Supermarket operations
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BERTEBRRA
HE/ HEREX

Nominal value of issued

WEAR ordinary share capital/
Subsidiaries registered capital
(=) BE&#H)
(1) Retail (continued)
ReERBIRAL(E)
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (continued)
AREREMARAT ARH5,000,00070
RMB5,000,000
IHFEHERRAR AR10,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000
THEEERERAT AR#20,000,0007T
RMB20,000,000

L5l
Beer
REBE LR SRR
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
EESRBREERAT 42,800,300 BIREE1ET
China Resources Snow ZERR
Breweries Limited 42,800,300 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
RAE R ERE Y
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland
EESEWE(m)I) AR#124,143,8537C
AREERF RMB124,143,853
(China Resources Snow

Breweries (Sichuan) Co., Ltd.)

RZFE——4F+ = H=+—H At 31 December 2011

REEDL

Percentage of capital
*EEEE  ANRRE KWERAIRA
attributable to held by held by
the Group the Company  subsidiaries
100.0 - 100.0
85.0 - 85.0
434 - 434
51.0 51.0 -
51.0 - 100.0

IEEH

Principal activities

B EBRIREER
Supermarket operations and
investment holding

B EBRIREER
Supermarket operations and
investment holding

B EBRIREBER
Supermarket operations and
investment holding

REZR
Investment holding

HEND HREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products



178

Q
N—=

——%E 1= J=+—H At 31 December 2011

WELTE

Subsidiaries

(2)
@

BE(E)
Beer (continued)

ReERSERAL(E)

BERTERRRA
HfE/ ERER

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/

registered capital

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (continued)

EREREE (TP
BREFAR

(China Resources Snow
Brewery (Qionglai) Co., Ltd.)

ERSEWE(RRE)BRARF

ERERBE(B5)
BREFAR
(China Resources Snow

Breweries (Mianyang) Co., Ltd.)

EEERRE(ZH)ERAR

(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Anhui)
Company Limited)

ERETRE(HZ)ARAT

(China Resources Snow Brewery

(Wuhan) Co., Ltd.)

ERSTRE(ME)RE
BRAR

A

ERETRE(EE)ARAT

ARE213792,5017C
RMB213,792,501

AR#15,000,0007C
RMB15,000,000

AR#120,000,0007
RMB120,000,000

AK%100,000,0007
RMB100,000,000

AR 246,000,000
RMB246,000,000

AK%570,000,0007
RMB570,000,000

617,673,544.38% T
US$617,673,544.38

109,252,889% T
US$109,252,889

Percentage of capital
FRARE WELARA
held by

KEEER
attributable to
the Group the Company

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

459

51.0

51.0

held by
subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

90.0

100.0

100.0

IREH

Principal activities

HENDHBEER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

HEND HREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

HEND HREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

HEND HREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

HEND HREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

HEND HREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

RERR
Investment holding

HEND S BER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products



HWEAR

Subsidiaries

BB (%5)
r

Beer (continued)

ReERBERAL(E)
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R=-ZF——12F+—= H=+—H At 31 December 2011

ERTEBRRRA REABA

HE/ FRER Percentage of capital

Nominal value of issued REBEN FATEBE WBAREE

ordinary share capital/ attributable to held by heldby FEE#H

registered capital the Group the Company  subsidiaries Principal activities

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (continued)

ERSEWE(ER)BRAR

NEEHREEREERAR

(China Resources (Dalian)
Bangchuidao Brewery Co.,
Ltd.)

ERSEEGHTRG
BRATF

EHIL

ERSERE(IEH)BRAT
(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Jiangsu) Limited)

EHTEE(ER)ARAT

BE(BET)ERAF

55,850,000 7T
US$55,850,000

AE#96,000,0007
RMB96,000,000

AR#120,000,0007
RMB120,000,000

25,800,000 7T
US$25,800,000

114,000,000 7T
US$114,000,000

20,108,388% T
US$20,103,388

AR H21,000,0007C
RMB21,000,000

ARH77,680,0007
RMB77,680,000

51.0

51.0

37.2

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

100.0

100.0

730

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

HENDHREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

HENDHBEER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

HENDHBEER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

HEND HREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

HEND HREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

HEND HREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

BEND HREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products

HEND HREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer products
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WELTE

Subsidiaries

(=)
@

BR
Food

REEZMAY
Incorporated in Hong Kong

EFERLARAA
(7118 - RETBRAF)

China Resources Ng Fung Limited

(formerly known as Ng Fung
Hong Limited)

RSB SHEMAY

Incorporated in Cayman Islands

(PEERAXAR)

ERTEBRRE
A/ EMEL

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

1,046,258,0008% SR B
BT TR
1,046,258,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each

60,864 FREE1ETT

China International Fisheries Corp 7 % @k

REBE LR BEMR L

60,864 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

Victory Return Gorporation

B R R A

1REREEIFT TRk
1 ordinary share of US$1 each

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

TERMORINERLA
(Ng Fung Foods (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd))

RER MR
Incorporated in Senegal

Senegal Peches S.A.

AK%543,000,0007
RMB543,000,000

100,000,000F3E/% 56
FCFA 100,000,000

Percentage of capital

FRARE WELARA
held by

subsidiaries

KEEER
attributable to
the Group the Company

100.0

51.0

51.0

70.0

51.0

100.0

51.0

100.0

700

100.0

IREH

Principal activities

HERRRMSH BB
2 RmRERRESRR
Distribution of fresh, live and
frozen foodstuff, abattoir
operation, acting as food
agent and investment
holding

RERR
Investment holding

WBEERREMERERA
e

Marine fishing and the
provision of ship stores and
fishing supplies

BEAR BHEE RE
MIRZREH %

Livestock raising, abattoir
operation, meat products
processing and poultry
wholesaling

BENIRAHE
Seafood processing and
distribution
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ERTEERRA
HE/ FRER
Nominal value of issued
WEAR ordinary share capital/
Subsidiaries registered capital
(m)  #m
(4) Beverage
RPEREERRL
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland
o ERRERMAACRI) ARH12,000,0007
BRAT] RMB12,000,000
(China Resources C'estbon
Food & Beverage (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.)
() BRERHEM

(5) Investments and Others

REBZMARYL

Incorporated in Hong Kong

EREFEHMB(ER)ERRA  2REREEEE T ERR
CRE Finance (Hong Kong) Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

RS RS

Incorporated in Cayman Islands

Purple Finance Limited EREEIET EBR
3 ordinary shares of US$1 each

RZFE——4F+ = H=+—H At 31 December 2011

RABAL
Percentage of capital
*EEEE  ANRRE KWERAIRA
attributable to held by held by

the Group the Company  subsidiaries

60.0 = 100.0
100.0 100.0 =
100.0 100.0 =

IEEH

Principal activities

SRS HER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beverage

g

Financing

§%

Financing

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive length and therefore the above

For companies incorporated in the Chinese Mainland, the English name is as shown in the Certificate of Approval of each company.

B 5E
Notes:
—. EERA - 2HIFJIAMBEMEFESEREENITR M ERERIEAEEXENEEASAXEN I MBRARFE
1.
list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries which materially affect the results or assets of the Group.
—. MREEFAEIN  BFRAZEEEEMERRIMENVE MK PAEMDE o
2. Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.
=. ERBERMAMKRZ AR - EEXEBR/NE B ZHETERR °
3
* aBh%
* Equity Joint Venture
* SNEREE
* Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise
A X A
A Chinese trade name
@ WIFERIEE) o BAER S SEHRITTEIZZ AF]
@ Companies not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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182

A=+
Location

RERENE

Properties held for investment

]
Hong Kong

i A0 —H

HBEAZD « T 1418 - 4ETF S - 5
R 7B 1 [ P ST e
EEEHIMERESR

TV BEHT AR F B 6885 10 & £ 11655
Argyle Centre, Phase |

Portion A on Basement, Portion of G/F,

1 to 4/F and Flat Roof of 4/F, 5/F and

Part of External Walls and the Signboard of
Portion A of Argyle Centre facing Sai Yeung
Choi Street South and Argyle Street and
Scavenging lane, 688 Nathan Road,

65 Argyle Street

Mongkok, Kowloon

SELIN
RS K57 EBAL

A034-A041 ~ A044 - A128 -

A4201 ~ A4301 + A4502 R A4B602FE N7
B EIEEECETR)
RIEHBHBRAEZRIRARKIER 2 =M
MAZES L AFK264-2985

Nan Fung Centre

Lorry Parking Space Nos. 31 and 57 on Basement
Units A034-A041, A044, A128, A4201, A4301,

A4502 and A4602 and portion on 1/F-3/F with

Flat Roof and the space between the floor ceiling
and the original concrete ceiling over portion of 3/F

264-298 Castle Peak Road
Tsuen Wan, New Territories

=

H NOBSR AR - 10A5R &8 & —1EA% - CH
NEERDIBEHRTEF B3R

Star House

Shop 9B - 10A on G/F & Shop A - Con 1/F
3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

1t BR 4 5%

Lot number

REIER 126257

AR - BERREHER
ZETHhSEMmHER
Certain parts or shares
of and in Sections A,
B and H of Kowloon
Inland Lot No. 1262

£
258572

ETmE

Sundry shares of and
in Tsuen Wan Town
Lot No. 258

NBEEHER105%
ALz ETEbD
Part of and in
Section A of
Kowloon Marine
Lot No. 10

FEE
ik Rz
Group’s
Interest

100%

100%

100%

BEEE
(F7K)
Floor
Area A%
(sg.m.) Type
7,216 [
C
7,075 /5
C/CP
1,337 [
C

AR FH

Lease term

=i

Long

Gl
Medium

RH
Long
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R —F——2F = H=+—H At 31 December 2011

BEEEE
rEE (FAXK)
FribfEs Floor

wE #E RS  Group’s Area Az HOFH
Location Lot number Interest (sg.m.) Type Lease term
BIEREWEE)
Properties held for investment (continued)
BR(E)
Hong Kong (continued)
ZRBHL M0 ER 83475 2 100% 8,982 ] RH
T 5-185% » 20A » 20B20CEk &z - HETEMIMNE © Long
RAEADAAD)READBAD) - Certain parts or
1232 ERMERETS shares of and in
BB R RE19-315% RAEAT2-85 Inland Lot No. 8347
Lok Sing Centre
Shop Nos. 5-18, 20A, 20B and 20C on G/F
Entrance at Yee Wo Street (Entrance A)
Entrance at Sugar Street (Entrance B)
the whole of 1/F to 3/F
and the whole Flat Roof on 4/F Level
19-31 Yee Wo Street and 2-8 Sugar Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
AL LB A ER 106565 2 100% 7,849 /15 RH
38554 - HETE MmN C/CP Long
1123054 R 21241 55 & Certain parts or
HEE13, 14, 15, 16 X175 EAL shares of and in
BESSD IR ERIESO Kowloon Inland
Silvercord Lot No. 10656
Shop No. 38 on the G/F,
Shop No. 39 on 1/F and Shop No. 41 on 2/F
Tower 1 and Car Parking Spaces
Nos. 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 on Basement
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
hEAE BRE N HLER 30057 100% 13,900 T ]
BRI BIE165%, Kwun Tong Inland I Medium

CAC Tower Lot No. 300
165 Hoi Bun Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
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A=+
Location

BERENX(E)

Properties held for investment (continued)

Fi#(#)

Hong Kong (continued)

PAEEKRE

T - 5118 - 1318 - 15820182 B(REXA)
Rt 128578 AL -
NUBRIDEEMAT1155%

Chung Dah Godown Building

Ground floor, 5 to 11/F, 13/F,

15/F to 20/F (including Main Roof)

and Car Parking Spaces Nos. 110 23 on
Ground Floor

115 King Lam Street,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

EN L

110158 E - 2B MBERETA

BIEER

21245 EHEEHE

B{7P1-P103 * L1-L15 * L17-L43

AR AAREBBE

Riley House

Unit 101 on 1/F, The whole of 2/F, 3/F & Roof Flat,
Godown on 6/F,

Cargo Lift Nos. 21-24,

Car Parking Spaces P1-P103, L1-L15, L17-143,
88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories

E3E

NBE 2332395k

JD Mall, 233-239 Nathan Road,
Jordan, Kowloon

1t BR # 5%

Lot number

/LB LR 546257
BT

The Remaining portion
of New Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 5462

LENR E45043
£937%:

Lot No. 937

in Demarcation
District No. 450

NEEAMER
140255 CE &
BT
NEEAMER

1993 %199455%
Section C and the
Remaining portion
of Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1402,
Kowloon Inland Lot
Nos. 1993 and 1994

FEE
ik Rz
Group’s
Interest

100%

100%

89%

EHERE
(£75XK)
Floor
Area ke
(sg.m.) Type
14,782 I/
I/CP
31,234 I/1%
I/CP
9,599 ]
C

AR FH

Lease term

]

Medium

FH

Medium

P

Medium



A=+
Location

BERENE(E)

Properties held for investment (continued)

E#(8)

Hong Kong (continued)

HEFAE

R E4E

BB IR 2 758488-4905%
Hennessy Apartments

G/F-4/F

488-490 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

HEI At
Chinese Mainland

ERATIMIMEREEENEE
LI R BE1965%
WE - —E  ZENER—ZEZEINENH

TP R S W ERRE — JE30%

MzRE

FFmRDERDIRT0%

=Z/\E
MieE: A = : B85
Note:  C: Commercial CP: Car Park
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=

\

1t BR # 5%

Lot number

/8 ER 3655
AB1DE R

CR .z & TakMp
Certain parts or
shares of and in
Sub-section 1 of
Sections A and C of
Marine Lot No. 365

TEH
N/A

TEH
N/A

TEH
N/A

E /N
O: Office

FEE

ik s

Group’s
Interest

100%

100%

100%

100%

TI:T%
I: Industial

BEEE
(FFK)
Floor
Area

(sg.m.)

3,125

59,447

21,888

28,068

Rz
Type

o

R FH

Lease term

R
Long

4

Medium

5

Medium

]

Medium

F+ = H=+—H At 31 December 2011
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AFENBERRE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

—ET+F ZTEN\F TThNEF T-TF ZB——F
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
BEBHETL BAEEERT A¥EErT BKEELT BYEER
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ milion HK$ million
HEER Consolidated results
e Turnover 62,123 64,628 71,629 87,138 110,164
% B e/ S ) Profit attributable to
shareholders 4,961 2,322 2,913 5,674 2,832
FRERNEF Basic earnings per share HK$2.09 HK$0.97 HK$1.22 HK$2.37 HK$1.18
TR Dividend per share
A Interim HK$0.15 HK$0.15 HK$0.14 HK$0.14 HK$0.15
REA Final HK$0.30 HK$0.25 HK$0.35 HK$0.38 HK$0.32
HK$0.45 HK$0.40 HK$0.49 HK$0.52 HK$0.47
55l B Special interim HK$0.60 - - - -
MEEEERBR Consolidated balance
sheet
TEE Fixed assets 29,876 36,353 38,158 41,443 50,240
e Goodwill 6,133 6,385 9,225 9,654 10,755
HEihEmpEeE Other intangible assets 81 68 95 219 310
RHEIRE Long term investments 1,493 1,993 537 399 463
BEAREERA Financial assets at fair
BalerREE value through profit and
loss - - 419 - -
TTESmIT A Derivative financial
instruments - - 10 - -
TERTFRIR Prepayments 205 198 261 311 305
EERIBE E Deferred taxation assets 119 164 333 556 762
TENEE,(AfE) Netcurrent assets/

FE (liabilities) 1,003 (524) (2,889) (678) (2,383)
B4iER Employment of capital 38,910 44 637 46,149 51,904 60,452
A% 7N Share capital 2,385 2,389 2,396 2,398 2,399
i Reserves 20,486 22,770 23,451 28,421 33,955
fE R iR Shareholders’ funds 22,871 25,159 25,847 30,819 36,354
FEIE IR B A Non-controlling interests 7,293 9,339 9,597 10,470 12,628
REHED Long term loans 7,503 8,575 8,819 8,158 8,442
TEemI A Derivative financial

instruments - 11 26 14 -
HEtEIEE Other non-current

liabilities - 215 236 347 532
EEFRIEEE Deferred taxation liabilities 1,243 1,338 1,624 2,096 2,496
BiERES Capital employed 38,910 44,637 46,149 51,904 60,452
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RREFASESERE
SUMMARY OF NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

UNTHEERBERBEFAGREZHRE
A AEBEEXHINARRFTE A
BHIA o

EHAXARARZEINR-_E—=—F1A

“+REBEESANF=RH=1D  BREE

PRI B B 265 M K E50E BT

RERS - MERET5EE

EERER

1. HENERBHE—_ZT——F+=A
=+ —HBIEFELEZZMBRE
HMERSRE R AZEEIRS -

2. EMMERERHKRES -

3. (1) EERFAEATAES
(2 EEFRHETRES
(3 ERERBHLIAES
4 EEREBEERES
(5) EEBBAEEEAEE R
6) ETHBEZRIHD -

4. ZROERBEEAEREEERETEH

5 BTEE—MEENEDTBBE
BEITARAR10% 2 B A7 -

6. BTESF REBURTTEABS
BITARAN20% Z BEIMNR 7

7. FEMARERRBARERESAM
BOzBROBE  UEATRESR
FEORBREITRMN 2 —RIRHE -

Set out below is a summary of the notice of the annual general meeting,
the full version of which is set out in the circular to be dispatched to
shareholders separately.

An Annual General Meeting of China Resources Enterprise, Limited will be
held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong on Friday, 25 May 2012 at 3:30 p.m. for the following
purposes:

Ordinary Resolutions

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the
Directors’ Report and the Independent Auditors’ Report for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

2. To declare a final dividend.

3. (1) Tore-elect Mr. Houang Tai Ninh as Director;
(2)  Tore-elect Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric as Director;
(8)  Tore-elect Dr. Cheng Mo Chi as Director;
(4)  To re-elect Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan as Director;
(6)  Tore-elect Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon as Director; and
(6)  To fix the fees for all Directors.

4. To appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares
not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital.

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue additional
shares not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital.

7.  To extend the general mandate to issue shares under item 6 hereof

by the addition thereto of the number of shares repurchased under
item 5 hereof.
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FERYTES
Chairman and Executive Director

BIUFHTES

Independent Non-Executive Directors

St Qiao Shibo EAE Houang Tai Ninh

Z5%  LiKaCheung, Eric
BREYITERMTES #RE  Cheng Mo Chi
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director fE%9 8 Bernard Charnwut Chan
BREA Chen Lang A Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon
HEMBERMTES AT =
Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director Company Secretary

BrE Lai Ni Hium, Frank

2o Lai Ni Hium, Frank

FHTES e

Non-Executive Directors Auditor

FER  YanBieo =% - BERH BT

el WeiBin Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

HXE  DuWenmin

HZEE ShiShanbo SmpmEE

FEH  Zhang Haipeng Registered Office
ERETERIE 269 E N NE 392
39/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

DEFHEE WERREHEZR RS 2R : BREREER

Announcement of annual results 201245 A31H Depositary

20123 A 21 H
21 March 2012

BERBRARBRSENRD 2 HERE
Last day of dealings in shares with
entitlement to final dividend
201295 A28 H

28 May 2012

TENnEROBEECTFE
Closure of Register period

BEBREERFBFRGUNE LR
RZBRERHD -

20125821 £5A25B(HE B ™
REFEA)

To determine the identity of members
who are entitled to attend and vote at
the annual general meeting:

21 May 2012 to 25 May 2012 (both
days inclusive)

188

To ascertain the members' entitlement
to the proposed final dividend:
31 May 2012

REREATRE
Payment of final dividend

201246 A 15 HekAig
On or about 15 June 2012

RECE

Share Registrar

SEREARAR
BAEET

SRRER 285

SIEEH L 2618

Tricor Standard Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services

PO Box 358516
Pittsburgh, PA 15252-8516
USA

EL
Stock Codes

BRBBERHFT - 00291
Z1E 291 HK

PEiFEAE © 0291.HK
ADRER : CRHKY
CUSIP:16940R109
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